BASE PROSPECTUS
CEZ, a. s.

(incorporated with limited liability in the Czech Republic)

€8,000,000,000
Euro Medium Term Note Programme

Under this €8,000,000,000 Euro Medium Term Note Programme (the "Programme™), CEZ, a. s. (the "Issuer" or "CEZ") may from
time to time issue notes (the "Notes") denominated in any currency agreed between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer (as defined
below). The maximum aggregate nominal amount of all Notes from time to time outstanding under the Programme is specified under
"Overview of the Programme — Programme Size" and will not exceed €8,000,000,000 (or its equivalent in other currencies calculated
as described in the Amended and Restated Programme Agreement described herein), subject to any increase as described herein.

The Notes may be issued on a continuing basis to one or more of the Dealers specified under "Overview of the Programme" and any
additional Dealer appointed under the Programme from time to time by the Issuer (each a "Dealer" and together the "Dealers"),
which appointment may be for a specific issue or on an ongoing basis. References in this base prospectus (the "Base Prospectus"”) to
the "relevant Dealer" shall, in the case of an issue of Notes being (or intended to be) subscribed by more than one Dealer, be to all
Dealers agreeing to subscribe such Notes.

An investment in Notes issued under the Programme involves certain risks. For a discussion of these risks see ""Risk Factors"".

This Base Prospectus has been approved as a base prospectus by the Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier (the "CSSF"),
as competent authority under Regulation (EU) 2017/1129, as amended (the "Prospectus Regulation™). This Base Prospectus
comprises a base prospectus for the purposes of Article 8 of the Prospectus Regulation. The CSSF only approves this Base Prospectus
as meeting the standards of completeness, comprehensibility and consistency imposed by the Prospectus Regulation. Approval by
the CSSF should not be considered as an endorsement of the Issuer or of the quality of the Notes. Investors should make their own
assessment as to the suitability of investing in the Notes. By approving this Base Prospectus, neither the CSSF nor the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange assume responsibility for the economic and financial soundness of the transactions contemplated by this Base
Prospectus or the quality or solvency of the Issuer in accordance with Article 6(4) of the Luxembourg Act dated 16 July 2019 relating
to prospectuses for securities.

Application has been made to the Luxembourg Stock Exchange for Notes issued under the Programme to be admitted to trading on
the Luxembourg Stock Exchange's regulated market and to be listed on the official list of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange
(the "Official List™). Application has also been made to the Luxembourg Stock Exchange for the Exempt Notes issued under the
Programme during the period of 12 months from the date of this Base Prospectus to be admitted to trading on the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange's Euro MTF market and to be listed on the Official List.

References in this Base Prospectus to Notes being "listed” (and all related references) shall mean that such Notes have been admitted
to trading on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange's regulated market and have been admitted to the Official List of the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange. The Luxembourg Stock Exchange's regulated market is a regulated market for the purposes of the Markets in
Financial Instruments Directive (Directive 2014/65/EU), as amended ("MiFID 11").

The Programme provides that Notes may be listed or admitted to trading, as the case may be, on such other or further stock exchanges
or markets as may be agreed between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer. The Issuer may also issue unlisted Notes and/or Notes not
admitted to trading on any market.

This Base Prospectus (as supplemented as of the relevant time, if applicable) is valid until 16 April 2026 in relation to Notes which
are to be admitted to trading on a regulated market in the European Economic Area (the "EEA"™) and/or offered to the public in the
EEA, other than in circumstances where an exemption is available, respectively, under the Prospectus Regulation. References in this
Base Prospectus to "Exempt Notes" are to Notes which are neither (i) to be admitted to trading on a regulated market for the purposes
of MIFID II, in the EEA, nor (ii) offered in the EEA in circumstances where a prospectus is required to be published under
the Prospectus Regulation. The CSSF has neither approved nor reviewed information contained in this Base Prospectus in
connection with Exempt Notes. Application has been made to the Luxembourg Stock Exchange in its capacity as competent
authority to approve this Base Prospectus as a base prospectus in respect of Exempt Notes only.

Notice of the aggregate nominal amount of Notes, interest (if any) payable in respect of Notes, the issue price of Notes and certain
other information which is applicable to each Tranche (as defined under "Terms and Conditions of the Notes™) of Notes will (other
than in the case of Exempt Notes, as defined above) be set out in a final terms document (the "Final Terms") which will be filed with
the CSSF. Copies of Final Terms in relation to Notes to be listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange will also be published on the
website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (www.luxse.com). In the case of Exempt Notes, notice of the aggregate nominal amount
of Notes, interest (if any) payable in respect of such Exempt Notes, the issue price of such Exempt Notes and certain other information
which is applicable to each Tranche of such Exempt Notes will be set out in a pricing supplement document (the "Pricing
Supplement").

The Issuer has been rated A- (stable outlook) by S&P Global Ratings Europe Limited ("Standard & Poor's") and Baal (hegative
outlook) by Moody's France SAS ("Moody's"). The Programme has been rated A- by Standard & Poor's and Baal by Moody's. Each
of Moody's and Standard & Poor's is established in the European Union (the "EU") and each of Moody's and Standard and Poor's is
registered under the Regulation (EC) No. 1060/2009, as amended (the "CRA Regulation"). As such, each of Moody's and Standard
& Poor's is included on the latest update of the list of credit rating agencies published by the European Securities and Markets
Authority ("ESMA") on its website (https://www.esma.europa.eu/credit-rating-agencies/cra-authorisation) in accordance with the
CRA Regulation. Notes issued under the Programme may be rated or unrated by either of the rating agencies referred to above. Where
a Tranche of Notes is rated, such rating will be disclosed in the Final Terms (or Pricing Supplement, in the case of Exempt Notes)
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and will not necessarily be the same as the rating assigned to the Programme by the relevant rating agency. A security rating is not
a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be subject to suspension, reduction or withdrawal at any time by the
assigning rating agency.

This Base Prospectus will be valid as a base prospectus under the Prospectus Regulation for 12 months from 16 April 2025.
The obligation to supplement this Base Prospectus in the event of significant new factors, material mistakes or material inaccuracies
will not apply following the expiry of that period.

Amounts payable on Floating Rate Notes will be calculated by reference to one of EURIBOR, PRIBOR, SOFR or TONA, as specified
in the applicable Final Terms (or Pricing Supplement, in the case of Exempt Notes). As of the date of this Base Prospectus, the
European Money Markets Institute (as administrator of EURIBOR) and the Czech Financial Benchmark Facility s.r.o.
(as administrator of PRIBOR) are included in the register of administrators and benchmarks (the "EU Benchmarks
Register") established and maintained by ESMA under Article 36 of Regulation (EU) 2016/1011 (the "Benchmark Regulation™). As
of the date of this Base Prospectus, the administrators of SOFR and TONA, the New York Federal Reserve and the Bank of Japan,
respectively, are not included in the EU Benchmarks Register. The registration status of any administrator under the Benchmarks
Regulation is a matter of public record and, save where required by applicable law, the Issuer does not intend to update the applicable
Final Terms to reflect any change in the registration status of the administrator.

Pursuant to Czech law, the Issuer is required to withhold tax in respect of payments of principal and interest to any Czech
Tax Resident (as defined below) individual or a Czech Tax Non-Resident Person Related Through Capital (as defined below)
with the Issuer. Beneficial ownership information will be required in respect of all beneficial owners of the Notes to grant any
tax relief, and withholding will be applicable (without a requirement on the Issuer to gross-up such payments) if such
information is not delivered to the Issuer. For more information, see the sections on "*Risk Factors — Withholding tax on interest
in the Czech Republic™, *'Risk Factors — Risks associated with evidencing the entitlement to tax relief of the beneficial owner of
income from the Notes™ and ""Taxation™.

Arrangers and Dealers

CITIGROUP DEUTSCHE BANK

The date of this Base Prospectus is 16 April 2025.



IMPORTANT INFORMATION

This Base Prospectus comprises a base prospectus in respect of all Notes, other than Exempt Notes, issued under
the Programme for the purposes of Article 8 of the Prospectus Regulation. Application has been made to the
Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier for this document to be approved as such a base prospectus.
Application has been made to the Luxembourg Stock Exchange in its capacity as competent authority to approve
this document as a base prospectus in respect of Exempt Notes only.

The Issuer, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirms that this Base Prospectus contains all information
regarding the Issuer and its subsidiaries taken as a whole (the ""CEZ Group™), the electricity industry in the Czech
Republic and the Notes which is (in the context of the issue of the Notes) material; that such information is true
and accurate in all material respects and is not misleading in any material respect; that any opinions, estimates,
or intentions expressed in this Base Prospectus on the part of the Issuer are honestly held or made and are not
misleading in any material respect; that this Base Prospectus does not omit to state any material fact necessary to
make such information, opinions, estimates or intentions (in such context) not misleading in any material respect;
and that all proper enquiries have been made to ascertain and to verify the foregoing.

Without prejudice to the foregoing, the Issuer accepts responsibility for the information contained in this Base
Prospectus and the Final Terms for each Tranche of Notes issued under the Programme and declares that, having
taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case, the information contained therein is, to the best of its
knowledge, in accordance with the facts and makes no omission likely to affect its import. Certain information
contained and identified as such in this Base Prospectus, in particular in sections 'Risk Factors™, ""Historical and
Current Market and Industry Data'" and "*Description of CEZ" was derived from third parties. The Issuer does not
accept any responsibility for the accuracy of such third-party information, nor has the Issuer independently
verified any such third-party information. The Issuer confirms that such third-party information has been
accurately reproduced.

This Base Prospectus is to be read in conjunction with any supplements thereto and with all documents which are
deemed to be incorporated herein by reference (see ""Documents Incorporated by Reference™) and, in relation to
any Tranche of Notes which is the subject of the Final Terms or any Tranche of Exempt Notes which is the subject
of the Pricing Supplement, must be read and construed together with the relevant Final Terms or the Pricing
Supplement, as applicable. This Base Prospectus shall be read and construed on the basis that such documents
are incorporated by reference and form part of this Base Prospectus.

Neither the Arrangers nor the Dealers have independently verified the information contained herein. Accordingly,
no representation, warranty or undertaking, express or implied, is made and no responsibility or liability is
accepted by the Arrangers or the Dealers as to the accuracy or completeness of the information contained or
incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus or any other information provided by the Issuer in connection
with the Programme. No Arranger or Dealer accepts any liability in relation to the information contained or
incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus or any other information provided by the Issuer in connection
with the Programme.

Nothing contained in this Base Prospectus is or should be relied upon as a promise or representation of future
results or events. No person is or has been authorized by the Issuer to give any information or to make any
representation not contained in or not consistent with this Base Prospectus or any other information supplied in
connection with the Programme or the Notes and, if given or made, such information or representation must not
be relied upon as having been authorized by the Issuer or any of the Arrangers or Dealers.

Neither this Base Prospectus nor any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or any Notes
(a) is intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation or (b) should be considered as a
recommendation by the Issuer or any of the Arrangers or Dealers that any recipient of this Base Prospectus or
any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or any Notes should purchase any Notes. Each
investor contemplating purchasing any Notes should make its own independent investigation of the financial
condition and affairs, and its own appraisal of the creditworthiness, of the Issuer. Neither this Base Prospectus
nor any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or the issue of any Notes constitutes an



offer or invitation by or on behalf of the Issuer or any of the Arrangers or Dealers to any person to subscribe for
or to purchase any Notes.

Neither the delivery of this Base Prospectus nor the offering, sale or delivery of any Notes shall in any
circumstances imply that the information contained herein concerning the Issuer is correct at any time subsequent
to the date hereof or that any other information supplied in connection with the Programme is correct as of any
time subsequent to the date indicated in the document containing the same. None of the Arrangers or the Dealers
expressly undertake to review the financial condition or affairs of the Issuer during the life of the Programme or
to advise any investor in the Notes of any information coming to their attention.

IMPORTANT - EEA RETAIL INVESTORS - If the Final Terms in respect of any Notes (or Pricing Supplement,
in the case of Exempt Notes) includes a legend entitled ""Prohibition of Sales to EEA Retail Investors' the Notes
are not intended to be offered, sold or otherwise made available to, and should not be offered, sold or otherwise
made available to, any retail investor in the EEA. For these purposes, a retail investor means a person who is one
(or more) of: (i) a retail client as defined in point (11) of Article 4(1) of MIFID II; or (ii) a customer within the
meaning of Directive (EU) 2016/97 (the ""Insurance Distribution Directive'), where that customer would not qualify
as a professional client as defined in point (10) of Article 4(1) of MiFID I1I; or (iii) not a qualified investor as defined
in the Prospectus Regulation. Consequently, no key information document required by Regulation (EU) No
1286/2014 (as amended, the ""PRIIPs Regulation™) for offering or selling the Notes or otherwise making them
available to retail investors in the EEA has been prepared and therefore offering or selling the Notes or otherwise
making them available to any retail investor in the EEA may be unlawful under the PRIIPs Regulation.

IMPORTANT - UK RETAIL INVESTORS - If the Final Terms in respect of any Notes (or Pricing Supplement,
in the case of Exempt Notes) includes a legend entitled "*Prohibition of Sales to UK Retail Investors' the Notes are
not intended to be offered, sold or otherwise made available to, and should not be offered, sold or otherwise made
available to, any retail investor in the United Kingdom (the ""UK"™). For these purposes, a retail investor means a
person who is one (or more) of: (i) a retail client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2(1) of Regulation (EU) No
2017/565, as it forms part of the current domestic law of the UK by virtue of the European Union (Withdrawal)
Act 2018 (the "EUWA"); or (ii) a customer within the meaning of the provisions of the Financial Services and
Markets Act 2000, as amended (the "FSMA") and any rules or regulations made under the FSMA to implement
the Insurance Distribution Directive, where that customer would not qualify as a professional client, as defined in
point (8) of Article 2(1) of Regulation (EU) No 600/2014, as it forms part of the current domestic law of the UK by
virtue of the EUWA (""UK MIFIR™); or (iii) not a qualified investor as defined in Article 2 of the Prospectus
Regulation as it forms part of the current domestic law of the UK by virtue of the EUWA (the ""UK Prospectus
Regulation'). Consequently, no key information document required by Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014, as it forms
part of current domestic law of the UK by virtue of the EUWA (the "UK PRIIPs Regulation") for offering or
selling the Notes or otherwise making them available to retail investors in the UK has been prepared and therefore
offering or selling the Notes or otherwise making them available to any retail investor in the UK may be unlawful
under the UK PRIIPs Regulation.

MiIFID Il PRODUCT GOVERNANCE / TARGET MARKET - The Final Terms in respect of any Notes (or
Pricing Supplement, in the case of Exempt Notes) may include a legend entitled "*MiFID Il product governance"
which will outline the target market assessment in respect of the Notes and which channels for distribution of the
Notes are appropriate. Any person subsequently offering, selling or recommending the Notes (a "distributor')
should take into consideration the target market assessment; however, a distributor subject to MiIFID 11 is
responsible for undertaking its own target market assessment in respect of the Notes (by either adopting or
refining the target market assessment) and determining appropriate distribution channels.

A determination will be made in relation to each issue about whether, for the purpose of the Product Governance
rules under EU Delegated Directive 2017/593 (the ""MiFID Product Governance Rules'), any Dealer subscribing
for any Notes is a manufacturer in respect of such Notes, but otherwise neither the Arrangers nor the Dealers nor
any of their respective affiliates will be a manufacturer for the purpose of the MiFID Product Governance Rules.

UK MiFIR PRODUCT GOVERNANCE / TARGET MARKET - The Final Terms in respect of any Notes (or
Pricing Supplement, in the case of Exempt Notes) may include a legend entitled UK MiFIR product governance"
which will outline the target market assessment in respect of the Notes and which channels for distribution of the



Notes are appropriate. Any distributor should take into consideration the target market assessment; however, a
distributor subject to the FCA Handbook Product Intervention and Product Governance Sourcebook (the UK
MiFIR Product Governance Rules") is responsible for undertaking its own target market assessment in respect of
the Notes (by either adopting or refining the target market assessment) and determining appropriate distribution
channels.

A determination will be made in relation to each issue about whether, for the purpose of the UK MiFIR Product
Governance Rules, any Dealer subscribing for any Notes is a manufacturer in respect of such Notes, but otherwise
neither the Arrangers nor the Dealers nor any of their respective affiliates will be a manufacturer for the purpose
of the UK MiFIR Product Governance Rules.

The Notes have not been and will not be registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
(the "U.S. Securities Act') or any state securities laws in the United States and are subject to U.S. tax law
requirements. Subject to certain exceptions, the Notes may not be offered, sold or delivered within the United
States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons (see **Subscription and Sale™).

PROHIBITION OF SALES TO CZECH TAX RESIDENT NATURAL PERSONS AND CZECH TAX NON-
RESIDENT PERSONS RELATED THROUGH CAPITAL (AS DEFINED BELOW) WITH THE ISSUER — The
Notes are not intended to be offered, sold, distributed or otherwise made available to and should not be offered,
sold, distributed or otherwise made available to any Czech Tax Resident (as defined below) individual or a Czech
Tax Non-Resident Person Related Through Capital (as defined below) with the Issuer.

This Base Prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any Notes in any
jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make the offer or solicitation in such jurisdiction. The
distribution of this Base Prospectus and the offer or sale of Notes may be restricted by law in certain jurisdictions.
The Issuer, the Arrangers and the Dealers do not represent that this Base Prospectus may be lawfully distributed,
or that any Notes may be lawfully offered, in compliance with any applicable registration or other requirements
in any such jurisdiction, or pursuant to an exemption available thereunder, or assume any responsibility for
facilitating any such distribution or offering. In particular, no action has been taken by the Issuer, the Arrangers
or the Dealers which is intended to permit a public offering of any Notes or distribution of this Base Prospectus in
any jurisdiction where action for that purpose is required. Accordingly, no Notes may be offered or sold, directly
or indirectly, and neither this Base Prospectus nor any advertisement or other offering material may be
distributed or published in any jurisdiction, except under circumstances that will result in compliance with any
applicable laws and regulations. Persons into whose possession this Base Prospectus or any Notes may come must
inform themselves about, and observe, any such restrictions on the distribution of this Base Prospectus and the
offering and sale of Notes. In particular, there are restrictions on the distribution of this Base Prospectus and the
offer, sale and transfer of Notes in the United States, the EEA (including the Czech Republic), the United Kingdom
and Japan, see ""Subscription and Sale' and ""Transfer Restrictions".

If a jurisdiction requires that an offering be made by a licensed broker or dealer and the Dealers or any parent
company or affiliate of the Dealers is a licensed broker or dealer in that jurisdiction and so agrees, the offering
shall be deemed to be made by the Dealers or such parent company or affiliate on behalf of the Issuer in such
jurisdiction.

Each potential investor in the Notes must determine the suitability of that investment in light of its own
circumstances. In particular, each potential investor may wish to consider, either on its own or with the help of its
financial and other professional advisers, whether it:

Q) has sufficient knowledge and experience to make a meaningful evaluation of the Notes, the merits
and risks of investing in the Notes and the information contained or incorporated by reference in
this Base Prospectus or any applicable supplement;

(i) has access to, and knowledge of, appropriate analytical tools to evaluate, in the context of its
particular financial situation, an investment in the Notes and the impact the Notes will have on its
overall investment portfolio;



(iii) has sufficient financial resources and liquidity to bear all of the risks of an investment in the Notes,
including Notes with principal or interest payable in one or more currencies, or where the currency
for principal or interest payments is different from the potential investor's currency;

(iv) understands thoroughly the terms of the Notes and is familiar with the behaviour of any relevant
indices and financial markets;

(v) is able to evaluate possible scenarios for economic, interest rate and other factors that may affect its
investment and its ability to bear the applicable risks; and

(vi) understands the accounting, legal, regulatory and tax implications of a purchase, holding and
disposal of an interest in the Notes.

Some Notes are complex financial instruments. Sophisticated institutional investors generally do not purchase
complex financial instruments as stand-alone investments. They purchase complex financial instruments as a way
to reduce risk or enhance yield with an understood, measured, appropriate addition of risk to their overall
portfolios. A potential investor should not invest in Notes which are complex financial instruments unless it has
the expertise (either alone or with a financial advisor) to evaluate how the Notes will perform under changing
conditions, the resulting effects on the value of the Notes and the impact this investment will have on the potential
investor's overall investment portfolio.

This Base Prospectus has been prepared on a basis that would permit an offer of Notes with a denomination of
less than €100,000 (or its equivalent in any other currency), only in circumstances where there is an exemption
from the obligation under the (i) Prospectus Regulation to publish a prospectus in connection with such an offer
in the EEA, or (ii) UK Prospectus Regulation to publish a prospectus in connection with such an offer in the UK.
As a result, any offer of Notes in the EEA and/or the United Kingdom must be made pursuant to an applicable
exemption under the Prospectus Regulation and/or the UK Prospectus Regulation, as the case may be, from the
requirement to publish a prospectus for such an offer of Notes. Accordingly, any person making or intending to
make an offer of Notes in the EEA and/or the United Kingdom may only do so in circumstances in which no
obligation arises for the Issuer to publish a prospectus, or supplement a prospectus, pursuant to the applicable
provisions of the Prospectus Regulation and/or the UK Prospectus Regulation, as the case may be, in each case, in
relation to such an offer. Neither the Issuer nor any Arranger or Dealer have authorized, nor do they authorize,
the making of any offer of Notes in circumstances in which an obligation arises for the Issuer to publish or
supplement a prospectus for such offer.

This Programme is not a bond programme under the Czech Act No. 190/2004 Coll., on Bonds, as amended (the
"Bonds Act™) (Section 11). The issue of Notes will be notified to the Czech National Bank under Section 8a of the
Czech Act No. 15/1998 Coll., on Capital Markets Supervision, as amended.

The investment activities of certain investors are subject to legal investment laws and regulations, or review or
regulation by certain authorities. Each potential investor should consult its legal advisors to determine whether
and to what extent (1) the Notes are legal investments for it, (2) the Notes can be used as collateral for various
types of borrowing and (3) other restrictions apply to its purchase or pledge of the Notes. Financial institutions
should consult their legal advisors or the appropriate regulators to determine the appropriate treatment of the
Notes under any applicable risk-based capital or similar rules.

In connection with the issue of Notes as Sustainability-Linked Notes (as defined in the Terms and Conditions) or
Notes which are designated in the applicable Final Terms as Green Notes (*'Green Notes') under the Programme:

(i) none of the Dealers nor the Arrangers have undertaken, or are responsible for, (a) any assessment of the
CEZ Group Sustainable Financing Framework published on the website of the Issuer (the *'Sustainable
Financing Framework'"), the selection, suitability or assessment of key performance indicators or the
selection, suitability or assessment of sustainability performance targets that may be included in any issue
of Sustainability-Linked Notes, or (b) any verification or monitoring of any key performance indicator or
whether any sustainability performance target in relation to any issue of Sustainability-Linked Notes has
been met;



(if) none of the Dealers nor the Arrangers have undertaken, nor are they responsible for, any assessment of
the eligibility criteria for Eligible Projects (as defined herein), any verification of whether the Eligible
Projects meet such criteria, the monitoring of the use of proceeds of any Green Notes (or amounts equal
thereto) or the allocation of the proceeds by the Issuer to particular Eligible Projects;

(iii) none of the Dealers nor the Arrangers makes any representation as to the suitability of any issue of
Sustainability-Linked Notes or Green Notes to fulfil any environmental or sustainability criteria required
by any prospective investor nor makes any representation or provides any assurance as to the suitability
of any Sustainability-Linked Notes or Green Notes, including the listing or admission to trading thereof
on any dedicated '‘green', "environmental', "sustainable™, *'social"" or other equivalently-labelled
segment of any stock exchange or securities market;

(iv) each of the Dealers and the Arrangers disclaim any liability for the services provided by any independent
expert, sustainability consultant, auditor or provider of a second-party opinion, Assurance Report or
certification in respect of any Sustainability-Linked Notes or Green Notes; and

(v) an opinion, report or certification of a third party (whether or not solicited by the Issuer), including any
second-party opinions or Assurance Reports (as defined herein), which may be provided in respect of any
Sustainability-Linked Notes or Green Notes, may or may not be made available, as the case may be. Any
information in such second-party opinions or Assurance Reports or any past or future second-party
opinions or Assurance Reports are not part of this Base Prospectus and should not be relied upon in
connection with making any investment decision with respect to any Notes to be issued under the
Programme. Any such opinion, Assurance Reports or certification is not, nor should be deemed to be, a
recommendation by the Issuer, the Dealers, the Arrangers, or any other person to buy, sell or hold any
such Sustainability-Linked Notes or Green Notes. Any such opinion, Assurance Reports or certification
is only current as of the date that opinion, report or certification was initially issued. Prospective investors
must determine for themselves the relevance of any such opinion, Assurance Report or certification
and/or the information contained therein and/or the provider of such opinion, Assurance Report or
certification for the purpose of any investment in such Sustainability-Linked Notes or Green Notes.
Currently, the providers of such opinions, Assurance Reports and certifications are not subject to any
specific regulatory or other regime or oversight. In addition, no assurance or representation is given by
the Issuer, any other member of the Group, the Arrangers or the Dealers or any other member of their
respective groups, any second-party opinion providers, the independent auditors or the Assurance
Provider (as defined in the Terms and Conditions) as to the suitability or reliability for any purpose
whatsoever of any second-party opinion or Assurance Report in connection with the offering of any
Sustainability-Linked Notes or Green Notes under the Programme. Any second-party opinion, any
Assurance Report, and any other document related thereto is not, nor shall it be deemed to be,
incorporated in and/or form part of this Base Prospectus.

No assurance or representation is or can be given by the Issuer, the Arrangers, the Dealers or any other person
that Eligible Projects will meet investor expectations or requirements regarding such "green™, "'sustainable”,
"*social™ or similar labels (including in relation to Regulation (EU) 2020/852 on the establishment of a framework
to facilitate sustainable investment (the so-called ""EU Taxonomy') and any related technical screening criteria,
Regulation (EU) 2023/2631 on European Green Bonds and optional disclosures for bonds marketed as
environmentally sustainable and for sustainability-linked bonds (the ""European Green Bond Regulation™),
Regulation (EU) 2019/2088 on sustainability-related disclosures in the financial services sector (“'SFDR"),
Regulation (EU) 2020/852 as it forms part of domestic law of the United Kingdom by virtue of the EUWA, and
any implementing legislation and guidelines or any requirements of such labels as they may evolve from time to
time), as regards any investment criteria or guidelines with which such investor or its investments are required to
comply or that any adverse environmental and/or other impacts will not occur during the implementation of any
projects funded by or related to any Eligible Projects. Each prospective investor should have regard to the factors
described in the Sustainable Financing Framework and the relevant information contained in this Base Prospectus
and the applicable Final Terms and seek advice from their independent financial adviser or other professional
adviser regarding its purchase of any Green Notes before deciding to invest.



No Arranger or Dealer makes any representation as to: (i) the suitability of any Green Notes to fulfil any
environmental, social and/or sustainability criteria required by prospective investors; (ii) whether the net proceeds
of the issuance of any such Notes will be used to finance and/or refinance relevant Eligible Projects, including their
green, social and/or sustainability criteria, as applicable; or (iii) the characteristics of relevant Eligible Projects or
businesses to whom the proceeds of such Notes are to be allocated, including their green, social and/or
sustainability characteristics, as applicable. No Dealer involved in the issue of a specific Tranche of such Notes has
undertaken, nor is responsible for, any assessment of or due diligence in respect of the Sustainable Financing
Framework, the Eligible Projects or the eligibility criteria, any verification of whether the Eligible Projects meet
the eligibility criteria, or the monitoring of the use of proceeds. Investors should refer to the Issuer's website,
annual report and Second Party Opinion (as defined below) for information and should determine for themselves
the relevance of the information contained in this Base Prospectus regarding the use of proceeds and its investment
in any Green Notes should be based upon such investigation as it deems necessary.

All references in this document to **U.S. dollars™ and ""U.S.$" refer to United States dollars and to ""Czech crowns™,
"CZK" and " K¢ refer to the lawful currency for the time being of the Czech Republic. In addition, all references
to "euro™, "EUR™ and "€ refer to the currency introduced at the start of the third stage of European economic
and monetary union pursuant to the Treaty on the Functioning of the European Union, as amended, all references
to "PLN" and ""Polish zloty" are to the lawful currency of Poland and all references to ""TRY"" and " Turkish Lira"
refer to the lawful currency of Tiirkiye.

Certain figures included in this Base Prospectus have been subject to rounding adjustments; accordingly, figures
shown for the same item of information presented in different tables may vary slightly, and figures shown as totals
in certain tables may not be an arithmetical aggregate of the figures preceding such totals.

CEZ, a. s., was incorporated as a joint stock company under the laws of the Czech Republic on May 6, 1992 with
unlimited duration and was registered in the Commercial Register administered by the Municipal Court in
Prague, File B, Section 1581, with identification number 45274649. Its registered office is at Duhova 2/1444, 140
53 Prague 4, Czech Republic and its telephone number at that address is +420 211 041 111.

In this Base Prospectus, references to "CEZ" and "the Issuer™ are to CEZ, a. s. and references to the "CEZ

Group™, the "Group™, "we", ""us" and "our" are to CEZ, a. s. and its consolidated subsidiaries.

The obligations of the Issuer are not in any way guaranteed by, or otherwise backed by the credit of, the Czech
Republic or any agency, ministry or political subdivision thereof.
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OVERVIEW OF THE PROGRAMME

The following overview does not purport to be complete and is taken from, and is qualified in its entirety by, the
remainder of this Base Prospectus and, in relation to the terms and conditions of any particular Tranche of Notes, the
applicable Final Terms (or, in the case of Exempt Notes, the applicable Pricing Supplement). The Issuer and any
relevant Dealer may agree that Notes shall be issued in a form other than that contemplated in the Terms and
Conditions, in which event, in the case of Notes, other than Exempt Notes, and if appropriate, a supplement to the
Base Prospectus or a new Base Prospectus will be published.

This Overview constitutes a general description of the Programme for the purposes of Article 25.1 of Commission
Delegated Regulation (EU) No. 2019/980.

Words and expressions defined in "Form of the Notes" and "Terms and Conditions of the Notes" shall have the same
meanings in this Overview.

Issuer: CEZ, a. s.
Issuer Legal Entity Identifier: 529900S5R9YHIHYKKG94
Risk Factors: There are certain factors that may affect the Issuer's ability to fulfil its

obligations under Notes issued under the Programme. These are set out
under "Risk Factors" below. In addition, there are certain factors which
are material for the purpose of assessing the market risks associated with
Notes issued under the Programme. These are set out under "Risk Factors™
and include certain risks relating to the structure of particular Series of
Notes and certain market risks.

Description: Euro Medium Term Note Programme

Arrangers and Dealers: Citigroup Global Markets Europe AG and Deutsche Bank
Aktiengesellschaft

Dealers: Citigroup Global Markets Europe AG, Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft;
and any other Dealers appointed in accordance with the Amended and
Restated Programme Agreement and excluding any entity whose
appointment has been terminated.

Certain Restrictions: Each issue of Notes denominated in a currency in respect of which
particular laws, guidelines, regulations, restrictions or reporting
requirements apply will only be issued in circumstances which comply
with such laws, guidelines, regulations, restrictions or reporting
requirements from time to time (see "Subscription and Sale") including
the following restrictions applicable as of the date of this Base Prospectus.

Notes having a maturity of less than one year

Notes having a maturity of less than one year will, if the proceeds of the
issue are accepted in the United Kingdom, constitute deposits for the
purposes of the prohibition on accepting deposits contained in Section 19
of the FSMA unless they are issued to a limited class of professional
investors and have a denomination of at least £100,000 or its equivalent,
see "Subscription and Sale".

Under the Prospectus Regulation, prospectuses relating to money market
instruments having a maturity at issue of less than 12 months and

10



Agent:

Programme Size:

Distribution:

Currencies:

Maturities:

Issue Price:

Form of Notes:

Fixed Rate Notes:

Floating Rate Notes:

complying also with the definition of securities are not subject to the
approval provisions stated therein.

Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch

Up to €8,000,000,000 (or its equivalent in other currencies calculated as
described in the Amended and Restated Programme Agreement)
outstanding at any time. The Issuer may increase the amount of the
Programme in accordance with the terms of the Amended and Restated
Programme Agreement.

Notes may be distributed by way of private or public placement and in
each case on a syndicated or non-syndicated basis.

Notes may be denominated in euro, U.S. dollars, yen and, subject to any
applicable legal or regulatory restrictions, any other currency agreed
between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer.

The Notes will have such maturities as may be agreed between the Issuer
and the relevant Dealer, subject to such minimum or maximum maturities
as may be allowed or required from time to time by the relevant central
bank (or equivalent body) or any laws or regulations applicable to the
Issuer or the relevant Specified Currency.

Notes may be issued on a fully-paid or, in the case of Exempt Notes, a
partly-paid basis and at an issue price which is at par or at a discount to,
or premium over, par.

The Notes will be issued in bearer form as described in "Form of the
Notes."

Fixed interest will be payable on such date or dates as may be agreed
between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer and on redemption and will be
calculated on the basis of such Day Count Fraction as may be agreed
between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer.

Floating Rate Notes will bear interest at a rate determined:

@ on the same basis as the floating rate under a notional interest
rate swap transaction in the relevant Specified Currency governed
by an agreement incorporating the 2021 ISDA Definitions (as
published by the International Swaps and Derivatives
Association, Inc., and as amended and updated as of the Issue Date
of the first Tranche of the Notes of the relevant Series); or

(b) on the basis of the reference rate set out in the applicable Final
Terms (or, in the case of Exempt Notes, the applicable Pricing

Supplement).

The margin (if any) relating to such floating rate will be agreed between
the Issuer and the relevant Dealer for each Series of Floating Rate Notes.

Floating Rate Notes may also have a maximum interest rate, a minimum
interest rate or both.

11



Benchmark Discontinuation

Sustainability-Linked Notes:

Zero Coupon Notes:

Exempt Notes:

Interest on Floating Rate Notes in respect of each Interest Period, as
agreed prior to issue by the Issuer and the relevant Dealer, will be payable
on such Interest Payment Dates, and will be calculated on the basis of such
Day Count Fraction, as may be agreed between the Issuer and the relevant
Dealer.

In respect of Floating Rate Notes, if a Benchmark Event occurs, the Issuer
shall use its reasonable endeavours to appoint an Independent Adviser to
determine a Successor Rate, failing which, an Alternative Rate and, in
either case, the applicable Adjustment Spread and any Benchmark
Amendments (each term as defined in the Terms and Conditions of the
Notes), as further described in Condition 4.4(a).

Fixed Rate Notes, Floating Rate Notes and Fixed/Floating Rate Notes
issued by the Issuer may be subject to a Step-Up if the applicable Final
Terms indicates that the Step-Up is applicable. If the Step-Up is applicable
and a Trigger Event occurs, the Rate of Interest (in case of Fixed Rate
Notes) or the Margin (in case of Floating Rate Notes) shall be increased
by the Step-Up Margin as specified in the applicable Final Terms in
relation to the relevant SPT. For the avoidance of doubt, an increase in the
Rate of Interest may occur no more than once in respect of any Series of
Sustainability-Linked Notes, and will not subsequently decrease
thereafter.

Fixed Rate Notes, Floating Rate Notes and Fixed/Floating Rate Notes
issued by the Issuer may be subject to a Redemption Premium if the
applicable Final Terms indicate that a Redemption Premium is applicable.
If a Trigger Event occurs, the Issuer shall pay, in respect of each Note of
a Series, an amount equal to the Redemption Premium together with either
the Final Redemption Amount, the Early Redemption Amount, the
Optional Redemption Amount, the Make-Whole Redemption Amount or
the Issuer Residual Call Redemption Amount, as applicable.

Zero Coupon Notes will be offered and sold at a discount to their nominal
amount and will not bear interest.

The Issuer may issue Exempt Notes which are Index Linked Notes, Dual
Currency Notes, Partly Paid Notes or Notes redeemable in one or more
instalments.

Index Linked Notes: Payments of principal in respect of Index Linked
Redemption Notes or of interest in respect of Index Linked Interest Notes
will be calculated by reference to such index and/or formula or to changes
in the prices of securities or commodities or to such other factors as the
Issuer and the relevant Dealer may agree.

Dual Currency Notes: Payments (whether in respect of principal or
interest and whether at maturity or otherwise) in respect of Dual Currency
Notes will be made in such currencies, and based on such rates of
exchange, as the Issuer and the relevant Dealer may agree.

Partly Paid Notes: The Issuer may issue Notes in respect of which the

issue price is paid in separate instalments in such amounts and on such
dates as the Issuer and the relevant Dealer may agree.
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Redemption:

Notes redeemable in instalments: The Issuer may issue Notes which may
be redeemed in separate instalments in such amounts and on such dates as
the Issuer and the relevant Dealer may agree.

The Issuer may agree with any Dealer that Exempt Notes may be issued
in a form not contemplated by the Terms and Conditions of the Notes, in
which event the relevant provisions will be included in the applicable
Pricing Supplement.

Subject as described in "Certain Restrictions—Notes having a maturity of
less than one year" above, Notes may either be redeemed at 100 per cent.
of their nominal amount or at such other amount, expressed as a
percentage of their nominal amount, as may be agreed between the Issuer
and the relevant Dealer. Such amounts will be specified in the applicable
Final Terms (or, in the case of Exempt Notes, the applicable Pricing
Supplement).

The applicable Final Terms (or, in the case of Exempt Notes, the
applicable Pricing Supplement) will indicate either that the relevant Notes
cannot be redeemed prior to their stated maturity (other than for taxation
reasons or following an Event of Default or, in the case of Exempt Notes,
in specified instalments, if applicable), or that such Notes will be
redeemable at the option of the Issuer and/or the Noteholders upon giving
notice to the Noteholders on a date or dates specified prior to such stated
maturity and at a price or prices and on such other terms as may be agreed
between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer.

In the case of Sustainability-Linked Notes, upon the occurrence of a
Trigger Event, a Redemption Premium may apply to the Final Redemption
Amount, Early Redemption Amount, Optional Redemption Amount,
Make-Whole Redemption Amount or Issuer Residual Call Redemption
Amount.

If specified in the applicable Final Terms (or, in the case of Exempt Notes,
the applicable Pricing Supplement), the Issuer will have the option to
redeem the Notes, in whole or in part, at any time or from time to time,
prior to their Maturity Date, at the Make-Whole Redemption Amount.

If specified in the applicable Final Terms (or, in the case of Exempt Notes,
the applicable Pricing Supplement), the Issuer will have the option to
redeem the Notes, in whole but not in part, on the Residual Maturity Call
Option Redemption Date in accordance with Condition 6.5, at their
principal amount, together with any accrued and unpaid interest up to (but
excluding) the date of redemption or purchase.

In addition, the applicable Final Terms (or, in the case of Exempt Notes,
the applicable Pricing Supplement) may provide that Notes may be
redeemable at the option of the Noteholders upon the occurrence of a
Change of Control and a consequential rating downgrade or withdrawal
(or refusal to provide a rating) in the circumstances described in Condition
6.6(b).

In addition, the applicable Final Terms (or, in the case of Exempt Notes,
the applicable Pricing Supplement) may provide that the Issuer will have
the option to redeem the Notes, in whole but not in part, prior to their
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Denomination of Notes:

Taxation:

Negative Pledge:

Cross Acceleration:

Status of the Notes:

Substitution of Issuer

Ratings:

Maturity Date, at the Issuer Residual Call Early Redemption Amount in
the circumstances described in Condition 6.13.

Notes having a maturity of less than one year may be subject to restrictions
on their denomination and distribution, see "Certain Restrictions—Notes
having a maturity of less than one year" above.

The Notes will be issued in such denominations as may be agreed between
the Issuer and the relevant Dealer save that the minimum denomination of
each Note will be such amount as may be allowed or required from time
to time by the relevant central bank (or equivalent body) or any laws or
regulations applicable to the relevant Specified Currency, see "Certain
Restrictions — Notes having a maturity of less than one year" above, and
save that the minimum denomination of each Note, other than an Exempt
Note, will be €100,000 (or, if the Notes are denominated in a currency
other than euro, the equivalent amount in such currency).

All payments in respect of the Notes will be made without deduction for
or on account of withholding taxes imposed by the Tax Jurisdiction, unless
required by law. In the event that any such deduction or withholding is
made, the Issuer will, save in the circumstances provided in Condition 7
and save in respect of Zero Coupon Notes, be required to pay additional
amounts to cover the amounts so deducted or withheld.

Beneficial Ownership Information (as defined in Condition 7) will be
required in respect of all Beneficial Owners of the Notes to grant any Tax
Relief, and withholding will be applicable (without a requirement on the
Issuer to gross-up such payments) if such information is not delivered to
the Issuer. For more information, see the sections on "Risk Factors —
Withholding tax on interest in the Czech Republic”, " Risk Factors — Risks
associated with evidencing the entitlement to tax relief of the beneficial
owner of income from the Notes™ and "Taxation".

The terms of the Notes will contain a negative pledge provision as further
described in Condition 3.

The terms of the Notes will contain a cross acceleration provision as
further described in Condition 9.

The Notes will constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and (subject
to the provisions of Condition 2) unsecured obligations of the Issuer and
will rank pari passu among themselves and (save for certain obligations
required to be preferred by law) equally with all other unsecured
obligations (other than subordinated obligations, if any) of the Issuer, from
time to time outstanding.

As further described in Condition 14, the Issuer, or any previous substituted
company, may at any time, without the consent of the holders of the Notes
of any Series, Receipts or Coupons, substitute for itself as principal debtor
under the Notes, Receipts or, Coupons any company that is a Subsidiary of
the Issuer, provided that no payment in respect of the Notes, Receipts or the
Coupons is at the relevant time overdue.

The Issuer has been rated A- (stable outlook) by Standard & Poor's and
Baal (negative outlook) by Moody's. The Programme has been rated A- by
Standard & Poor's and Baal by Moody's. Series of Notes issued under the
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Listing, Approval and admission to
trading:

Governing Law:

Selling Restrictions:

Use of Proceeds

Programme may be rated or unrated. Where a Series of Notes is rated, such
rating will be disclosed in the applicable Final Terms (or applicable Pricing
Supplement, in the case of Exempt Notes) and will not necessarily be the
same as the ratings assigned to the Programme. A security rating is not a
recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be subject to
suspension, reduction or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating
agency.

The CSSF has approved this document as a base prospectus. The
Luxembourg Stock Exchange has approved this document as a base
prospectus in respect of Exempt Notes. Application has been made for
Notes issued under the Programme to be listed on the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange.

Notes may be listed or admitted to trading, as the case may be, on other or
further stock exchanges or markets agreed between the Issuer and the
relevant Dealer in relation to the relevant Series. Notes which are neither
listed nor admitted to trading on any market may also be issued.

The applicable Final Terms (or applicable Pricing Supplement, in the case
of Exempt Notes) will state whether or not the relevant Notes are to be
listed and/or admitted to trading and, if so, on which stock exchanges
and/or markets.

The Notes and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in
connection with the Notes will be governed by, and shall be construed in
accordance with, English law.

There are restrictions on the offer, sale and transfer of the Notes in the
United States, the EEA (including the Czech Republic), the United
Kingdom, Japan and such other restrictions as may be required in
connection with the offering and sale of a particular Tranche of Notes, see
"Subscription and Sale" and "Transfer Restrictions".

The net proceeds from each issue of Notes will be applied by the Issuer
for its general corporate purposes, including the refinancing of its existing
indebtedness or a provision of loans to members of the CEZ Group, unless
otherwise specified in the applicable Final Terms or, in the case of Exempt
Notes, the applicable Pricing Supplement.
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RISK FACTORS

CEZ believes that the following factors may affect its ability to fulfil its obligations under the Notes. All of these factors
are contingencies which may or may not occur and CEZ is not in a position to express a view on the likelihood of any
such contingency occurring. In addition, factors which are material for the purpose of assessing the market risks associated
with the Notes are also described below.

CEZ believes that the factors described below represent the principal risks inherent in investing in the Notes, but the
inability of CEZ to pay interest, principal or other amounts on or in connection with the Notes may occur for other
reasons which may not be considered significant risks by CEZ based on information that is currently available to it or
which CEZ may not currently be able to anticipate. Prospective investors should also read the detailed information set
out elsewhere in this Base Prospectus and reach their own views prior to making any investment decision.

In this Base Prospectus, the most material risk factors have been presented at the beginning in each category. The order
of presentation of the remaining risk factors in each category in this Base Prospectus is not intended to be an indication
of the probability of their occurrence or of their potential effect on CEZ's ability to fulfil its obligations under the Notes
or an indication of their materiality compared to the risk factors in other categories.

This Base Prospectus also contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. The actual results
of the CEZ Group may differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of various
factors, including the risks described below and elsewhere in this Base Prospectus. Please see "Forward-Looking
Statements”.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR BUSINESS AND INDUSTRIES GENERALLY
Risks Related to Our Business and Operations

Risks associated with any decreases in the prices obtained for our electricity.

In the ordinary course of our business, we are exposed to the risk of decreases in the prices obtained for our
electricity. We sell the majority of our electricity at prices derived from European market prices, which are mainly driven
by the prices of EU emission allowances and the cost of raw materials, as well as by the European aggregate supply and
demand balance; available cross-border capacities; global oil, coal and gas prices and EU and national regulation of the
wholesale energy market. Furthermore, there is a strong correlation between the price of electricity in the Czech Republic
and the price of electricity in Germany, which is one of our export markets and the primary price-setting market in the
region. Changes in global commodity prices, available cross-border capacities (caused, for example, by renewable energy
sources or flow-based allocation) or a decline in electricity demand in Europe (for example, as a result of an economic
slowdown or downturn or increased energy efficiency), could decrease the price of electricity and could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

The operation of our power plants, in particular our nuclear power plants ("NPPs"), is characterized by high
fixed costs. Some of our costs are not faced by our non-nuclear competitors because they are unique to the nuclear power
generation industry. Our ability to generate sufficient turnover at a margin sufficient to cover our fixed costs is dependent,
in part, on favourable electricity prices and our overall sales and trading strategy. Because our costs are relatively fixed
in nature, they cannot be reduced in periods of low electricity prices. Therefore, in these circumstances, it is possible that
we may not produce sufficient cash flows from our electricity sales or trading activities, which could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

To mitigate such exposure, we have developed a hedging strategy of stabilizing margins by contracting for
deliveries of electricity to the wholesale market and to end-consumers up to six years ahead through the use of derivative
instruments and by concluding long-term contracts. We have also implemented a formal procedure that measures our
commodity risk, specifying a ceiling for the maximum acceptable risk. However, the hedging strategies we pursue may
create new risks and exposures, such as liquidity risk in connection with higher margin deposits (see "Our trading on
exchanges and with certain counterparties is subject to margining") and we cannot give any assurance that they will
function as intended. We cannot completely eliminate our exposure to potential decreases in electricity prices. Any
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significant decreases in electricity prices, or indeed any economic downturn, could reduce our revenues and have a
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Risks resulting from any reduction in demand for our electricity, heat, coal and gas as a result of poor economic
performance in Europe or otherwise.

In the ordinary course of our business, we are exposed to the risk of a reduction in demand for our electricity,
heat, coal and gas, which may occur as a result of any global financial and economic uncertainty. The deterioration of
macroeconomic conditions in Europe and globally may decrease consumption and industrial production. For instance, in
2023, domestic electricity consumption in the Czech Republic fell by 4.0% year-on-year, representing the largest drop in
household consumption in twenty years, and in 2024, consumption stagnated. Electricity consumption is strongly affected
by the level of economic activity in Europe, which, in turn, depends on the macroeconomic situation in Europe and
worldwide. Additionally, concern over geopolitical issues (including the rise of economic protectionism) or other
extraordinary events (such as large-scale natural disasters or global pandemics, such as the COVID-19 pandemic and
related restrictions) may also contribute to prolonged market volatility and instability. For instance, escalation of the
Russia-Ukraine conflict or escalation of other geopolitical tensions could further adversely impact, among other things,
global and local macroeconomic conditions (see also "—Risks connected with the Russia-Ukraine conflict and other
geopolitical tensions" below).

Any further reduction in demand for our electricity, heat, coal or gas as well as the materialization of any of the
above risks could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

The risks and costs associated with increasing our nuclear generation capacity.

New nuclear projects in the Czech Republic

In 2019, following analyses and discussions regarding available options for developing new nuclear projects in
the Czech Republic the government of the Czech Republic (the "Czech Government") decided that the construction of a
new unit at the Dukovany site was the preferable option (the "Dukovany Project™), with the construction of a new unit at
the Temelin site as a back-up or additional option which could be ready for acceleration in the short-term if necessary.
The Czech Government also legislated for a new law that sets out the conditions for the transition to low carbon energy
in the Czech Republic, which was approved and entered into force in October 2021 (act No. 367/2021 Coll.). Such law
is essential for the provision of state aid to the development of new nuclear units in the Czech Republic. The Czech
Government postponed the discussion of the USEP and cancelled the deadline for its adoption until the end of 2024. The
Czech Government requires more time to incorporate changes due to expected developments in the energy sector in the
coming months. The USEP from 2015 therefore remains valid. Any new Czech regulations or policies affecting the
development of new nuclear capacity and/or projects or changes to the USEP may affect our generation capacity and
ultimately our business and results of operations.

EU Regulation

In 2021, the European Commission has, based on the Regulation (EU) 2020/852 of the European Parliament
and of the Council of June 18, 2020 on the establishment of a framework to facilitate sustainable investment, and
amending Regulation (EU) 2019/2088, prepared delegated acts on reporting and climate mitigation and adaptation. The
role of nuclear energy and natural gas has been defined in the Complementary Climate Delegated Act, published on July
15, 2022, where the European Commission sets out the specific conditions and standards which must be met by nuclear
and gas activities. It is important that a motion to remove gas and nuclear investment products from the EU’s sustainable
investment taxonomy has been rejected. The inclusion of certain gas and nuclear activities in the EU Taxonomy is time-
limited and dependent on specific conditions and transparency requirements and a potential future exclusion of gas and
nuclear activities would have a significant negative impact on the current Czech projects.

Elektrarna Dukovany II, a. s.

In July 2020, the first two agreements (the Framework Agreement and Implementation Agreement for the first
phase of the Dukovany Project) were concluded between the Czech Republic, CEZ and Elektrarna Dukovany II, a. s.
("EDU 11"). They established the rules for cooperation between the parties, a framework for state support and the
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obligations of the parties in the first phase of the Dukovany Project. In 2021, the Czech Republic, CEZ, a. s., and EDU
Il negotiated the term sheet for a power purchase agreement, an investment agreement and a financing agreement for the
second phase of the Dukovany Project. However, the final set up for the second phase of the Dukovany Project and the
contractual relationships between the parties remain subject to negotiation which is expected to be closed towards the
end of the second quarter of 2025.

EDU Il selected, and the Czech Government confirmed in July 2024, Korea Hydro & Nuclear Power Co., Ltd.
("KHNP") (South Korea) as the preferred contractor for the supply of nuclear units for the Dukovany Project. The Czech
Government also decided to start negotiations on the construction of two units at the Dukovany site and on the possibility
of contracting binding options for additional new units at the Temelin site. However, the contractors that were rejected
in the tender for the Dukovany Project have appealed against the selection of KHNP and so the EPC contract cannot be
concluded until the appeal proceedings are resolved. Please see "Description of CEZ—Our Business—Generation
Business—Nuclear power generation—New Nuclear Sources—EDU 11" below for more information. The contract with
the selected EPC contractor is expected to be signed in the first half of 2025. According to the current schedule,
construction of the Dukovany Project should start in 2029, with the first and second units commissioned in 2036 and
2037, respectively. All further preparatory works are being carried out in line with an approved schedule and budget.
However, if the construction and commissioning of the Dukovany Project is delayed, the CEZ Group may be exposed to
additional unforeseen expenses.

Elektrarna Temelin 11, a.s.

As of the date of this Base Prospectus, the project for two new large reactors in Temelin (the " Temelin Project™)
is temporarily suspended pending the decision of the Czech Government regarding its need for new capacity and its
intention to provide financial support for this project. Notwithstanding the fact the Temelin Project's activities were
suspended, the development works can be promptly resumed and the discussions with the Czech Government about the
future activation of the Temelin Project are ongoing. A non-binding option for the construction of two new large reactors
in Temelin is part of a tender for the construction of a new NPP at the Dukovany site. Subject to the decision of the Czech
Government this option shall be converted into a binding one. It is expected that the Czech Government will decide about
further steps in June 2026. This decision, if one is made, will impact the CEZ Group’s operations and its future generation
capacity and may result in a significant capital expenditure by CEZ and may expose CEZ to significant risks associated
with building a NPP.

Small modular reactors ("SMR")

Since 2018, CEZ has been analysing the opportunity to develop and potentially build SMRs with power output
up to 500 MW based on light water reactor ("LWR") technology and to establish a SMR program (the "SMR Program').
The SMR Program should result in the construction of SMRs with a total output of 3 GWe by 2050. Potential SMR
designs have been analyzed in detail, and seven technologies were selected for further detailed assessment, which led to
the final selection of the SMR technological partner. On October 29, 2024, the CEZ Group and Rolls-Royce SMR LTD
("Rolls-Royce SMR") entered into an agreement whereby CEZ agreed to progressively acquire a stake of approximately
20% in Rolls-Royce SMR. On March 4, 2025, the transaction was formally completed and CEZ became a shareholder of
Rolls-Royce SMR. The two companies plan to collaborate in the deployment of Rolls-Royce SMR’s technology in the
UK, the Czech Republic, and potentially other countries as well. However, there is no guarantee that the project will be
successful or that it will bring the anticipated benefits (see "We may not successfully manage the risks associated with
expanding our operations and integrating newly acquired subsidiaries and we may face significant risks and liabilities
or rating downgrades as a result of such acquisitions." below).

Further development of the SMR Program is conditional upon a decision of the Czech Government regarding
its intention to provide financial support for SMR deployment in the Czech Republic.

The significant participation of the Czech Republic in the financing and guarantee mechanism is essential for a
positive decision to build new SMRs in the Czech Republic. Without the involvement of the Czech Republic or other
investors, the decision to build new SMRs may result in a significant capital expenditure investment on the part of CEZ
and may expose CEZ to significant risks associated with building a SMR.
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Risks connected with the Russia-Ukraine conflict and other geopolitical tensions.

The military incursion by Russia into Ukraine, economic sanctions against Russia and Russian interests imposed
subsequently by the EU, the United States and governments in several other countries and enhanced export controls on
certain products and industries as well as any measures taken by the governments of Russia or other countries in response
(such as restrictions in the supply of crude oil and gas to countries in the region and the EU), had a substantial impact on
the wholesale markets for electricity and gas, on the related supply relationships, macroeconomic conditions and resulted
in new regulatory actions taken by governments of the countries in which we operate.

While the future impact of the Russia-Ukraine conflict, along with related sanctions and countermeasures,
remains uncertain, they may contribute to continued volatility in electricity and gas market prices. Any material increase
in electricity or gas market prices could result in a need to procure substantial amounts of cash required to be deposited
as margins with the energy exchanges or trade counterparties (see "Our trading on exchanges and with certain
counterparties is subject to margining." below), and such increases in the market prices may result in new taxes or
mandatory caps on energy prices being imposed on us (see "Risks associated with any decreases in the prices obtained
for our electricity." above and "We could incur unforeseen taxes, tax penalties and sanctions.” below).

The Russia-Ukraine conflict, together with related sanctions, could also result in disruptions of our supplies,
particularly supplies of gas (see "Risks associated with the disruptions in the supply of coal, nuclear fuel, gas or other
raw materials, or an unexpected increase in their cost" below).

Further, on October 7, 2023, Hamas launched an attack on Israel. In response, Israel declared war against Hamas,
targeting the Gaza Strip. This war has caused a humanitarian crisis and may lead to further escalation of the conflict in
the region, a rise in oil and gas prices, more inflationary pressures and market volatility, among others. Further, political
tension between China and Taiwan, combined with potential spillover effects on the worldwide economic and political
situation can further elevate geopolitical risks. In addition, the current conflict in the Red Sea, in the wake of Houthi
attacks on international shipping, has the potential to disrupt global supply chains and unfold into a larger-scale conflict
involving other countries.

In addition, political tensions between the United States and China and the tensions between China and Taiwan,
combined with potential spillover effects on the worldwide economic and political situation, can further elevate
geopolitical risks. The United States government has imposed trade tariffs on certain imports to the United States and/or
trade counterparties. Over recent months, the United States government has implemented changes to its tariff structures,
including introducing baseline tariffs on a wide range of goods, as well as higher rates targeting specific countries and
product categories. These tariff changes have fluctuated, with certain measures being modified or temporarily suspended.
The United States government has also signalled the possibility of imposing tariffs on key sectors, including
semiconductors, pharmaceuticals, oil, steel, aluminium, and copper. As of the date of this Base Prospectus, the future
direction of the United States government's tariff policies, and retaliatory tariffs from affected countries, cannot be
anticipated but the imposition and continuation of tariffs—along with the risk of further increases in tariffs, additional
protectionist measures, or retaliatory tariffs from affected countries—could lead to increased prices of goods and services,
supply chain disruption, and heightened market volatility. Trade barriers may also adversely impact global trade flows,
affecting companies reliant on international supply chains or exports. Furthermore, escalating trade tensions, the
implementation of certain anticipated policies of the Trump administration in the United States, and the growing influence
of EU-sceptic parties across the EU, could contribute to broader economic and political uncertainty in the region where
the Group operates.

The ongoing conflicts (including trade conflicts) could adversely impact macroeconomic conditions, give rise
to regional instability, increase inflation, interest rates or our and our customers' costs, which could, as a result increase
the risk of default of our counterparties (see "Risk of default of or delay by any of our counterparties (which include our
partners, contractors, customers, subcontractors and suppliers as well as by financial and insurance institutions)."”
below).

The materialization of these risks could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and
financial condition.
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We may not be able to operate our coal power plants over a period at least equal to the current expected life.

In 2019, the Czech Government set up the Coal Commission, which advises on the termination of coal usage in
the Czech Republic. The Coal Commission proposed to terminate the usage of coal by 2038, but 2033 is also being
considered as a potential earlier target date. The Czech Government appointed in December 2021 stated in its policy
statement that it will create the conditions for the energy transformation and development of coal regions to allow for a
shift away from coal by 2033. While we are planning to gradually reduce the operations of our coal power plants, we are
currently planning to operate our last coal power plants and our mining business by 2033. However, given the evolving
energy market conditions, CEZ expects this to likely occur sooner, around 2030. We cannot give any assurance that the
proposal to terminate the use of coal will align with our plans, and the termination of coal usage in the Czech Republic
earlier than 2033 may have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. In
addition, our coal power plants will need to comply with more strict emission limits which may limit their operations.
We cannot give assurances that, if the relevant coal power plants are not modernized on time to comply with the
applicable emission limits, the relevant administrative authorities would grant the operator the necessary temporary
exemption from exceeding the applicable emission limits. The materialization of these risks could have a material adverse
effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Future privatization, reorganization or nationalization of CEZ may result in a credit downgrade or may affect our
ability to repay debt.

The Czech Republic, through the Ministry of Finance, holds approximately 69.8% of all shares in CEZ as of the
date of this Base Prospectus. We cannot give any assurance that the Czech Government or any future government of the
Czech Republic will not ultimately seek to undertake a partial or full privatization of CEZ resulting in the sale of the
Czech Republic's entire shareholding in CEZ or a part thereof. We cannot give any assurance that the Czech Government
or any future government of the Czech Republic (as CEZ's controlling shareholder) will not ultimately seek to undertake
any reorganization of CEZ, by way of a de-merger, spin-off, or otherwise. It is not possible to rule out that following
such a reorganization of CEZ, CEZ will cease to be controlled by the Czech Government. We also cannot give any
assurance that the Czech Government will not seek to undertake a nationalization of CEZ or a part thereof.

The credit rating currently assigned to CEZ by the rating agencies is based in part on the opinion of the rating
agencies that the Czech Republic may potentially provide support to CEZ in the event of financial distress. This rating
could come under pressure, potentially leading to a downgrade, if the Czech Republic is no longer a controlling
shareholder or if the Czech Republic seeks a split of CEZ and the credit risk of CEZ increases as a result of such
reorganization. In addition, in the event that the Czech Republic ceases to be the controlling shareholder, it cannot be
predicted who would become the new controlling shareholder, or if there would be one at all, and this, too, may negatively
affect our credit rating. If CEZ or a part thereof is nationalized, its credit rating could come under pressure. The
materialization of any of the above risks could affect our ability to make repayments on our debt or otherwise have a
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Risk of impairment losses in connection with our existing or acquired operations and our investments.

We may incur impairment losses in connection with our assets or investments mainly due to adverse regulatory
actions and adverse market conditions. In 2024 and 2023, we performed impairment tests of goodwill and tests of other
non-current assets where there was an indication that the carrying amounts could be impaired. Recognized impairments
or reversals mainly resulted from the increase in the price of the emission allowances on the market, the increase in the
price and demand for coal, the increase in the applied discount rates, or lower than expected profitability of the selected
assets. In 2024, we recognized total impairment losses (excluding impairments of assets held for sale) of CZK (2,558)
million, which consisted of CZK (1,879) million in relation to our mining company, Severoceské doly, a.s., CZK (602)
million in relation to CEZ Distribuce, a.s., CZK (75) million in relation to our on-shore wind projects in France and CZK
(38) million in relation to CEZ Prodej, a.s. Furthermore, we have recognized an impairment reversal in the amount of
CZK 14 million in relation to Energetické centrum s.r.0., and CZK 22 million in relation to other companies of the CEZ
Group. In 2023, we recognized total impairment losses (excluding impairments of assets held for sale) of CZK (5,300)
million, which consisted of CZK (4,985) million in relation to our mining company, Severo¢eské doly, a. s., and CZK
(23) million incurred in relation to Energetické centrum s.r.0., and CZK (292) million in relation to our wind farms in
Germany. For more information on the impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets including
goodwill in 2024 and 2023, please refer to Note 7 to the 2024 Financial Statements. Any future adverse changes in the

20



economic and regulatory environment or market conditions of our reporting segments could result in further impairment
charges, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We may not be able to operate our NPPs over a period at least equal to the current expected life.

In the Czech Republic, certain authorizations are required to operate NPPs. The operation of NPPs is subject to
numerous EU and national regulatory requirements and political policies, which are in turn sensitive to public opinion
and EU development risks. We cannot give any assurance that we will successfully obtain the necessary authorizations
at the appropriate time, or at all, that the duration of such authorizations will not change, or that we will not be subject to
conditions that require us to make significant capital expenditures. Moreover, we cannot give any assurance, particularly
in the event of an incident affecting the safety or operation of our facilities, that our NPPs will actually be operated for
such period of time, or at all.

If we are unable to operate any of our nuclear plants, or if any of our NPPs are decommissioned before the end
of their currently expected operating lives, we may be required to make additional investments to replace the loss of
generation capacity or purchase electricity on the wholesale market and the payment of decommissioning costs would be
accelerated. The inability to operate our NPPs as expected would have a significant material adverse effect on our profit
margin and cash flow from operations. Furthermore, should we be unable to operate our NPPs over a period at least equal
to the currently expected period (please see "Description of CEZ — Our Business —Generation Business — Nuclear power
generation — Czech Republic — Dukovany NPP and Temelin NPP"), we might not accumulate appropriate cash surpluses
for decommissioning of such power plants. As a result, the materialization of any of the above risks could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Risk of default of or delay by any of our counterparties (which include our partners, contractors, customers,
subcontractors and suppliers as well as by financial and insurance institutions).

We face the risk of potential default of or delay by our counterparties (which include our partners, contractors,
subcontractors, customers and suppliers), especially in cases of financial hardship or bankruptcy. Such risk may increase
during adverse economic conditions caused by, among other things, increases in the electricity, gas and/or other
commodities’ market prices or increased interest rates. Any default by our counterparties may affect the cost and
completion of our projects, the quality of our work, the supply of certain critical products or services, the recovery of our
capital expenditures or expose us to reputational risk, business continuity risk and the loss of important contracts, as well
as to substantial additional costs, particularly in cases where we would have to pay contractual penalties, find alternative
counterparties or complete work ourselves, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

Our revenues are primarily generated by sales to end-consumers or wholesale partners and state-owned
customers across European markets. There is a risk that some of our key counterparties, end-consumers or suppliers could
default on or dispute their contractual obligations towards us, which could have a material adverse effect on our business,
results of operations and financial condition. Furthermore, the majority of our forward sales are executed on the OTC
market. The credit quality of our counterparties may deteriorate during adverse economic conditions, which may threaten
the results of our hedging strategy and proprietary trading, which in turn could have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations and financial condition.

We conduct treasury operations with major European banks and with local regional banks in all countries in
which we operate. Given the potential economic recession in Europe and its potential impact on Europe's financial
services industry, there is a risk that some of our financial counterparties might default, which could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our ability to supply electricity is dependent upon the transmission system and our reliance on third parties.

The transmission of electricity from our power plants and to our distribution networks is dependent on the
infrastructure of the transmission systems in the countries in which we operate. We have no control over the operation of
these transmission systems and we must rely on independent third-party transmission system operators in the countries
in which we operate, including CEPS, a.s., the state-owned transmission system operator in the Czech Republic. Any
failure of the transmission systems in the countries in which we operate, including as a result of natural disasters,
insufficient maintenance or inadequate development, could prevent us from distributing electricity from our power plants
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to end-consumers, which in turn could have a material adverse effect on our reputation, business, results of operations
and financial condition.

Risks associated with the disruptions in the supply of coal, nuclear fuel, gas or other raw materials, or an unexpected
increase in their cost.

In the ordinary course of our business, we are exposed to the risk of disruptions in the supply of coal, nuclear
fuel, gas or other raw materials, and to increases in their cost. Our generation operations depend on obtaining deliveries
of adequate supplies of raw materials on a timely basis and are therefore vulnerable to changes in the supply of the raw
materials, including lignite, coal, nuclear fuel and gas. Any significant shortages or interruption in the supply of raw
materials or increases in their costs could disrupt our generation operations and increase our cost of raw materials, which
could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Nuclear fuel for our Dukovany NPP is supplied by the Russian company TVEL under a contract valid until 2028
while the nuclear fuel for our Temelin NPP is supplied by Westinghouse Electric Sweden AB and Framatome GmbH.
For more information, please see "Description of CEZ — Nuclear Fuel". The current political situation in Ukraine and
Russia (see "— Risks connected with the Russia-Ukraine conflict and other geopolitical tensions"” above) may lead to
shortages or an interruption in the supply of nuclear fuel to Dukovany NPP. Economic sanctions and other regulations
imposed by the EU and other countries as a result of the conflict involving Russia and Ukraine may disrupt supplies or
affect the prices of nuclear fuel for our power plants. Should the conflict in Ukraine or other international locations further
escalate, it is difficult to anticipate the extent to which current or future sanctions could increase our costs, disrupt our
supplies or otherwise affect our operations. Even though we have constructed a strategic inventory of fabricated fuel at
our Dukovany NPP, we cannot give any assurance that any shortages or interruptions in the supply of nuclear fuel will
not have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Even though, as of the date of this Base Prospectus, CEZ does not have any contracts for gas deliveries with
Russian entities, it procures gas for its customers and its gas power plants in the wholesale European market, which is
still partially dependent on supplies of gas from Russia. For more information, please see “Description of CEZ — Gas”.
Although the direct procurement of gas by CEZ from Gazprom Export LLC ("Gazprom") is nil, the current political
situation in Ukraine and Russia (see “Risks connected with the Russia-Ukraine conflict and other geopolitical tensions”
above) may lead to shortages or an interruption in the supply of gas in the European market. Economic sanctions and
other regulations imposed by the EU and other countries as a result of the conflict involving Russia and Ukraine may
disrupt supplies or affect the prices of gas for our power plants and customers and may further lead to different sorts of
governmental intervention in the related markets.

Risk of failures, breakdowns, planned or unplanned outages as well as natural disasters or sabotage at our power
plants (including our nuclear reactors and hydropower facilities) or in our distribution infrastructure.

Our power plants (including our coal-fired heat and power plants, nuclear reactors, wind power plants and
hydropower facilities), distribution infrastructure, mining facilities and information systems controlling these facilities
could be subject to failure, breakdowns, unplanned outages, capacity limitations, system loss, breaches of security or
physical damage due to natural disasters (such as storms, floods or earthquakes), sabotage, terrorism, war and armed
conflicts, computer viruses, cyber blackmailing, fuel interruptions, shortage of workforce due to pandemics and other
causes. With respect to our nuclear reactors, any nuclear accident or failure at our NPPs could result in us incurring
significant losses due to, among other things, a potential shut-down of the nuclear facility and the resulting loss of
generation capacity, remedial and replacement expenses and negative publicity from such an accident. The main risk
associated with our hydropower facilities is the risk of damage during floods. We cannot give any assurance that accidents
will not occur or that the preventative measures taken by us will be fully effective in all cases, particularly in relation to
external events that are not within our control, such as floods and other natural disasters.

Any physical damage to our facilities may be costly to repair and we may not have insurance coverage for all
potential losses or our insurance claims may be subject to challenge or delay. In particular, due to our contractual
obligations to deliver electricity at pre-established prices and quantities, if we suffer a reduction in electricity generation,
we may be required to purchase electricity in the open market that may be at unfavourable prices. As a result, any failure,
breakdown or unplanned outages at our power plants or any failure or interruption of our distribution infrastructure could
have a material adverse effect on our reputation, business, results of operations and financial condition.
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In addition, we may need to temporarily shut down some of our power plants and incur expenses in connection
with inspections, maintenance or repair activities in addition to those that we currently conduct, including such additional
activities that the governmental authorities in the countries in which we operate may require us to conduct.

Due to the complexity of operating nuclear and other power stations, we are not able to eliminate the risk of
unplanned outages and we cannot predict the timing or impact of these outages with certainty. Our emergency response,
disaster recovery and crisis management measures may not effectively protect us from these events. Any service
disruption may cause loss in electricity generation, customer dissatisfaction and may lead to liability for damages, the
imposition of penalties and other unforeseen costs and expenses, which could have a material adverse effect on our
reputation, business, results of operations and financial condition.

Risk of malfunction, security breach or disruption of the CEZ Group's IT systems, cyber security issues.

Information and communication technology plays an important role in the CEZ Group's business operations.
The CEZ Group operates highly complex and sophisticated information systems (such as servers, networks, applications
and databases) which are essential for the everyday operations of its business. The CEZ Group is routinely exposed to IT
risks in connection with the development, implementation and application of its IT systems. In addition, there is a risk
that there might be unauthorized access to the CEZ Group's sensitive data by third parties and improper use of such data,
which may lead to the loss of company sensitive and confidential information and may result in a breach of applicable
data protection regulations. As a result, any malfunction, breach or unauthorized use of the CEZ Group's IT systems
could have a material adverse effect on our Group's reputation, business, results of operations and financial condition.

We could incur significant losses in the event of a nuclear accident.

In accordance with the Vienna Convention, the Czech Nuclear Act 1997 provides that the operator of a nuclear
facility is liable for any damage caused by a nuclear accident up to CZK 8 billion per accident and is obliged to maintain
insurance coverage for potential liabilities for nuclear damage in an amount not less than CZK 2 billion. We have
insurance policies in place for both the Dukovany and Temelin NPPs, which provide coverage at these amounts.
However, notwithstanding any limitation of liability under the Czech Nuclear Act 1997 and any additional coverage
under our insurance policies, any nuclear accident or failure at our NPPs could result in us incurring significant losses in
excess of such amounts due to, among other things, a potential shut-down of the nuclear facility and the resulting loss of
generation capacity, remedial and replacement expenses and negative publicity from such an accident. As a result, any
nuclear accident suffered by our NPPs could have a material adverse effect on our reputation, business, results of
operations and financial condition.

We may not successfully implement our key strategies.

The energy markets continue their transition from the conventional energy sources to renewables and
decentralized energy. Our key strategies include the efficient operation, optimal utilization of our conventional generation
portfolio, modern distribution and a care for customers' energy needs, the development of new energy in the Czech
Republic and the development of energy services in Europe. Moreover, as part of our 2019 strategy, an accelerated
VISION 2030 "Clean Energy for Tomorrow" was introduced in May 2021. As part of VISION 2030 strategy, the CEZ
Group defined strategic objectives for 2025 and 2030 reflecting the EU's decarbonization vision and set specific ambitions
in the areas of social responsibility and sustainable development (see " Description of CEZ—Our Strategy").

We face many risks that could adversely affect our ability to implement our key strategies, such as changes in
legal and regulatory frameworks, increases in generation and distribution costs, future developments affecting the
electricity infrastructure in Europe, technological changes, customer needs, competition in the markets in which we
operate, political and economic developments affecting Europe, and the reliability and creditworthiness of our partners
and customers. Any failure to implement our key strategies successfully could have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations and financial condition.
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We may not successfully manage the risks associated with expanding our operations and integrating newly acquired
subsidiaries and we may face significant risks and liabilities or rating downgrades as a result of such acquisitions.

Since our foundation, we have expanded our operations through mergers and acquisitions (please see
"Description of CEZ—History and Development of the CEZ Group"). We continue to evaluate potential investment
opportunities and we may decide to expand our operations both domestically and in other countries or in new markets
(please see "Description of CEZ—Our Strategy"). We face many risks inherent in expanding our operations and doing
business on an international level, such as unexpected changes in regulatory requirements; default by our joint venture
partners; trade barriers, including import and export controls, tariffs, customs and duties; difficulties in staffing and
managing foreign operations; longer payment cycles and problems in collecting accounts receivable; political instability,
expropriation, nationalization, war and other political risks; fluctuations in currency exchange rates; foreign exchange
controls which restrict or prohibit repatriation of funds; technology export and import restrictions or prohibitions; and
potentially adverse tax consequences. Any failure to manage the risks associated with expanding our operations could
have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

In March 2024, CEZ concluded an agreement for the acquisition of a 55.21% stake in Czech Gas Networks S.a
r.1. for the purchase price of EUR 846.5 million. Czech Gas Networks S.a r.1. is the indirect 100% owner of GasNet, s.r.0.
("GasNet"), the leading gas distribution infrastructure operator based in the Czech Republic, and GasNet Sluzby, s.r.0.
(together with GasNet the "GasNet Group™) The Czech Ministry of Industry and Trade granted approval for the
transaction on May 9, 2024, and the European Commission granted its approval for the transaction on August 8, 2024.
The transaction was formally completed on August 28, 2024.

Furthermore, on March 4, 2025, CEZ became a shareholder of Rolls-Royce SMR. Subject to terms and
conditions of the transaction documentation, CEZ will progressively acquire approximately a 20% interest in the Rolls-
Royce SMR. The two companies plan to collaborate in deploying the Rolls-Royce SMR’s technology (see "Risk
Factors—The risks and costs associated with increasing our nuclear generation capacity—Small modular reactors”
above).

Any failure to integrate Czech Gas Networks S.a r.1. or GasNet, or failure to successfully deploy Rolls-Royce
SMR’s technology, could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

In addition, although due diligence reviews are undertaken in relation to our acquisitions, such reviews may not
reveal all existing or potential risks and liabilities and we cannot give any assurance that our acquisitions are not or will
not become subject to liabilities of which we are unaware. While warranties and indemnities are generally obtained where
practical and appropriate, we cannot give any assurance that we would be able to enforce our contractual or other rights
against the relevant sellers or that any warranties and indemnities would be adequate to cover potential liabilities. The
acquisition of businesses or assets with risks or liabilities of which we are or may be unaware, or do not correctly assess
or assume, or against which we do not obtain full legal protection, could have a material adverse effect on our business,
results of operations and financial condition.

We cannot give any assurance that we will successfully integrate our previous acquisitions in an efficient and
effective manner or that we will be able to identify, consummate and integrate future acquisitions. Our failure to integrate
our acquisitions and to manage any of the risks and costs associated with such integration, could have a material adverse
effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

In addition, any future acquisition of highly leveraged companies might result in worsening of our financial
condition and therefore, lead to rating downgrades in the future.

Competition risk in the markets in which we operate.

The energy markets in the majority of countries in which we operate are fully liberalized or in the final stages
of liberalization. As a result of this liberalization, new competitors may enter many of the markets in which we operate.
In relation to electricity, we compete in both the retail electricity market and the wholesale electricity market. In a
liberalized market, all suppliers have the right to offer their electricity and all customers have the right to choose their
electricity supplier at their own discretion and we cannot give any assurance that customers will select us or that our
customers will not change their suppliers. The situation in the gas retail market is comparable.
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Since January 1, 2006, the Czech electricity market has been fully liberalized and all end-consumers are
considered to be eligible customers who may freely choose their supplier of electricity based on the current market
conditions. If our existing customers or potential new customers purchase electricity from other suppliers, our revenues
and our market share will decrease. Our ability to develop our business and improve our financial results may be
constrained by new competition and we may be unable to offset the financial effects of decreases in production and sales
of electricity through efficiency improvements, or expansion into new business areas or markets. As a result, any increase
in competition in the markets in which we operate could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

Due to our position in the Czech market, we are subject to the risk of having our future expansion limited more than
our competitors.

According to the Czech Energy Regulatory Office ("ERQ"), in the year ended December 31, 2024, we accounted
for approximately 66% of electricity generated and 49% of installed electricity generation capacity in the Czech Republic,
we distributed approximately 64% of the total electricity consumed in the regional distribution areas in the Czech
Republic and sold 34% of the total net electricity consumed in the Czech Republic. In addition, we are the largest producer
of brown coal in the Czech Republic, accounting for approximately 59% of the total volume of brown coal produced in
the Czech Republic for the year ended December 31, 2024 and after the acquisition of the GasNet Group in August 2024,
we became the largest distributor of gas in the Czech Republic, accounting for approximately 80% of the total volume of
gas distributed in the Czech Republic for the year ended December 31, 2024.

Due to our market position, we may be particularly exposed to the risk of lawsuits or proceedings on the grounds
of alleged non-compliance with competition, anti-trust and non-discrimination rules, and such lawsuits and proceedings
could be decided against our interest, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations
and financial condition. In order to enhance competition, the competent authorities or certain governments could also
take decisions contrary to our interests. Such decisions could limit our expansion and growth and, thus, have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Risks resulting from our failure to expand and diversify our non-nuclear generation capacity.

Our current generation capacity predominantly consists of coal and nuclear generation. We aim to expand our
existing non-nuclear power generation as well as diversify our generation capacity in order to reduce CO; emissions,
increase the flexibility of our generation facilities and increase our generation potential to meet future demand. We hope
to achieve this by investing in the replacement of coal-fired power plants, building new wind and PV power plants and
increasing our renewable power generation capacity in general. All of these investments require significant capital
expenditures and substantial managerial attention. Furthermore, we may incur additional costs and face a loss of revenues
if we fail to complete such expansion and diversification projects within budget and on schedule. Our failure to properly
control these capital expenditures may result in a higher utilization of our debt capacity and our inability to contract the
relevant supplies on terms substantially comparable to those of our competitors, which could lower the competitiveness
of our generation fleet. Any failure to expand and diversify our non-nuclear generation capacity could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our revenues and results of operations are subject to climatic conditions and seasonal variations that are not within
our control.

Electricity and heat consumption is seasonal and is mainly affected by climatic conditions. In Central and South
East Europe electricity consumption is generally higher during the cold winter months. However, when winters are
warmer than expected, as was the case in 2014 and between 2018 - 2024, demand for gas, heat and power is typically
lower than forecasted. Electricity generation may also depend on climatic conditions, such as droughts or heat waves,
which may limit generation due to the requirements to observe certain temperature limits for rivers, requirements in
connection with the cooling of power plants, or speed and direction of winds or sunshine for the generation of renewable
energy. Consequently, our income reflects the seasonal character of the demand for electricity and may be adversely
affected by significant variations in climatic conditions. We may need to compensate for a reduction in the availability
of electricity generated by economical means by using other means with a higher generation cost or by being required to
access the wholesale markets at higher prices, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations and financial condition.
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Some of our generation operations depend on the use of brown coal as a primary fuel source, which produces
significantly more emissions than other fuel sources, and exposes us to the risk that our operations will become
politically unpopular or the subject of restrictive regulations or private legal action.

We operate power plants that depend on the use of brown coal as a primary fuel source. Brown coal produces
significantly more emissions, most notably CO,, than other primary fuel sources, such as natural gas or nuclear fuel.
If brown coal-fired heat and power generating activities continue to be subject to increasing public and political
opposition, our business could be negatively affected. In 2019, the Czech Government initiated the establishment of the
Coal Commission, which has been tasked with preparing an assessment of different scenarios that should lead to the
decrease in the use of coal as a fuel source (see "We may not be able to operate our coal power plants over a period at
least equal to the current expected life." above). For instance, we could face increased costs of burning brown coal as a
primary fuel source, in selling the power produced from brown coal, or as a result of potentially adverse environmental
regulations, increased taxes, fees or fines, hindered access to financing, or private lawsuits against the CEZ Group. We
may be adversely affected not only by measures that directly impede the use of brown coal in heat or power production,
but also by measures that promote other fuel sources or alternative technologies for heat and power production (such as
renewable energy).

We are exposed to financial risks and market volatility.

During the normal course of our business, we are exposed to the risk of energy price volatility, as well as interest
rate, commaodity price, currency and counterparty risks. While we partially hedge these risks, we may incur losses if any
of the variety of instruments and strategies we use to hedge exposures is not effective (see also "We conduct our business

in several different currencies and are exposed to foreign currency risks.", "Our trading on exchanges and with certain
counterparties is subject to margining.” and "External financing may increase our interest expense." below).

We face risks from our energy trading operations. In general, we seek to hedge risks associated with volatile
energy-related prices (including the price of CO; emission certificates) by entering into fixed price bilateral contracts and
futures contracts on commodity exchanges and swaps and options traded in over the counter financial markets. To the
extent we are unable to hedge these risks, enter into hedging contracts that fail to address our exposure or incorrectly
anticipate market movements, we may suffer significant losses which could have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations and financial condition.

We are also exposed to other financial risks. Financial markets experienced volatility as a result of the outbreak
of COVID-19, the Russia-Ukraine conflict, and more recently as a result of new trade tariffs and retaliatory tariffs (see
also "— Risks connected with the Russia-Ukraine conflict and other geopolitical tensions." above) as well as other regional
conflicts and markets may become even more volatile in the future. The value of our assets and financial investments,
including joint ventures, is sensitive to the performance of the European and global economies. During 2022, as a result
of extraordinary inflation rates, central banks started to increase interest rates. As inflation levels gradually decreased
during 2023 and 2024 in most countries in which the CEZ Group operates and are nearing central bank targets in most
markets, the market has witnessed interest rate cuts. However, as inflation rates remain the same in some areas, the pace
of interest rate decreases may be slower than currently expected. Any increase in interest rates may result in increased
costs of our funding and we may face liquidity problems. For example, we hold substantial amounts in certain government
bonds, particularly Czech Government bonds. As of December 31, 2024, we held government bonds with an aggregate
fair value of approximately CZK 26.8 billion. Any future volatility in the capital markets could negatively influence the
value of those assets, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial
condition. We are dependent on debt capital markets to fund the majority of our working capital and capital expenditures.
Any volatility in the debt capital markets could negatively affect this source of funding, which could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

In addition, any future adverse changes in the economic and regulatory environment of our reporting segments
could adversely affect our estimated future cash flows and discount rates and could result in impairment charges to
goodwill, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.
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We are exposed to changes in the way emission allowances are allocated, including the conditions related to free
allocations, as well as volatility in the market prices of emission allowances that we need to acquire.

In 2005, the EU introduced the EU Emission Trading Scheme (the "EU ETS"). Within the EU ETS, each
greenhouse gas emitter was allocated a certain cap by the national government, which was in turn allocated a national
cap by the European Commission, within which it was allowed to emit greenhouse gases (such as CO», methane and
nitrogen monoxide). Any emissions in excess of this cap had to be counterbalanced by emission allowances acquired in
the open market at a market price, otherwise the emitter was penalized. Allocations were fixed for a specific trading
period.

Since 2020, we have to buy all of the emission allowances on the market. Therefore, our costs related to CO;
emission allowances purchases are exposed to market fluctuations, which may increase significantly due to factors such
as regulatory changes, rising demand, or reduced supply of allowances. Such increase could have a material adverse
effect on our business, results of operations and financial conditions. Different principles apply to the EU ETS regarding
heat. In compliance with Article 10a of the revised EU ETS Directive, district heating combined heat and power plants
will receive free allowances for heat supply from 2013 to 2030. However, in 2020 changes were made in the regulation,
the result of which is free allocation in the heating sector (excluding district heating) covering at maximum 30% of
emissions produced by the respective entity for the period 2021 - 2026 and then a gradual decrease to 0% over the period
2026 - 2030.

As such, we are vulnerable to risks relating to volatility in the price of CO, emission allowances. To mitigate
this volatility risk, we have in place a hedging strategy of acquiring a certain volume of emission allowances along with
electricity sale. Nevertheless, in the event of potential decreases in the price of emission allowances, this hedging strategy
itself could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Within Phase IV of the EU ETS (2021 - 2030), the overall number of emission allowances was initially set to
decline at an annual rate of 2.2% from 2021 onwards. However, the linear reduction factor has then been increased to
4.3% for the period 2024 — 2027 and to 4.4% for the period 2028 - 2030. However, energy intensive sectors with a high
risk of relocation outside of the EU (e.g. the mining of hard coal, extraction of crude petroleum, manufacturing of cement)
are to be allocated free allowances until 2030 at 100%. A continual decrease in the allocation of emission allowances
across the EU and a greater decrease in the allocation of emission allowances within the Phase 111 and Phase IV of the
EU ETS (please see "Regulation — Czech Republic — Carbon Compliance (Emission Allowances)") as well as any increase
in the price of CO emission allowances, may result in a substantial increase in our variable generation costs making the
price of electricity offered by us uncompetitive, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

We are exposed to risks on the wholesale energy, CO2 emission allowances, green and other certificates markets.

We operate in the deregulated energy markets in Europe through our trading activities. As a result, we are
exposed to price fluctuations in the wholesale energy markets (electricity, gas, coal, crude oil) as well as in the CO;
emission allowances market and green certificates markets. These fluctuations are particularly significant in the current
context of major tensions and volatility on the energy markets. Any shortage of products or lack of liquidity could limit
our ability to close our exposure to risk in the energy market quickly. In addition, these markets are still largely not
integrated, mostly as a result of the lack of cross-border interconnections, and may experience significant increases or
decreases in price movements and liquidity crises that are difficult to predict. Any such fluctuations in the wholesale
energy markets could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

The growth of an integrated European electricity market may be slowed by a lack of cross-border transmission system
interconnections.

The growth of an integrated European electricity market is inhibited by a lack of cross-border interconnections.
This situation limits exchange capacity between operators in different countries, notably the capacity to rapidly adapt
supply to demand (so called "blackout risk™), and allows for persistent price differences between the different countries,
which would be significantly reduced in a more efficient and integrated European market. It also impedes the emergence
of efficient operators with a European dimension as it limits the options for synergies between companies within the same
group, but located on different sides of a border. Although there are currently several projects to develop interconnections,
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their construction has nonetheless been slowed down, mainly by environmental, regulatory and local acceptability
considerations. The absence of adequate interconnections between countries where we are based or the failure of such
interconnections to develop at a sufficient pace, may limit industrial synergies which we intend to achieve or cause
network interruptions in countries in which we operate, which could have a material adverse effect on our business,
results of operations and financial condition.

Our equipment and components of our power plants are subject to gradual deterioration over time.

The continual operations of our power plants, as well as natural processes, such as erosion and corrosion, have
an impact on the condition of some of our equipment and components of our power plants. The impact of such operation
and processes tends to increase as our plants, equipment and components grow older. As part of our strategy, we have
recently finalized a significant portfolio renewal program aimed at modernizing our coal power plant portfolio. Although
we seek to implement new inspections and maintenance practices, including proactively repairing or replacing equipment
and components before they fail, as well as our portfolio renewal program, we cannot give any assurance that we will be
successful in our efforts, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial
condition.

We are subject to a variety of litigation and regulatory proceedings and we cannot give any assurances as to their
outcome or the sufficiency of our provisions.

In the ordinary course of our business, we are subject to numerous civil, administrative and arbitration
proceedings (see "Description of CEZ — Legal Proceedings" below). We create provisions for contingent liabilities
relating to selected proceedings, calculated based on the advice of our internal and external legal counsel. Our separate
audited financial statements show accrued provisions for legal and commercial disputes in the amount of CZK 627 million
as of December 31, 2024 and CZK 617 million as of December 31, 2023. However, we have not recorded provisions in
respect of all legal, regulatory and administrative proceedings to which we are a party or in which we may become a
party. In particular, we have not recorded provisions in cases in which the outcome is unquantifiable or which we
currently expect to be ruled in our favour. As a result, we cannot give any assurance that our provisions will be adequate
to cover all amounts payable by us in connection with such proceedings. Our failure to quantify sufficient provisions or
to assess the likely outcome of any proceedings against us could have a material adverse effect on our business, results
of operations and financial condition.

We may become liable for increased decommissioning costs or be required to keep additional amounts as restricted
funds for the decommissioning of our NPPs and for the decommissioning and reclamation of our mines and the
remediation of mining damage.

As an owner and operator of electricity and heat facilities, we may in the future incur significant costs and
expenses in connection with the decommissioning of such facilities. Under Czech law, we are required to reserve
restricted funds to meet the expected future costs of decommissioning our NPPs. We pay these funds into nuclear escrow
accounts that can be used only to meet decommissioning costs with the permission of the Czech Repository Authority.
In 2024 and 2023, the payments to the nuclear escrow account for our NPPs amounted to CZK 1,633 million and
CZK 1,673 million, respectively. We cannot give any assurance that amounts held by us as restricted funds will not
increase as a result of increased projected costs of decommissioning or as a result of other factors determining the amount
of our annual contributions. In addition, if such amounts are not sufficient to meet future decommissioning costs, we may
be required to pay additional amounts, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations
and financial condition.

In addition, we are involved in open pit mining in the Czech Republic and are required to keep funds to
decommission mines at the end of their operating lives. In addition, Czech law relating to open pit mining also requires
us to remediate land affected by our mining operations. The cost of remediation depends on the type of remediation and
is subject to periodical review. In addition to the creation of remediation reserves, the Czech authorities may also require
other payments relating to mining licenses. The methodology for determining the remediation costs and such other
payments may change as might the requirements relating to the collateralization of obligations. The materialization of
any of the above risks could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.
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Risk of an increase in the cost of disposing of radioactive waste.

Under Czech law, we are required to contribute funds to a nuclear account administered by the Ministry of
Finance (the "Czech Nuclear Account™) based on the amount of electricity produced by our NPPs. The Czech Nuclear
Account is used by the Czech Radioactive Waste Repository Authority (the "Czech Repository Authority") to centrally
organize, supervise and take responsibility for the disposal of nuclear waste, as well as all final disposal facilities. We
cannot give any assurance that the Czech Government will not increase the contributions that we are required to pay into
the Czech Nuclear Account or that cash amounts accrued in the Czech Nuclear Account will be sufficient to fund the
disposal of radioactive waste. Any requirement to pay additional amounts into the Czech Nuclear Account could have a
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our insurance coverage may not be adequate.

We have limited property and machinery insurance for our significant assets, including the Dukovany and
Temelin NPPs. We cannot give any assurance that our business will not be adversely affected by the costs of accidents
or other unexpected occurrences at our facilities for which insurance coverage is not available, has not been obtained by
us or is not sufficient, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial
condition.

Risk of a strike or other labour disruption at our facilities.

A substantial number of our employees are represented by labour unions and all CEZ employees were covered
by our collective bargaining agreement valid until December 31, 2027 (please see "Description of CEZ—Employees").
This agreement includes provisions that limit our ability to realize cost savings from restructuring initiatives such as plant
closures and reductions in workforce. Since our foundation we have not experienced any strikes or work stoppages,
however, any strikes, threats of strikes, or other resistance or work stoppages in the future, particularly those affecting
our facilities in the Czech Republic, could impair our ability to implement further measures to reduce costs and improve
production efficiencies in furtherance of our strategy, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results
of operations and financial condition.

We may not be able to hire, train or retain a sufficient number of qualified staff.

Experienced and capable personnel in the energy industry are in high demand and we face significant
competition in our principal markets to recruit such personnel. Consequently, when our experienced employees leave our
business or retire, we may have difficulty, and incur additional costs, replacing them. In addition, the loss of any member
of our senior management team may result in a loss of organizational focus, poor execution of our operations and
corporate strategy and our inability to identify and execute potential strategic initiatives in the future, including strategies
relating to the growth of our business. Further, with effect from January 1, 2017, the Czech Nuclear Act 2016 significantly
extended the number of our employees that must be subject to security clearance from the Czech National Security
Authority. The extended security clearance requirement could significantly restrict our hiring policy and further limit an
already limited number of candidates qualified for the respective positions. Our failure to hire, train or retain a sufficient
number of experienced, capable and reliable personnel, especially senior and middle management with appropriate
professional qualifications, or to recruit skilled professional and technical staff in pace with our growth, could have a
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We have no control over the security and operational processes of the national registries for emission allowances and
green and other certificates within Europe.

We own a significant amount of emission allowances and emission credits, as well as green and other certificates
which are registered as intangible assets by national registries in individual EU countries. National registries are operated
by independent governmental bodies and are governed by EU law. We have no control or influence over the security and
operational processes of these national registries. The financial value of our assets registered in such registries is
significant and any unauthorized transactions could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations
and financial condition.
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Electromagnetic fields may have an adverse impact on public health.

Power lines, including those we operate, generate electromagnetic fields ("EMFs"). Questions with respect to
the risks to human health as a result of exposure to EMFs have been raised both within the EU and internationally. Over
the past 20 years, several international health organizations (such as the World Health Organization (the "WHQO"), the
International Agency for Research on Cancer (the "IARC"), the American Academy of Sciences, the American National
Institute of Environmental Health Sciences, and the English National Radiological Protection Board) have completed
numerous studies on the existence of health risks as a result of exposure to EMFs. Since 2002, the IARC has classified
the low-frequency EMFs at level 2B (possible carcinogen) on its scale of scientific evidence. However, in a report
published in June 2007, the WHO considered the associated health risks, if any, low. Medical knowledge about health
risks related to exposure to EMFs may evolve or public sensitivity about such risks could increase, or the principle of
precaution could be applied very broadly. At the EU and national level, new regulations aimed at understanding the risks
associated with EMFs are being developed. This could expose us to litigation and significant costs, including costs
incurred in connection with the adoption of more stringent security measures for the operation or construction of our
generation facilities and distribution networks, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

Our facilities produce polychlorobiphenyls which could have an adverse impact on the environment or public health.

We operate or have operated certain facilities which, as currently operated, could be or have been the source of industrial
accidents or environmental and public health impacts (such as inadequately controlled emissions, leakages in electricity
supply lines insulated with oil under pressure, a failure of decontamination facilities, pathogenic microorganisms,
asbestos, and polychlorobiphenyls ("PCBs")). In particular, large quantities of hazardous materials (mainly explosive or
flammable, such as gas and fuel oil) are stored in some of our facilities. These facilities may be located in industrial areas
where other activities facing similar risks are carried out, such that our own facilities may be impacted by accidents
occurring at neighbouring facilities that are not within our control. This could expose us to litigation and significant costs,
including costs incurred in connection with adopting more stringent security measures for the operation or construction
of our generation facilities and transmission or distribution networks, which could have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations and financial condition.

Risks relating to political, social and economic conditions

Risks associated with changes in the EU's energy policy and an accelerated market shift towards renewable energy
sources.

The electricity generation industry in Europe is strongly influenced by the EU's policy to increase the share of
electricity generated by renewable energy sources, which was implemented in 2008 by the EU Climate and Energy
Package and amended in 2019 by a package of provisions called Clean Energy for all Europeans, also known as the
Winter Package (the "Winter Package™). The Winter Package is a set of several directives, regulations and decisions
whose application may significantly influence the energy sector and also the CEZ Group. The Winter Package aims to
achieve three goals: to make energy efficiency a priority, to achieve a world leading position of EU countries in the sphere
of energy from renewable sources, and to provide fair conditions for consumers. We are strongly influenced, due to
economic incentives, to reflect the Winter Package within our own strategy. The Winter Package increases the required
share of renewable sources from 20% in 2020 to 32% in 2030 and sets the energy efficiency target to at least 32.5% in
2030. The energy efficiency target, renewable share target and the Winter Package in general aim to achieve low-carbon
economy and to decrease emissions in accordance with EU emissions targets by 20% in 2020 and by 80% in 2050. In
late 2019, the European Commission presented a strategy called the European Green Deal, which, among other things,
aims to increase the EU's greenhouse gas emission reductions target for 2030 to at least 50% and to 55% compared to
1990 levels. In July 2021, the European Commission published a package of legislative measures known as "Fit for 55",
the aim of which is to set the legislative conditions for achieving the 2030 enhanced mitigation ambition set by the
European Green Deal. The implementation of the Winter Package and targets of the European Council for the period
from 2020 to 2030, or any amendments to such targets, such as the Fit for 55 package, could have a material adverse
effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. Support for renewable sources may decrease energy
prices, limit the production time, the stability of transmission and distribution grid, the profitability of distribution services
provided by us and production quantity of conventional power plants that we operate and may decrease our market share.
In addition, the CEZ Group may be required to incur additional expenditure in order to meet the other related targets
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envisaged in the Winter Package or Fit for 55 package. Continued or increased support for renewable energy sources in
the EU, particularly in the Czech Republic (please see "Regulation — Czech Republic — Renewable Energy Sources —
Current Legislation — The Czech Promoted Energy Sources Act") and Germany, may adversely affect our profit from
nuclear, coal-fired and gas power plants, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations
and financial condition.

Further measures which might have a negative impact on our electricity generation and trade are amending
Directive EU/2024/1711 and amending Regulation EU/2024/1747. Devised in the wake of the surge in energy prices and
agreed by the EU member states and the European Parliament in 2024, these new measures are aimed at making energy
prices for consumers more stable and less dependent on the price of fossil fuels. Additionally, these new measures aim
to further strengthen the rights of consumers, especially with regard to electricity sharing, as well as provide a framework
for long-term contracts for low-carbon and renewable electricity generation to achieve more predictable energy costs
from renewables for energy producers and energy consumers.

Risks resulting from political developments in the EU and in other countries where we have or plan to have a business
presence.

Any political developments in the EU, including any future integration or withdrawal of European countries in
the EU or changes in the economic policy, executive authority or composition of the EU and its institutions, may have
an adverse effect on the overall economic stability of the EU and the European countries in which our assets and
operations are located. Any changes in the political or economic stability of any of the countries in which we operate, as
well as any political, economic, regulatory or administrative developments in these countries, over which we have no
control, could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. In particular,
due to cross-border integration and fully liberalized power prices, the primary price-setting market in our region is
Germany and its exchange in Leipzig and historically there has been a strong correlation between power prices in the
Czech and German markets. Any political developments affecting the integration, integrity or stability of EU or other
energy markets, could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Risks associated with poor economic performance in the Czech Republic.

Our revenues are sensitive to the performance of the Czech economy. As of December 31, 2024, 97.6% of our
property, plant and equipment was located in the Czech Republic and 84.1% of our operational revenues and other
operating income for the year ended December 31, 2024 was derived from the Czech Republic. Changes in economic,
regulatory, administrative or other policies of the Czech Government, as well as political or economic developments in
the Czech Republic (including potential changes in the Czech Republic's credit ratings) over which we have no control,
could have a significant effect on the Czech economy, which in turn could have a material adverse effect on our business,
results of operations and financial condition.

Risks associated with political developments in the Czech Republic.

The composition of the Czech Government and any political developments or changes in the economic policy
of the Czech Republic may have an adverse effect on the overall economic stability of the Czech Republic. We cannot
give any assurance that any change in the Czech Government would not affect the energy, economic, fiscal, and
regulatory policies of the Czech Republic, nor can we give any assurance that any potential change in the Czech
Government would not affect the structure of the presidium of the Ministry of Finance and, as a result, the structure of
our Supervisory Board and our Board of Directors. Such unfavourable political developments could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our majority shareholder may pursue decisions that reflect the Czech Government's policy (including the Czech
Government's desire for us to build a new NPP in the Czech Republic).

As of the date of this Base Prospectus, the Czech Republic, through the Ministry of Finance, owns approximately
69.8% of the share capital of CEZ, the parent company of the CEZ Group. As our controlling shareholder, the Czech
Republic, through the Ministry of Finance, has the power to elect and remove two thirds of the members of our
Supervisory Board. Our Supervisory Board elects members to our Board of Directors. Consequently, the Czech Republic,
through its shareholdings or its positions on our Supervisory Board or our Board of Directors, has and will continue to
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have, directly or indirectly, the power to affect our operations. As a result, certain of our decisions may reflect the Czech
Government's policies, for example the dividend policy for state-owned companies and the Czech energy policy, which
includes the Czech Government's desire for us to build a new NPP in the Czech Republic. Complying with such decisions
could lead to a reorganization of CEZ, by way of a de-merger, spin-off, or otherwise, including a nationalization of CEZ
or a part thereof. Such decisions could also lead to significant capital expenditures as well as the risks inherent in building
a NPP, including debt capacity risks, which could in turn have a material adverse effect on our ratings, share price,
business, results of operations and financial condition. See also, "-The risks and costs associated with increasing our
nuclear generation capacity" and - Future privatization, reorganization or nationalization of CEZ may result in a credit
downgrade or may affect our ability to repay debt".

Risk associated with state support for certain power generation sources.

The Czech Promoted Energy Sources Act requires distribution companies to purchase certain amounts of
electricity from environmentally friendly "co-generation,” "small hydro", "decentralized" or "renewable" facilities. This
results in significantly higher state support for small generation sources and for those that are connected directly to the
distribution grid. This support may be in the form of regulated subsidized prices or preferential access of these generation
sources to the distribution grid (please see "Regulation — Czech Republic - Renewable Energy Sources").

However, in the Czech Republic we operate mainly large plants and transmit a major portion of our electricity to the
transmission grid. Consequently, we cannot take full advantage of state support for otherwise comparable power
generation sources in the Czech Republic under the Czech Energy Act. Similar state support schemes for selected
alternative power generation sources also exist in other countries in which we operate. While we believe that these
purchases of electricity from renewable sources and the preferential treatment of renewable sources will not substantially
adversely affect the generation volumes of our conventional generation facilities, we cannot provide any assurance that
this will in fact be the case or that our electricity sales to supply companies will not decrease, which could in turn have a
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Risks related to governmental regulations and laws

Our activities require various administrative authorizations and licenses that may be difficult to obtain, maintain or
renew or whose grant may be subject to conditions that may become significantly more stringent.

Our core activities of generation, distribution and supply of electricity require various administrative
authorizations, at local and national levels, in the Czech Republic (see "Regulation—Czech Republic—Electric Energy
Sector—Licensing Regime™) and in the other countries in which we operate. The procedures for obtaining and renewing
these authorizations can be protracted and complex. Obtaining these authorizations is not routine and the conditions
attached to obtaining them are subject to change and may not be predictable. As a result, we may incur significant
expenses in order to comply with the requirements associated with obtaining or renewing these authorizations (for
example, the cost of preparing applications for authorizations or investments associated with installing equipment that
are required before the authorization can be issued). Delays, extremely high costs or the suspension of our industrial
activities due to our inability to obtain, maintain, or renew authorizations, may also have a negative impact on our business
activities and profitability.

In addition, we often invest resources prior to obtaining the necessary permits and authorizations, particularly
in connection with feasibility studies and environmental studies, but may have to cancel or withdraw from a project even
after incurring such costs if we are unable to obtain the necessary permits or authorizations. Certain other material licenses
for the operation of our power plants are due to expire within the next four years, such as the license for generation of
electricity of CEZ which expires on September 6, 2026. Any failure to obtain, maintain, renew or extend all the necessary
administrative authorizations and licenses necessary for the operation of our business and execution of our strategy, could
have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We are subject to different regulatory regimes in all of the countries in which we operate, and these regimes are
complex and subject to change.

We are subject to the laws of various countries and jurisdictions, including the Czech Republic, Tiirkiye, France,
Germany, Italy and the EU, as well as the regulations of the regulatory agencies of the countries in which we operate,
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including the ERO and the SONS in the Czech Republic (see "Regulation™), the Federal Network Agency for Electricity,
Gas, Telecommunications, Posts and Railway (Bundesnetzagentur) in Germany and the Regulatory Commission of
Energy (Commission de Régulation de 1'Energie) in France. These laws and regulations and their interpretation by the
regulatory agencies affect many aspects of our business and, in many respects, determine the manner in which we conduct
our business and the fees we charge or obtain for our products and services, including in respect of electricity generation
(both traditional and from renewable sources). In particular, as an owner and operator of nuclear, coal-fired and gas power
plants (including combined heat and electricity power plants), renewable energy facilities and electricity distribution,
heat distribution and mining businesses, we are subject to extensive governmental and other regulations in the markets
in which we operate, including in relation to nuclear safety. Any new regulation or any changes in the existing regulations
or requirements of or the interpretation by the governments or regulatory authorities of the countries in which we operate,
may require significant changes in our business in ways that we cannot predict, in particular the way in which we operate
our nuclear assets. Any new regulations or requirements that cause us to restructure or otherwise change our business in
any way, or that affect electricity generation, transmission, distribution or supply prices or related financial conditions,
could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. In addition, we may
fail to respond swiftly and appropriately to changes in applicable laws and regulations or to changes in the energy industry
generally, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We are subject to environmental, health and safety laws and regulations and must maintain environmental, health
and safety regulatory approvals and we may be exposed to significant liabilities if we fail to comply with such laws or
maintain such approvals.

We are subject to various environmental, health and safety laws and regulations governing, among other things:
the generation, storage, handling, release, use, disposal and transportation of waste or hazardous and radioactive
materials; the emission and discharge of hazardous materials into the ground, air or water; the decommissioning and
decontamination of our facilities; and the health and safety of the public and our employees. EU regulators and regulators
in the countries in which we operate administer these laws and regulations. We are also required to obtain environmental
and safety permits from various governmental authorities for our operations. Certain permits require periodic renewal or
review of their conditions as well as continuous monitoring and reporting of compliance with their conditions and we
cannot give any assurance that we will be able to renew such permits or that material changes to our permits requiring
significant expenditures, will not be imposed. Violations of these laws, regulations or permits could result in plant shut-
downs, fines or legal proceedings being commenced against us or other sanctions, in addition to negative publicity and
significant damage to our reputation. Other liabilities under environmental laws, including the clean-up of radioactive or
hazardous substances, can also be extremely costly to discharge. Environmental and health and safety laws are complex,
change frequently and have tended to become more stringent over time. As a result, we may not at all times be in full
compliance with all such laws and regulations. While we have budgeted for future capital and operating expenditures to
comply with current environmental and health and safety laws, it is possible that any of these laws may change or become
more stringent in the future or that new laws may be adopted (for example EU legislation may be adopted that imposes
additional capital expenditure on our brown coal-fired power plants). Therefore, our costs of complying with current and
future environmental and health and safety laws and our liabilities arising from past or future releases of, or exposure to,
radioactive or hazardous substances, could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and
financial condition.

Following the nuclear disaster at Fukushima in 2011, we have been required by the European Council to carry
out "stress tests™ in order to assess the safety of our NPPs and how resistant these power plants are to natural disasters
such as floods and earthquakes. We have successfully passed all such tests and our NPPs are compliant with
recommendations of the European Council. If we would be required to comply with any additional requirements of the
European Council in the future, we could incur significant costs, which in turn could have a material adverse effect on
our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Risk of changes in regulated tariffs.

In the Czech Republic, a significant part of our revenue depends on regulated tariffs (including electricity and
gas distribution prices and heat prices). Such tariffs are set by the ERO. As of the date of this Base Prospectus, we are in
the 5" regulatory period (2021 — 2025) (please see "Regulation - Transmission and Distribution of Electric Energy -
Price of Electricity"). The regulated tariffs may change in the next regulatory periods and, as a result, any changes in
regulated tariffs could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.
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Public authorities and regulatory authorities in the countries in which we operate may decide to limit or block
tariff increases, or even order tariff decreases, with no change to the quality of service, or may change the conditions of
access to such regulated tariffs, including changes to the price setting mechanisms or imposing special focused taxes as
a result of political interference. However, we cannot give any assurance that new tariff mechanisms would be put in
place or that regulated tariffs would be set at a level which would allow us to preserve our short-, medium- or long-term
investment capacity or our property interests, while ensuring a fair return on the capital invested in our electricity
generation, distribution and supply assets. As a result, any changes in regulated tariffs, particularly those that may affect
our revenues from electricity distribution, could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and
financial condition.

Risk of uncertain, unexpected or unlawful decisions of key regulatory or national administration executive authorities.

Our business as well as our capital investment program and financial investment strategy are subject to decisions
of numerous national and international institutions, as well as regulatory and administrative authorities. We face the risk
that decision makers in these institutions may not act within the scope of existing laws and regulations, which could have
uncertain and unexpected consequences on our business and operations in the Czech Republic, Germany, France, Italy
and Tirkiye, which in turn could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial
condition. Although we are not aware of any misconduct, we cannot exclude a politically motivated revocation of the
license(s) which would have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Risks associated with EU regulation of energy market mechanisms, including the credit and cash settlement
requirements for trading of commodities and financial instruments.

We trade on the financial and wholesale energy markets. Over the past years, EU regulations, particularly
Regulation on Energy Market Integrity and Transparency ("REMIT™), MIFID |1, Market Abuse Directive and Regulation
("MAD/MAR™) and European Market Infrastructure Regulation ("EMIR"), have put in place a regulatory framework to
increase transparency, avoid manipulation and abusive trading practices as well as to address potential cash margining
requirements for over-the-counter ("OTC") transactions. Due to the amount of our hedged production volume and the
volatility of power prices, such requirements could result in liquidity needs that may be difficult to cover. In addition,
our foreign exchange and interest rate hedging transactions could also be affected.

We face the risk of non-compliance risk with the above regulation, which imposes strict penalties and sanctions.
Although we strive to manage our commodity trading portfolio within the limits to remain a non-financial counterparty
below the clearing threshold ("NFC"), so that no additional requirements for margining or mandatory clearing of OTC
deals must be fulfilled, there is no guarantee that we will be able to do so in the future, or that our trading activities will
continue to qualify as exempted from MIFID Il license regime with no need on capital or funds to cover regulatory
requirements. As a result, EU financial market mechanisms, including any changes to credit and cash settlement
requirements for trading of financial instruments, could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

Risks associated with changes in EU or national requirements affecting liability for nuclear damage, insurance
requirements or decommissioning of NPPs.

Each Member State sets its own limits and rules relating to the liability for nuclear damage, insurance
requirements and the decommissioning of NPPs, which are affected by the political policies of each Member State. Any
changes or developments in such legal or regulatory requirements or policies could affect the legal and regulatory
requirements and political policies of the Czech Republic. Any changes to the limits and rules set by the Czech Republic
affecting the operation of our NPPs, including the liability for nuclear disasters, insurance coverage and premiums or
decommissioning costs, could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

The transparency regime in the Czech Republic may decrease our competitiveness.

Under the Czech Registry of Contracts Act, certain business contracts with a consideration above CZK 50,000
entered into by a legal entity in which the Czech Republic, directly or indirectly, holds a majority ownership interest must
be disclosed in a publicly accessible electronic registry, unless one of the exemptions provided for in the Czech Registry
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of Contracts Act applies. Otherwise, the respective business contract would be, after a certain period of time,
automatically terminated by operation of Czech law.

There is a risk that know-how and other sensitive business-related information of CEZ and its counterparties
may be required to be disclosed in the Czech Registry of Contracts. Further, there could be disputes as to whether or not
certain contracts and/or information is exempted from disclosure under the Czech Registry of Contracts Act and, as a
result of such disputes, CEZ could be forced to disclose in the Czech Registry of Contracts information which CEZ
considers to be a trade secret.

There is a significant risk that CEZ, unlike its competitors, will be subject to a stringent transparency regime
and, thus, put into a competitive disadvantage which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

Recent case law of the Court of Justice of the EU may have a significant adverse impact on our ability to recover the
value of our investments in other EU Member States.

The legal framework for investment protection within the EU has undergone significant changes in recent years,
creating uncertainty regarding the enforcement of investor rights. A key example of this shifting landscape is the Achmea
Judgment of March 2018, in which the Court of Justice of the EU ruled that investor-State arbitration clauses in intra-EU
bilateral investment treaties ("BITs") are incompatible with EU law.

This decision led to the termination of most intra-EU BITs and the Agreement on the Termination of Bilateral
Investment Treaties between EU member states, to which the Czech Republic is a party. It has also heightened concerns
about the enforceability of arbitration awards within the EU.

While some arbitral tribunals have rejected intra-EU jurisdictional objections, asserting their authority despite
the Achmea Judgment, these objections are consistently raised before EU national courts during recognition and
enforcement proceedings. Since national courts are bound by the Achmea Judgment, there is a significant risk that any
favourable arbitral award may be annulled or denied enforcement.

Furthermore, we continue to carry out our business activities in various other EU Member States where we may
be subject to adverse regulatory actions. For example, we are party to international investment arbitration proceedings
against the Republic of Bulgaria at the ICSID based on the Energy Charter Treaty (please see "Description of CEZ —
Other Proceedings —Bulgaria™).

There is no guarantee that the ongoing legal developments in international investment arbitration will not further
impact our ability to protect and/or recover the full value of our investments. The increasing legal uncertainty surrounding
the recognition and enforcement of arbitral awards, combined with the potential for future case law and regulatory
changes, could materially affect our business, financial condition, and overall results of operations.

Risks relating to our financial profile

Our ability to access credit and bond markets and our ability to raise additional financing is in part dependent on our
credit ratings.

As of the date of this Base Prospectus, CEZ has a credit rating of A- with a stable outlook by Standard & Poor's
and Baal with a negative outlook by Moody's. These ratings reflect each agency's opinion of our financial strength,
operating performance and ability to meet our debt obligations as they become due. These ratings are near the low-end
of the respective rating agency's scale of investment-grade ratings. Credit rating agencies monitor companies more closely
and have made liquidity, and the key ratios associated with it, such as gross leverage ratio, a particular priority when
determining a company's rating. Our ability to access the capital markets and other forms of financing (or refinancing),
and the costs connected with such activities, depend in part on our credit ratings. We currently expect to operate with
sufficient liquidity to maintain our current ratings. However, this is dependent on a number of factors, some of which
may be beyond our control, including the credit ratings assigned to the Czech Republic, our majority shareholder. If we
fail to maintain adequate levels of liquidity, our ratings may be downgraded. In the event our credit or debt ratings are
further lowered by the rating agencies, we may not be able to raise additional indebtedness on terms similar to our existing
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indebtedness or at all, and our ability to access credit and bond markets and other forms of financing (or refinancing)
could be limited, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.
Further lowering of our credit rating may also trigger our obligation to redeem certain debt securities prior to their
scheduled redemption date which could also have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and
financial condition.

We have substantial debt and our financial obligations could impair our ability to service our debt, carry out new
financings and fund our capital expenditures.

We have substantial debt and other financial obligations, amounting to CZK 246,248 million as of December
31, 2024, compared to CZK 168,910 million as of December 31, 2023. We cannot give any assurances that our cash flow
from operations will be sufficient to service our debt and to meet other payment obligations or to fund our planned capital
expenditures without the need for additional external financing. Our substantial debt and other financial obligations could
limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business or our industry, which could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. Similarly, any future failure to successfully
implement our ESG strategies may result in higher costs for servicing our debt or securing new financing. Furthermore,
a potential privatization or reorganization of CEZ may adversely affect our ability to service our debt, carry out new
financings and fund our capital expenditures (see "Future privatization or reorganization of CEZ may result in a credit
downgrade or may affect our ability to repay debt." above).

Our trading on exchanges and with certain counterparties is subject to margining.

Our trading on exchanges and with certain counterparties is subject to margining, which may, as a result of
electricity and gas price fluctuations (for example gas and electricity prices rose significantly at the end of 2021 and
during 2022 and decreased in 2023 and 2024), require substantial cash flow on a short notice, especially in euros. Were
we not to be able to procure this cash from our relationship banks, the debt capital markets or from other sources, we
would be forced to close our trading positions on exchanges and with certain counterparties, which would have a material
adverse effect on our business, reputation, results of operations and financial condition.

We could incur unforeseen taxes, tax penalties and sanctions.

A number of Member States face significant budget deficits and, as a result, new taxes have been, and may in
the future be, imposed on the utilities sector, such as the nuclear tax in Germany, the power sales tax in Hungary and the
windfall tax in the Czech Republic as further mentioned below. The imposition of any new taxes (including a carbon tax
or sector tax) in the countries in which we operate, or changing interpretations or application of tax regulations by the tax
authorities, harmonization of Czech and EU tax law and regulation, extensive time periods relating to overdue liabilities
and the possible imposition of penalties and other sanctions due to unpaid tax liabilities may result in additional amounts
being payable by us, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial
condition.

For example, with effect from January 1, 2014, operators of certain solar electricity producing facilities in the
Czech Republic which were put into operation between January 1, 2010 and December 31, 2010 are subject to a
withholding tax in the amount of (i) 10% of the income corresponding to the feed-in tariff, or (ii) 11% of the income
corresponding to a "green bonus". As of December 31, 2024, we owned and operated 26 solar power plants in the Czech
Republic, with installed capacity of 165.1 MW. The majority of these solar power plants were put into operation between
January 1, 2010 and December 31, 2010 and are subject to the withholding tax. Extension or amendment to such tax
legislation or introduction of any similar tax in the future could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

From January 1, 2023 for a duration of three years (i.e., from 2023 to 2025), we are subject to a temporary tax
on exceptionally profitable businesses, mainly from the energy and banking sectors, introduced by Act No. 366/2022
Coll. (the "Czech Windfall Tax"). The Czech Windfall Tax is calculated as a 60% tax surcharge applied to the company's
excess profits, determined as a difference between (i) the tax base in the particular year and (ii) the average of the tax
bases for the last four years, increased by 20%. The legislation further introduced an obligation to pay tax advances on
the Czech Windfall Tax, starting from 2023. The Czech Windfall Tax has resulted in additional amounts of taxes being
payable by us. The effective income tax rate for the calculation of deferred tax in 2024 was 75% and the estimated
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effective income tax rates for the calculation of deferred tax in future years are 72% for 2025 and 21% for 2026. We
believe that we have adequately provided for tax liabilities in the accounting statements, however, it cannot be ruled out
that the relevant tax authorities may take a different view on issues allowing for different interpretations of the law, which
could have an impact on our reported income. Additional tax obligations, including the prolongation of the Czech
Windfall Tax regime beyond 2025, could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and
financial condition.

The agreements that govern our long-term debt contain restrictive covenants.

The agreements that govern our long-term debt contain certain restrictive covenants, including among others
"negative-pledge" clauses, "no disposal of assets" clauses and "material change" clauses, which may restrict our ability
to acquire or dispose of assets or incur new debt. Our failure to comply with any of these covenants could constitute an
event of default, which could result in the immediate or accelerated repayment of our debt, lead to cross-default under
our other credit agreements or limit or reduce our ability to implement and execute our key strategies, which could in
turn have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We conduct our business in several different currencies and are exposed to foreign currency risks.

We sell the electricity we generate in the Czech Republic on markets such as the PXE and the EEX, which trade
electricity contracts denominated in Euro. As a result, the revenues we receive from these sales are either denominated
in Euro or denominated in Czech crowns but derived from Euro denominated electricity prices and the EUR/CZK
exchange rate at the time the contract is concluded. However, a significant portion of our operating expenses and capital
expenditure needs related to power generation in the Czech Republic are denominated in Czech crowns, which exposes
us to substantial foreign exchange risk. We also generate revenues and incur costs in currencies other than Euro and
Czech crown, such as Polish zloty and Turkish lira. We believe that our Euro denominated indebtedness acts as a natural
foreign exchange hedge for our exposure to Euro denominated revenues and we also engage in transaction currency
hedging. In general, we hedge our CZK/EUR position for the expected electricity supply from generation. As of
December 31, 2024, we had our CZK/EUR position for 2025 hedged at an average rate of 23.825 CZK/EUR, for 2026
at an average rate of 23.520 CZK/EUR while for the period of 2027 - 2028 at a rate of 23.928 CZK/EUR. Any increase
in our exposure to foreign exchange risks or our failure to manage or make use of financial or natural hedging in order to
manage our exposure to foreign exchange risk could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations
and financial condition.

The Czech crown volatility is affected by, among others, public finance deficits, the overall development of the
global economy and the relative perception of risks associated with new Member States and other central and eastern
European countries. The volatility of the Czech crown is also affected by the anticipated date that the Czech Republic
joins the Eurozone, which has been delayed due to political developments. As of the date of this Base Prospectus, there
is no official target date for the Czech Republic to join the Eurozone.

We cannot give any assurance that any governmental or monetary authorities will not impose exchange controls
or interventions that could adversely affect the applicable exchange rate, as was the case between November 2013 and
April 2017, when the Czech National Bank intervened in the foreign exchange markets to weaken the Czech crown
against the Euro. Any significant change or fluctuation in the Czech crown's exchange rate or inflation in the Czech
Republic could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

External financing may increase our interest expense.

Due to potential investments, acquisitions and our need to service existing debt and other financial obligations,
we may need additional external financing to cover our payment obligations. Any increase in interest rates could therefore
lead to a material increase in our interest expense, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations and financial condition. We use interest rate swaps and other types of derivatives to reduce the amount of debt
exposed to interest rate fluctuations and to reduce borrowing costs. However, we may incur losses if any of the variety
of instruments and strategies used to hedge exposures are not effective or cannot be implemented. Our actual hedging
decisions will be determined in light of the facts and circumstances existing at the time of the hedge and may differ from
time to time. Also, the risk management procedures we have in place may not always be followed or may not work as
planned. In addition, we perform stress testing using a standardized interest rate shock, whereby an immediate increase
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or decrease in interest rates by one per cent. along the whole yield curve is applied to the interest rate positions of the
portfolio. The occurrence of any of the aforesaid risks could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

FACTORS WHICH ARE MATERIAL FOR THE PURPOSE OF ASSESSING THE MARKET RISKS
ASSOCIATED WITH NOTES ISSUED UNDER THE PROGRAMME

Risks applicable to all Notes

If the Issuer has a right to redeem any Notes at its option, this may limit the market value of the Notes concerned, and
an investor may not be able to reinvest the redemption proceeds in a manner which achieves a similar effective return.

An optional redemption feature of Notes is likely to limit their market value. During any period when the Issuer
may elect to redeem Notes, the market value of those Notes generally will not rise substantially above the price at which
they can be redeemed. This also may be true prior to any redemption period.

The Issuer may be expected to redeem Notes when its cost of borrowing is lower than the interest rate on the
Notes. At those times, an investor generally would not be able to reinvest the redemption proceeds at an effective interest
rate as high as the interest rate on the Notes being redeemed and may only be able to do so at a significantly lower rate.
Potential investors should consider reinvestment risk in light of other investments available at that time.

Moreover, the applicable Final Terms or Pricing Supplement (as relevant) of a particular issue of Notes may
provide for an early redemption at the option of the Issuer (including a Make-Whole Redemption by the Issuer as
described in Condition 6.4, a Residual Maturity Call Option by the Issuer as described in Condition 6.5 or an Issuer
Residual Call Option by the Issuer as described in Condition 6.13). As a consequence, the proceeds received upon
redemption may be lower than expected, and the redeemed face amount of the Notes may be lower than the purchase
price for the Notes paid by the Noteholder. As a result, part of the capital invested by the Noteholder may be lost, so that
the Noteholder in such case would not receive the total amount of the capital invested.

Furthermore, the Issuer may, in accordance with Condition 6.2, redeem the Notes in whole but not in part in the
event that the Issuer is obliged to increase the amounts payable in respect of any Notes as a result of any change in, or
amendment to, the laws or regulations of the Czech Republic or any political subdivision or any authority thereof or
therein having power to tax, or any change in the application or official interpretation of such laws or regulations.

A partial redemption at the option of the Issuer or redemption at the option of the Noteholders may affect the liquidity
of the Notes of the same Series in respect of which such option is not exercised.

An early redemption at the option of the Issuer (including a Make-Whole Redemption by the Issuer as described
in Condition 6.4) or an early redemption at the option of the Noteholders in respect of certain Notes may affect the
liquidity of the Notes of the same Series in respect of which such option is not exercised.

Depending on the number of Notes of the same Series in respect of which a partial redemption of the Notes at
the option of the Issuer or at the option of the Noteholders is made, any trading market in respect of those Notes in respect
of which such option is not exercised may become illiquid.

If the Notes include a feature to convert the interest basis from a fixed to a floating rate or vice versa, this may affect
the secondary market and the market value of the Notes concerned.

Fixed/Floating Rate Notes are Notes which bear interest at a rate that converts from a fixed rate to a floating
rate or from a floating rate to a fixed rate. Such a feature to convert the interest basis, and any conversion of the interest
basis, may affect the secondary market in, and the market value of, such Notes as the change of interest basis may result
in a lower interest return for Noteholders. Where the Notes convert from a fixed rate to a floating rate, the spread on the
Fixed/Floating Rate Notes may be less favourable than then prevailing spreads on comparable Floating Rate Notes tied
to the same reference rate. In addition, the new floating rate at any time may be lower than the rates on other Notes.
Where the Notes convert from a floating rate to a fixed rate, the fixed rate may be lower than then prevailing rates on
those Notes and could affect the market value of an investment in the relevant Notes.
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There are particular risks associated with an investment in certain types of Floating Rate Notes. In particular, an
investor might receive less interest than expected or no interest in respect of such Notes.

The Issuer may issue Floating Rate Notes with interest determined by reference to a reference rate (such as
EURIBOR, PRIBOR, SOFR or TONA).

Potential investors should be aware that:
(i) the market price of such Notes may be volatile;
(i) they may receive no interest;

(iii) a reference rate (such as EURIBOR, PRIBOR, SOFR or TONA) may be subject to significant
fluctuations that may not correlate with changes in interest rates, currencies or other indices; and

(iv) the timing of changes in a reference rate may affect the actual yield to investors, even if the average
level is consistent with their expectations. In general, the earlier the change in the reference rate, the
greater the effect on yield.

The historical experience of a reference rate should not be viewed as an indication of the future performance of
such reference rate during the term of any Floating Rate Notes. Accordingly, each potential investor should consult its
own financial and legal advisors about the risk entailed by an investment in any Floating Rate Note linked to a reference
rate and the suitability of such Notes in light of its particular circumstances.

Notes which are issued at a substantial discount or premium may experience price volatility in response to changes in
market interest rates.

The market values of securities issued at a substantial discount (such as Zero Coupon Notes) or premium to their
principal amount tend to fluctuate more in relation to general changes in interest rates than do prices for more
conventional interest-bearing securities. Generally, the longer the remaining term of such securities, the greater the price
volatility as compared to more conventional interest-bearing securities with comparable maturities.

Risks applicable to certain types of Exempt Notes.

There are particular risks associated with an investment in certain types of Exempt Notes, such as Index Linked Notes
and Dual Currency Notes. In particular, an investor might receive less interest than expected or no interest in respect
of such Notes and may lose some or all of the principal amount invested by it.

The Issuer may issue Notes with principal or interest determined by reference to an index or formula, to changes
in the prices of securities or commaodities, to movements in currency exchange rates or other factors (each, a "Relevant
Factor™). In addition, the Issuer may issue Notes with principal or interest payable in one or more currencies which may
be different from the currency in which the Notes are denominated.

Potential investors should be aware that:

(i) the market price of such Notes may be volatile;

(i) they may receive no interest;

(iii) payment of principal or interest may occur at a different time or in a different currency than expected;
(iv) they may lose all or a substantial portion of their principal;

(V) a Relevant Factor may be subject to significant fluctuations that may not correlate with changes in

interest rates, currencies or other indices;
(vi) if a Relevant Factor is applied to Notes in conjunction with a multiplier greater than one or contains

some other leverage factor, the effect of changes in the Relevant Factor on principal or interest payable
likely will be magnified; and
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(vii) the timing of changes in a Relevant Factor may affect the actual yield to investors, even if the average
level is consistent with their expectations. In general, the earlier the change in the Relevant Factor,
the greater the effect on yield.

The historical experience of an index or a Relevant Factor should not be viewed as an indication of the future
performance of such Relevant Factor during the term of the relevant Notes. Accordingly, each potential investor should
consult its own financial and legal advisors about the risk entailed by an investment in any Notes linked to a Relevant
Factor and the suitability of such Notes in light of its particular circumstances.

Where Notes are issued on a partly paid basis, an investor who fails to pay any subsequent instalment of the issue
price could lose all of his investment.

The Issuer may issue Notes where the issue price is payable in more than one instalment. Any failure by an
investor to pay any subsequent instalment of the issue price in respect of the Notes could result in such investor losing
all of his investment.

Notes which are issued with variable interest rates or which are structured to include a multiplier or other leverage
factor are likely to have more volatile market values than more standard securities.

Notes with variable interest rates can be volatile investments. If they are structured to include multipliers or
other leverage factors, or caps or floors, or any combination of those features or other similar related features, their market
values may be even more volatile than those for securities that do not include those features.

Notes which are issued with an inverse floating interest rate will have more volatile market values than conventional
floating rate notes.

Notes with an inverse floating rate have an interest rate equal to a fixed rate minus a rate based upon a reference
rate such as EURIBOR, PRIBOR, SOFR or TONA. The market values of those Notes typically are more volatile than
market values of other conventional floating rate debt securities based on the same reference rate (and with otherwise
comparable terms). Notes with an inverse floating rate are more volatile because an increase in the reference rate not only
decreases the interest rate of the Notes but may also reflect an increase in prevailing interest rates, which further adversely
affects the market value of these Notes.

The regulation and reform of *benchmarks™ may adversely affect the value of any Notes linked to such
"benchmarks"".

Interest rates and indices which are deemed to be "benchmarks", and which may be used to determine the
amounts payable under financial instruments or the value of such financial instruments including EURIBOR and
PRIBOR, are the subject of recent national, international and other regulatory guidance and proposals for reform. Some
of these reforms are already effective whilst others are still to be implemented. These reforms may cause such benchmarks
to perform differently than in the past, to disappear entirely, or have other consequences which cannot be predicted. Any
such consequence could have a material adverse effect on any Notes linked to or referencing such a "benchmark".

The EU Benchmark Regulation applies to the provision of benchmarks, the contribution of input data to a
benchmark and the use of a benchmark within the EU. The EU Benchmark Regulation could have a material impact on
any Notes linked to or refinancing EURIBOR or PRIBOR or another "benchmark" rate or index, in particular, if the
methodology or other terms of the "benchmark" are changed in order to comply with the terms of the EU Benchmark
Regulation. Such changes could (amongst other things) have the effect of reducing, increasing or otherwise affecting the
volatility of the published rate or level of the benchmark.

More broadly, any of the international, national or other proposals for reform, or the general increased regulatory
scrutiny of "benchmarks", could increase the costs and risks of administering or otherwise participating in the setting of
a "benchmark™ and complying with any such regulations or requirements.

There are on-going workstreams to determine a euro risk free-rate as an alternative to EURIBOR. On 13
September 2018, the working group on euro risk-free rates recommended Euro Short-term Rate ("€STR") as the new risk
free rate. €STR has been published by the ECB since October 2019. Meanwhile, EURIBOR underwent a methodological
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reform in 2019 to make it compliant with the regulatory requirements outlined in the EU Benchmark Regulation. It is
now determined using a hybrid methodology rather than a purely quote-based method. Following a testing phase and
public consultations, the hybrid methodology became applicable at the end of 2019, and the European Money Markets
Institute has received authorization from the competent authority, meaning that the benchmark can continue to be used
for new and legacy contracts after 3 January 2022. Nevertheless, the long-term sustainability of EURIBOR depends on
factors such as the continued willingness of the panel of contributing banks to support it, the support of the regulator and
the administrator and/or whether or not there is sufficient activity in its underlying market.

Such factors may have (without limitation) the following effects on certain benchmarks (including EURIBOR
and PRIBOR): (i) discouraging market participants from continuing to administer or contribute to certain "benchmarks",
(i) triggering changes in the rules or methodologies used in certain "benchmarks" or (iii) lead to the disappearance of
certain "benchmarks". Any of the above changes or any other consequential changes as a result of international, national
or other proposals for reform or other initiatives or investigations, could have a material adverse effect on the value of
and return on any Notes linked to a "benchmark".

It is not possible to predict with certainty whether, and to what extent, EURIBOR and/or PRIBOR will continue
to be supported going forwards. This may cause EURIBOR and/or PRIBOR to perform differently than they have done
in the past and may have other consequences which cannot be predicted. The elimination of EURIBOR, PRIBOR or any
other benchmark, or changes in the manner of administration of any benchmark, could require an adjustment to the Terms
and Conditions of the Notes, or result in other consequences, in respect of any Notes referencing such benchmark.

The Terms and Conditions of the Notes provide for certain fallback arrangements in the event that a published
benchmark, including an inter-bank offered rate such as EURIBOR, PRIBOR or other relevant reference rates such as
SOFR or TONA (including, without limitation, mid-swap rates and any page on which such benchmark may be
published) becomes unavailable. Where the Rate of Interest (as defined in "Terms and Conditions of the Notes") is to be
determined by reference to the Relevant Screen Page (as defined in "Terms and Conditions of the Notes™) and the Relevant
Screen Page is not available or the relevant rate does not appear on the Relevant Screen Page, the Terms and Conditions
of the Notes provide for the Rate of Interest to be determined by the Agent by reference to quotations from Reference
Banks communicated to the Agent at the request of the Issuer.

Where such quotations are not available (as may be the case if the relevant banks are not submitting rates for
the determination of such Original Reference Rate (as defined in "Terms and Conditions of the Notes")), the ultimate
fallback for the purposes of calculation of interest for a particular Interest Period (as defined in "Terms and Conditions
of the Notes") may result in the rate of interest for the last preceding Interest Period being used. This may result in the
effective application of a fixed rate for Floating Rate Notes based on the rate which was last observed on the Relevant
Screen Page. Uncertainty as to the continuation of the Original Reference Rate, the availability of quotes from Reference
Banks, and the rate that would be applicable if the Original Reference Rate is discontinued may adversely affect the value
of, and return on, the Notes.

If a Benchmark Event (as defined in "Terms and Conditions of the Notes™) (which, amongst other events,
includes the permanent discontinuation of an Original Reference Rate) occurs, the Issuer shall use its reasonable
endeavours to appoint an Independent Adviser (as defined in "Terms and Conditions of the Notes"). After consulting with
the Independent Adviser, the Issuer shall endeavour to determine a Successor Rate or Alternative Rate (each as defined
in "Terms and Conditions of the Notes™) to be used in place of the Original Reference Rate. The use of any such Successor
Rate or Alternative Rate to determine the Rate of Interest will result in Notes linked to or referencing the Original
Reference Rate performing differently (which may include payment of a lower Rate of Interest) than they would do if
the Original Reference Rate were to continue to apply in its current form.

Furthermore, if a Successor Rate or Alternative Rate for the Original Reference Rate is determined by the Issuer,
the Terms and Conditions of the Notes provide that the Issuer may vary the Terms and Conditions of the Notes, as
necessary to ensure the proper operation of such Successor Rate or Alternative Rate, without any requirement for consent
or approval of the Noteholders.

If a Successor Rate or Alternative Rate is determined by the Issuer, the Terms and Conditions of the Notes also
provide that an Adjustment Spread (as defined in "Terms and Conditions of the Notes") may be determined by the Issuer
and applied to such Successor Rate or Alternative Rate. The aim of the Adjustment Spread is to reduce or eliminate, to
the extent reasonably practicable, any economic prejudice or benefit (as the case may be) to Noteholders and
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Couponholders (each as defined in "Terms and Conditions of the Notes") as a result of the replacement of the Original
Reference Rate with the Successor Rate or the Alternative Rate. However, it may not be possible to determine or apply
an Adjustment Spread and even if an Adjustment Spread is applied, such Adjustment Spread may not be effective to
reduce or eliminate economic prejudice to Noteholders and Couponholders. If no Adjustment Spread can be determined,
a Successor Rate or Alternative Rate may nonetheless be used to determine the Rate of Interest. The use of any Successor
Rate or Alternative Rate (including with the application of an Adjustment Spread) will still result in Notes linked to or
referencing the Original Reference Rate performing differently (which may include payment of a lower Rate of Interest)
than they would if the Original Reference Rate were to continue to apply in its current form.

Investors should consult their own independent advisers and make their own assessment about the potential risks
imposed by the EU Benchmark Regulation reforms in making any investment decision with respect to any Notes linked
to or referencing EURIBOR or PRIBOR.

The market continues to develop in relation to SOFR and TONA as reference rates for Floating Rate Notes.

Investors should be aware that the market continues to develop in relation to SOFR and TONA as reference
rates. In addition, market participants and relevant working groups are exploring alternative reference rates based on
SOFR and TONA, including term SOFR and TONA reference rates (which seek to measure the market's forward
expectation of an average SOFR or TONA rate over a designated term). The development of SOFR and TONA as interest
reference rates for the Eurobond markets, as well as continued development of SOFR and TONA based rates for such
market and the market infrastructure for adopting such rates, could result in reduced liquidity or increased volatility or
could otherwise affect the market price of the Notes.

The use of SOFR and TONA as reference rates for Eurobonds continues to develop, both in terms of the
substance of the calculation and in the development and adoption of market infrastructure for the issuance and trading of
bonds referencing SOFR and TONA. In particular, investors should be aware that several different SOFR and TONA
methodologies have been used to date and no assurance can be given that any particular methodology, including the
Compounded Daily SOFR Index and Compounded Daily TONA Index approach in the Terms and Conditions, will gain
widespread market acceptance.

With respect to SOFR and TONA, the market or a significant part thereof may adopt an application of SOFR
and TONA that differs significantly from that set out in the Terms and Conditions as applicable to the Notes. Furthermore,
the Issuer may, in the future, issue Notes referencing SOFR and TONA that differs materially in terms of interest
determination when compared with the Notes. In addition, the manner of adoption or application of SOFR and TONA in
the Eurobond markets may differ materially compared with the application and adoption of SOFR and TONA in other
markets, such as the derivatives and loan markets. Noteholders should carefully consider how any mismatch between the
adoption of SOFR and TONA across these markets may impact any hedging or other financial arrangements which they
may put in place in connection with any acquisition, holding or disposal of Notes referencing SOFR and TONA.

SOFR and TONA differ from EURIBOR and PRIBOR (and other frequently referenced term rates based on interbank
lending) in a number of material respects and have a limited history.

SOFR and TONA differ from EURIBOR and PRIBOR (and other frequently referenced term rates based on
interbank lending) in a number of material respects, including that SOFR and TONA are backwards-looking, risk-free
overnight rates, whereas EURIBOR and PRIBOR and similar rates are expressed on the basis of a forward- looking term
and include a risk-element based on inter-bank lending. As such, investors should be aware that SOFR and TONA may
behave materially differently as interest reference rates for the Notes. Furthermore, SOFR is a secured rate that represents
overnight secured funding transactions, and therefore will perform differently over time to EURIBOR and/or PRIBOR
which are unsecured rates. For example, since publication of SOFR began on 3 April 2018, daily changes in SOFR have,
on occasion, been more volatile than daily changes in comparable benchmarks or other market rates.

SOFR and TONA have a limited history. The future performance of SOFR and TONA may therefore be difficult
to predict based on the limited historical performance. The level of SOFR and TONA during the term of the Notes may
bear little or no relation to the historical level of SOFR and TONA. Prior observed patterns, if any, in the behaviour of
market variables and their relation to SOFR and TONA such as correlations, may change in the future. Investors should
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not rely on historical performance data as an indicator of future performance of SOFR and TONA nor should they rely
on any hypothetical data.

Furthermore, as regards a regular Interest Period, the Rate of Interest for such period is only capable of being
determined immediately prior to the relevant Interest Payment Date. It may be difficult for Noteholders to estimate
reliably the amount of interest which will be payable on the Notes, and some investors may be unable or unwilling to
trade such Notes without changes to their IT systems, both of which factors could adversely impact the liquidity of the
Notes. Further, in contrast to EURIBOR or PRIBOR or other similar term rate-based Notes, if the Notes become due and
payable under Condition 6 or 9, or are otherwise redeemed early on a date which is not an Interest Payment Date, the
final Rate of Interest payable in respect of the Notes shall be determined by reference to a shortened period ending
immediately prior to the date on which the Notes become due and payable.

With respect to SOFR and TONA, the administrator of SOFR and the administrator of TONA may make changes that
could change the value of SOFR or TONA or discontinue SOFR or TONA.

The New York Federal Reserve or the Bank of Japan (or a successor), as administrators of SOFR and TONA
respectively, may make methodological or other changes that could change the value of SOFR and TONA respectively,
including changes related to the method by which SOFR or TONA is calculated, eligibility criteria applicable to the
transactions used to calculate SOFR or TONA, or timing related to the publication of SOFR or TONA. In addition, the
relevant administrator may alter, discontinue or suspend calculation or dissemination of SOFR or TONA (in which case
a fallback method of determining the interest rate on the Notes will apply). The relevant administrator has no obligation
to consider the interests of Noteholders when calculating, adjusting, converting, revising or discontinuing SOFR or
TONA.

Notes issued as Sustainability-Linked Notes may not be a suitable investment for all investors seeking exposure to
assets with sustainability characteristics.

The Issuer may issue Sustainability-Linked Notes under the Programme with either (i) the interest rate relating
to such Notes being subject to an upward adjustment, or (ii) a Redemption Premium being payable, if the Issuer does not
achieve the relevant SPT (as defined in Condition 4.5). Any Sustainability-Linked Notes issued under the Programme
may not satisfy an investor's requirements or any future legal, quasi-legal or other standards for investment in assets with
sustainability characteristics. In particular, any Sustainability-Linked Notes issued under the Programme may not be
marketed as "social bonds" or "sustainability bonds" as the net proceeds of the issue of such Notes may be used for the
Issuer's general corporate purposes, including acquisitions, unless specified otherwise in the applicable Final Terms. In
addition, any Sustainability-Linked Notes issued under the Programme may not be marketed as "green bonds". The Issuer
does not commit to (i) allocate the net proceeds of any Sustainability-Linked Notes issued under the Programme
specifically to projects or business activities meeting sustainability criteria or (ii) be subject to any other limitations or
requirements that may be associated with green bonds, social bonds or sustainability bonds in any particular market in
connection with the issuance of any Sustainability-Linked Notes under the Programme.

In addition, any interest rate adjustment or Redemption Premium payable in respect of any Sustainability-Linked
Notes as contemplated by the terms and conditions of any Sustainability-Linked Notes will depend on the Issuer
achieving, or not achieving, the relevant SPT, which may be inconsistent with or insufficient to satisfy investor
requirements or expectations. Prospective investors in any Sustainability-Linked Notes issued under the Programme
should have regard to the information set out herein and must determine for themselves the relevance of such information
for the purpose of any investment in such Notes, together with any other investigation such investor deems necessary.

The Issuer's SPT relating to any Sustainability-Linked Notes issued under the Programme will be aimed at
reducing the Group's direct greenhouse gas emissions intensity measured in tCO2e/MWh. The SPT would therefore be
uniquely tailored to the Group's business, operations and capabilities, and it does not easily lend itself to benchmarking
against similar sustainability performance targets, and the related performance, of other issuers. No assurance is or can
be given to investors by the Issuer, the Arrangers, the Dealers, any second-party opinion providers or any Assurance
Providers (as defined in Condition 4.5) that any Sustainability-Linked Notes issued under the Programme will meet any
or all investor expectations regarding such Notes or any SPT of the Group qualifying as "sustainable” or "sustainability-
linked" or that any adverse environmental, social and/or other impacts will not occur in connection with the Issuer striving
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to achieve any SPT or the use of the net proceeds from the offering of any Sustainability-Linked Notes issued under the
Programme.

The CEZ Group has signed a commitment letter to the business ambition for 1.5 degrees centigrade C3 and has
defined interim and long-term targets to reach net-zero by no later than 2040. Currently, the Issuer has set net-zero
science-based interim emission reduction targets in line with well below 2 degrees centigrade.

Investors should refer to the Issuer's website and the Sustainable Financing Framework for further information.

Any opinion, report, certification or validation of any third party in connection with the offering of any Sustainability-
Linked Notes or any SPT may not be suitable to fulfil any sustainable, sustainability-linked and/or other criteria.

The Issuer will, in connection with an issuance of Sustainability-Linked Notes under the Programme, obtain a
second-party opinion or other similar opinion, certification and validation, and undergo external third-party verification.
Second-party opinion providers and providers of similar opinions, certifications and validations are not currently subject
to any specific regulatory or other regime or oversight. Any such opinion or certification would not be, nor should it be
deemed to be, a recommendation by the Issuer, the Arrangers and Dealers, any second-party opinion providers, any
Assurance Provider or any other person to buy, sell or hold any Sustainability-Linked Notes. Further, any such opinion
or certification is not, nor shall it be deemed to be, incorporated in and/or form part of this Base Prospectus. Noteholders
would have no recourse against the Issuer, the Arrangers and Dealers or any provider of any such opinion or certification
for the contents of any such opinion or certification, which is only current as of the date it is initially issued. Prospective
investors must determine for themselves the relevance of any such opinion, certification or validation and/or the
information contained therein and/or the provider of such opinion, certification or validation for the purpose of any
investment in any Sustainability-Linked Notes issued under the Programme. Any withdrawal of any such opinion or
certification, or any such opinion or certification attesting that the Issuer is not complying in whole or in part with any
matters on which such opinion, certification or validation is opining or certifying, may have a material adverse effect on
the value of any Sustainability-Linked Notes issued under the Programme and/or result in adverse consequences for
certain investors with portfolio mandates to invest in securities to be used for a particular purpose.

Although in connection with the issuance of any Sustainability-Linked Notes under the Programme the Issuer
may intend to reduce the Group's direct greenhouse gas emissions intensity, there can be no assurance of the extent to
which it will be successful in doing so, that it will not decide to discontinue the relevant SPT or that any future investments
it makes in pursuit of such SPT will meet investor expectations or any binding or non-binding legal standards regarding
sustainability performance, whether by any present or future applicable law or regulations or by its own bylaws or other
governing rules or investment portfolio mandates, in particular with regard to any direct or indirect environmental,
sustainability or social impact. Notwithstanding the fact that any failure to meet the relevant SPT will give rise to either
an upward adjustment of the rate of interest, or the payment of a Redemption Premium, as specified in the applicable
Final Terms relating to the relevant Sustainability-Linked Notes, as described in Condition 4.5, such failure will not be
an Event of Default under such Notes nor will the Issuer be required to repurchase or redeem any such Notes in such
circumstances. Furthermore, any breach or default by the Issuer in the performance of any of its ancillary obligations in
connection with the issue of any Sustainability-Linked Notes, howsoever arising, shall not constitute an Event of Default
under such Notes nor will the Issuer be required to repurchase or redeem any such Notes in such circumstances. The
Issuer's efforts in achieving any SPT may further become controversial or be criticised by activist groups or other
stakeholders, which may have a material adverse effect on the value of any Sustainability-Linked Notes issued under the
Programme and/or result in adverse consequences for certain investors with portfolio mandates to invest in securities to
be used for a particular purpose.

Achieving any SPT or any similar sustainability performance targets will require the Issuer to expend significant
resources, while not meeting any such targets would result either in increased interest payments or additional
Redemption Premium payable on any Sustainability-Linked Notes and could expose the Issuer to reputational risks.

Achieving the relevant SPT in relation to any Sustainability-Linked Notes issued under the Programme would

require the Group to reduce its direct greenhouse gas emissions intensity to at or below a specified amount (in
tCO2e/MWh) by a specified date. As a result, achieving the relevant SPT or any similar sustainability performance targets
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the Issuer may choose to include in future financings or other arrangements will require the Group to expend significant
resources.

In addition, the Issuer not achieving its relevant SPT or any such similar sustainability performance targets that
the Issuer may choose to include in any future financings would not only result in increased interest payments or payment
of a Redemption Premium under the relevant Sustainability-Linked Notes or other relevant financing arrangements, but
could also harm the Issuer's reputation, the consequences of which could, in each case, have a material adverse effect on
the Group's business, financial condition, prospects and results of operations.

The Group's ability and autonomy to calculate its Cl1 means that a SPT in relation to any Sustainability-Linked Notes
may change during the life of any Sustainability-Linked Notes.

The Sustainability-Linked Notes include certain triggers linked to the Group's CII, which is calculated and not
a measured number. The CII calculations are carried out internally (i.e., by the Group itself, based on broadly accepted
standards) and may be adjusted in accordance with the Group's Recalculation Option (as defined in the Terms and
Conditions) and, in respect of any Sustainability-Linked Notes, will be verified externally by an Assurance Provider.
However, the standards and guidelines may change over time and investors should be aware that the way in which the
Group calculates its ClII may also change over time.

For example, under the Terms and Conditions, the SPT may be adjusted in good faith by the Issuer in line with
the Recalculation Option. According to the Recalculation Option, the Group may adjust the ClI calculation as a result of
acquisition, merger, divestment, changes in calculation method of the CIlI or as a result of updating the SPT to align the
ambition of the SPT with a science-based climate change target of limiting global temperature increase versus pre-
industrial levels to below 1.5 degrees centigrade. Any recalculation of such SPT may increase the amount of carbon
dioxide emissions and, therefore, increase the total volume of carbon dioxide emissions that may be produced by the
Issuer. Any recalculation of the SPT may impact, positively or negatively, the ability of the Issuer to satisfy the SPT,
which could in turn adversely affect the market price of any Sustainability-Linked Notes.

Risks relating to Green Notes

The use of proceeds of the Notes of any Tranche identified as Green Notes in the applicable Final Terms or the
applicable Pricing Supplement may not meet investor expectations or requirements or be suitable for an investor's
investment criteria

The Issuer has stated that it intends to use either the net proceeds of the issue of Notes of each Tranche identified
as "Green Notes" in the applicable Final Terms or the applicable Pricing Supplement (the "Green Notes"), or an amount
at least equal to the net proceeds therefrom (the "equivalent amount™) to fund or refinance, in whole or in parts, certain
Eligible Projects set out in the Green Financing Framework section of the Sustainable Financing Framework (the "Green
Financing Framework") (see "Use of proceeds™).

The Issuer will exercise its judgement and sole discretion in determining the businesses and projects that will
be financed or refinanced from an amount equal to the net proceeds of the Green Notes. If the use of the proceeds of
Green Notes is a factor in any potential investor's decision to invest in Green Notes, that investor should carefully consider
the disclosure in "Use of proceeds” and in the Sustainable Financing Framework published on the Issuer's website and
consult with its legal or other advisers and make any other investigation such investor deems necessary before making
an investment in Green Notes. In particular, no assurance is given by the Issuer, the Arrangers, the Dealers or any other
person that the use of an amount equal to the net proceeds of the Green Notes for any Eligible Projects will satisfy,
whether in whole or in part, any present or future investor expectations or requirements as regards any investment criteria
or guidelines with which such investor or its investments are required to comply. In addition, the Sustainable Financing
Framework is subject to change at any time without notice and may be amended, updated, supplemented, replaced and/or
withdrawn from time to time and any subsequent version(s) may differ from any description given in this Base Prospectus.

There can be no assurance that any Eligible Projects will be available or capable of being implemented in, or
substantially in, the manner and timeframe anticipated and, accordingly, that the Issuer will be able to use the net proceeds
or an amount equal to the net proceeds of the issue of such Green Notes for such Eligible Projects as intended. The Issuer
does not undertake to ensure that there are at any time sufficient Eligible Projects to allow for allocation of the net
proceeds or an amount equal to the net proceeds of the issue of such Green Notes in full. In addition, there can be no
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assurance that Eligible Projects will be completed as expected or achieve the impacts or outcomes (environmental, social
or otherwise) originally expected or anticipated. Furthermore, notwithstanding the Issuer's intention stated above,
potential investors should be aware that the Issuer has no contractual obligation to use the equivalent amount as stated
in, or to provide the reports described in "Sustainable Financing Framework". Any failure by the Issuer to use an amount
equal to the net proceeds of the Green Notes as stated or to provide the relevant reports will not constitute an event of
default under Condition 9 (Events of Default) of the Notes with respect to Green Notes but may affect the value and/or
the trading price of Green Notes and/or have adverse consequences for certain investors with portfolio mandates to invest
in green assets. Also, a mismatch between the maturity of an Eligible Project (as applicable) and the minimum duration
of any Green Notes will not constitute an event of default under Condition 9 (Events of Default) of the Notes nor give
the holder the right to terminate the Notes early.

Furthermore, it should be noted that there is currently no clearly defined definition (legal, regulatory or
otherwise) of, nor market consensus as to what constitutes, a "green", "social”, "sustainable™ or an equivalently labelled
project or as to what precise attributes are required for a particular project to be defined as "green" or such other equivalent
label and no assurance can be given that such a clear definition or consensus will develop over time or that any prevailing

market consensus will not change significantly.

Accordingly, no assurance or representation is or can be given (whether by the Issuer, the Arrangers, Dealers or
any other person) that the use of an amount equal to the net proceeds of the Green Notes to finance or refinance Eligible
Projects will satisfy or meet, whether in whole or in part, investor expectations or requirements regarding such "green",
"social", "sustainable™ or other similar labels (including in relation to the EU Taxonomy and any related technical
screening criteria, the European Green Bond Regulation, the SFDR, Regulation (EU) 2020/852 as it forms part of UK
domestic law by virtue of the EUWA, and any implementing legislation and any market standards or guidelines, including
green, sustainable or social bond principles or other similar principles or guidance published by the International Capital
Markets Association ("ICMA"), or any requirements of such labels as they may evolve from time to time), as regards any
investment criteria or guidelines with which such investor or its investments are required to comply or that any adverse
environmental, social and/or other impacts will not occur during the implementation of any Eligible Projects. Each
prospective investor should have regard to the factors described in the Sustainable Financing Framework and the relevant
information contained in this Base Prospectus and seek advice from their independent financial adviser or other
professional adviser regarding its purchase of the Notes before deciding to invest.

The EU Taxonomy, which is subject to a phased implementation, may provide some definition for such "green",
"social”, "sustainable" or other similar topics in the EU or the UK. However, the full scope and applicability of the EU
Taxonomy, as well as exactly when it will take effect, remains uncertain. Accordingly, no assurance is or can be given
(whether by the Issuer, the Arrangers, the Dealers or any other person) to investors that: (a) any projects or uses the
subject of, or related to, any Eligible Projects will meet any or all investor expectations regarding such "green”, "social",
"sustainable" or other equivalently labelled performance objectives; (b) any adverse environmental, social and/or other
impacts will not occur during the implementation of any projects or uses the subject of, or related to, any Eligible Projects;
or (c) the Sustainable Financing Framework will be aligned with the EU Taxonomy or any other present or future

sustainability framework or guidelines.

The European Green Bond Regulation entered into force on 20 December 2023 and has applied since 21
December 2024. This regulation includes a set of requirements that securities shall be required to comply with in order
to be labelled as "European Green Bonds" or "EUGB", in particular the full allocation (before the maturity of any
European Green Bond) of the proceeds of such bonds to economic activities aligned with the EU Taxonomy Regulation
in accordance with the categories set forth in article 4 of the European Green Bond Regulation. Additionally, the European
Green Bond Regulation establishes specific transparency requirements, with which issuers will be required to comply
prior to and post an issuance of bonds labelled as "European Green Bonds" or "EuGB". However, as of the date of this
Base Prospectus further guidelines are yet to be developed by the European Commission in relation to the European
Green Bond Regulation. Therefore, the requirements of any such label may evolve from time to time and no assurance is
or can be given by the Issuer to investors that any loan, investment or project the subject of, or related to, any Eligible
Projects will meet any or all investor expectations regarding such "green" or other equivalently-labelled performance
objectives or that any adverse environmental and/or other impacts will not occur during the implementation of any loan,
investment or project or uses the subject of, or related to, any Eligible Projects. It is not clear if the establishment of the
"EuGB" label and the optional disclosures regime for bonds issued as "environmentally sustainable™ under the European
Green Bond Regulation could have an impact on investor demand for, and pricing of, green use of proceeds bonds that
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do not comply with the requirements of the "EuGB" label or the optional disclosures regime. It could result in reduced
liquidity or lower demand or could otherwise affect the market price of any notes issued that do not comply with those
standards proposed under the European Green Bond Regulation. No Green Notes or Sustainability-Linked Notes issued
under the Programme from time to time are intended to be labelled as "European Green Bonds" or "EuGB" and comply
with the European Green Bond Regulation.

The Sustainability-Linked Financing Framework section of the Sustainable Financing Framework
(the "Sustainability-Linked Financing Framework™) is aligned with the Sustainability-Linked Bond Principles (June
2023), as administered by ICMA, as well as the Sustainability-Linked Loan Principles (February 2023), as administered
by the Loan Market Association ("LMA™) and structured in accordance with the ICMA Climate Transition Finance
Handbook 2023. The Green Financing Framework is aligned with the Green Bond Principles (June 2021, with June 2022
Appendix I), as administered by ICMA, the Green Loan Principles (February 2023), as administered by the Loan
Syndication and Trading Association (the "LSTA"), the LMA and the Asia Pacific Loan Market Association ("APLMA"),
and the EU Taxonomy. None of the Issuer, the Arrangers, the Dealers or any other person makes any representation or
gives any assurance as to the Sustainable Financing Framework's compliance or alignment with the ICMA Principles and
the LMA Principles. These principles may be subject to change at any time without notice. Furthermore, none of the
Sustainable Financing Framework, the ICMA Principles or the LMA Principles or any associated reports, verification
assessments or the contents of the above websites are incorporated in or form part of this Base Prospectus.

While it is the Issuer's intention to apply an amount equal to the net proceeds of the Green Notes and to obtain
and publish the relevant reports, assessments, opinions and certifications in, or substantially in, the manner described in
the Sustainable Financing Framework, "Sustainable Financing Framework™ and "Use of proceeds", there can be no
assurance (whether by the Issuer, the Arrangers, the Dealers or any other person) that the Issuer will be able to do this.
Nor can there be any assurance that any Eligible Projects will be completed within any specified period or at all or with
the results or outcome (whether or not related to the environment) as originally expected or anticipated by the Issuer.

Any such event as described in the last sentence of the preceding paragraph or failure by the Issuer to apply an
amount equal to the net proceeds of the Green Notes for any Eligible Projects or to obtain and publish any such reports
and opinions, will not give rise to any claim in contract of a holder of Green Notes against the Issuer, any Dealer or any
other person. The withdrawal of any such report or opinion, or any report, assessment, opinion or certification attesting
that the Issuer is not complying in whole or in part with any matters for which that report, assessment, opinion or
certification is reporting, assessing, opining or certifying, and/or Green Notes no longer being listed or admitted to trading
on any stock exchange or securities market, as aforesaid, may have a material adverse effect on the value of Green Notes
concerned and/or result in adverse consequences for certain investors with portfolio mandates to invest in securities to
be used for a particular purpose.

An Eligible Project may no longer satisfy the eligibility criteria set out in the Sustainable Financing Framework
during the life of the project, due to changes of the Sustainable Financing Framework and/or circumstances of the project
or any other reasons. The reallocation of such proceeds to new Eligible Project may not be possible or may be delayed.
No representation or assurance is given or made by the Issuer, the Arrangers, the Dealers or any other person that the
equivalent amount used for financing or refinancing of Eligible Projects will always satisfy the eligibility criteria.

The amount equal to the net proceeds of the issue of Green Notes which, from time to time, is not allocated as
funding for Eligible Projects is intended by the Issuer to be invested, in accordance with the Issuer's cash management
policies. In particular, the Issuer intends to use any proceeds that will remain unallocated for short-term financing needs
or temporarily invest such proceeds in accordance with the Issuer's liquidity policy in cash or cash equivalents. While the
Issuer intends to track the net proceeds of the issue of any Green Notes in an appropriate manner, there can be no assurance
that the Green Notes or the proceeds therefrom will not be used to absorb any and all losses of the Issuer, regardless of
whether or not such losses stem from green, sustainable or other assets, in the same way as the Issuer's other instruments
not classified as Green Notes which may be called upon to cover all losses on the balance sheet.

No assurance of suitability or reliability of any second party opinion or any other opinion or certification of any third
party relating to any Green Notes

The Issuer has appointed ISS Corporate Solutions, Inc. ("1SS") to assess its Sustainable Financing Framework
and the alignment of the Green Financing Framework thereunder with the Green Bond Principles (June 2021, with June
2022 Appendix I), as administered by ICMA, the Green Loan Principles (February 2023), as administered by the LSTA,
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the LMA and the APLMA, and its compliance with the recommendations of the EU Taxonomy in a second party opinion
dated 10 May 2024 (the "Second Party Opinion™). The Second Party Opinion is published on the Issuer's website.

No assurance or representation is given as to the suitability or reliability for any purpose whatsoever of any
report, assessment, opinion or certification of any third party (whether or not solicited by the Issuer and including the
Second Party Opinion) which may or may not be made available in connection with the issue of Green Notes and in
particular with any of the businesses and projects funded with the proceeds of the Green Notes in the applicable Final
Terms or the equivalent amount to fulfil any green, environmental, sustainability, social and/or other criteria. For the
avoidance of doubt, any such opinion or certification is not, nor shall be deemed to be, incorporated in and/or form part
of this Base Prospectus. Any such report, assessment, opinion or certification is not, nor should it be deemed to be, a
recommendation by the Issuer, the Arrangers, the Dealers or any other person to buy, sell or hold Green Notes. Any such
report, assessment, opinion or certification is only current as of the date that opinion was initially issued, may be
subsequently withdrawn and may not address risks that relate to any Eligible Project or may affect the value of the Green
Notes. Prospective investors must determine for themselves the relevance of any such report, assessment, opinion or
certification and/or the information contained therein and/or the provider of such opinion or certification for the purpose
of any investment in Green Notes. The providers of such reports, assessments, opinions and certifications are not subject
to any specific oversight or regulatory or other regime or oversight.

The criteria and/or considerations that formed the basis of the Second Party Opinion and any other such opinion
or certification may change at any time and the Second Party Opinion may be amended, updated, supplemented, replaced
and/or withdrawn at any time. Any withdrawal of the Second Party Opinion or any other opinion or certification may
have a material adverse effect on the value of any Green Notes in respect of which such opinion or certification is given
and/or result in adverse consequences for certain investors with portfolio mandates to invest in securities to be used for
a particular purpose. As of the date of this Base Prospectus, the providers of such opinions and certifications are not
subject to any specific regulatory or other regime or oversight. Prospective investors must determine for themselves the
relevance of any such opinion or certification and/or the information contained therein. The Second Party Opinion and
any other such opinion or certification does not form part of, nor is incorporated by reference, in this Base Prospectus.

In addition, the failure to provide, or the withdrawal of, a third-party report, assessment, opinion or certification,
may have a material adverse effect on the value of such Notes and/or may have consequences for certain investors with
portfolio mandates to invest in green assets (which consequences may include the need to sell the Notes as a result of the
Notes not falling within the investor's investment criteria or mandate).

There is no assurance that Green Notes will be admitted to trading on any dedicated "‘green", "'sustainable', *'social"’
(or similar) segment of any stock exchange or market, or that any admission obtained will be maintained

If Green Notes are at any time listed or admitted to trading on any dedicated "green", “environmental”,
"sustainable” or other equivalently labelled segment of any stock exchange or securities market (whether or not
regulated), no representation or assurance is given by the Issuer, the Arrangers, the Dealers or any other person that such
listing or admission satisfies, whether in whole or in part, any present or future investor expectations or requirements as
regards any investment criteria or guidelines with which such investor or its investments are required to comply, whether
by any present or future applicable law or regulations or by its own bylaws or other governing rules or investment
portfolio mandates, in particular with regard to any direct or indirect environmental, sustainability or social impact of
any projects or uses, the subject of or related to, any of the businesses and projects funded with the proceeds from any
Green Notes. Furthermore, it should be noted that the criteria for any such listings or admission to trading may vary from
one stock exchange or securities market to another. Nor is any representation or assurance given or made by the Issuer,
the Arrangers, the Dealers or any other person that any such listing or admission to trading will be obtained in respect of
any Green Notes or, if obtained, that any such listing or admission to trading will be maintained during the life of the
Green Notes concerned.

Green Notes are not linked to the performance of the Eligible Projects, do not benefit from any arrangements to
enhance the performance of the Notes or any contractual rights derived solely from the intended use of proceeds of
such Notes

The performance of the Green Notes is not linked to the performance of the relevant Eligible Projects or the
performance of the Issuer in respect of any environmental or similar targets. There will be no segregation of assets and
liabilities in respect of the Green Notes and the Eligible Projects. Consequently, neither payments of principal and/or
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interest on the Green Notes nor any rights of Noteholders shall depend on the performance of the relevant Eligible Projects
or the performance of the Issuer in respect of any such environmental or similar targets. Holders of any Green Notes shall
have no preferential rights or priority against the assets of any Eligible Project nor benefit from any arrangements to
enhance the performance of the Notes.

Risks related to the Notes generally

Set out below is a description of material risks relating to the Notes generally:

The conditions of the Notes contain provisions which may permit their modification without the consent of all
investors.

The conditions of the Notes contain provisions for calling meetings of Noteholders to consider matters affecting
their interests generally. These provisions permit defined majorities to bind all Noteholders including Noteholders who
did not attend and vote at the relevant meeting and Noteholders who voted in a manner contrary to the majority.

The value of the Notes could be adversely affected by a change in English law or administrative practice.

The conditions of the Notes are based on English law in effect as of the date of this Base Prospectus. No
assurance can be given as to the impact of any possible judicial decision or change to English law or administrative
practice after the date of this Base Prospectus and any such change could materially adversely impact the value of any
Notes affected by it.

Investors who hold less than the minimum Specified Denomination may be unable to sell their Notes and be adversely
affected if definitive Notes are subsequently required to be issued.

In relation to any issue of Notes which have denominations consisting of a minimum Specified Denomination
plus one or more higher integral multiples of another smaller amount, it is possible that such Notes may be traded in
amounts that are not integral multiples of such minimum Specified Denomination. In such a case a holder who, as a result
of trading such amounts, holds an amount which is less than the minimum Specified Denomination in his account with the
relevant clearing system would not be able to sell the remainder of such holding without first purchasing a principal
amount of Notes at or in excess of the minimum Specified Denomination such that its holding amounts to a Specified
Denomination. Further, a holder who, as a result of trading such amounts, holds an amount which is less than the
minimum Specified Denomination in his account with the relevant clearing system at the relevant time may not receive
a definitive Note in respect of such holding (should definitive Notes be printed) and would need to purchase a principal
amount of Notes at or in excess of the minimum Specified Denomination such that its holding amounts to a Specified
Denomination.

If such Notes in definitive form are issued, holders should be aware that definitive Notes which have a
denomination that is not an integral multiple of the minimum Specified Denomination may be illiquid and difficult to
trade.

Withholding tax on interest in the Czech Republic

The Issuer is entitled to grant an exemption from Withholding Tax or Tax Security (as defined in Condition 7)
(to grant tax relief at source) only when it duly identifies the beneficial owner of the income. If a holder of the Notes fails
to provide the identification documents necessary for such Withholding Tax exemption, 35 per cent. Withholding Tax
will be applied on interest (coupon) payments. Interest income on the Notes paid to any Czech Tax Resident individual
is generally subject to a Withholding Tax at 15 per cent. Interest income on the Notes paid to Czech Tax Non-Resident
Persons Related Through Capital with the Issuer is generally subject to a Withholding Tax at 15 per cent. or 35 per cent.
Furthermore, where the Notes are issued at a price lower than their principal amount (i.e. below par), failure to provide
the identification documents would trigger a Tax Security of 1 per cent. from any payment of principal on such Notes.
As described in the sections "Subscription and Sale" and "Transfer Restrictions”, the Notes are not to be offered to such
individuals and Persons Related Through Capital with the Issuer. The Issuer is relying on the restrictions set out in the
sections "Subscription and Sale" and "Transfer Restrictions".
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If the Notes are acquired by an individual who is a Czech Tax Resident individual in breach of such restrictions,
the interest income will be subject to a withholding tax as required by law and no gross up will be made by the Issuer in
accordance with the Terms and Conditions. If the Notes are acquired by a Czech Tax Non-Resident Person Related
Through Capital with the Issuer in breach of such restrictions, subject to compliance with the Certification Procedures
defined below, the interest income may be subject to a withholding tax as required by law and no gross up will be made
by the Issuer in accordance with the Terms and Conditions. Holders should consult their own tax advisers regarding the
tax implications of their potential purchase, holding, or sale of the Notes. For additional information on the Czech taxation
regime, please see the section entitled "Taxation".

Risks associated with evidencing the entitlement to tax relief of the beneficial owner of income from the Notes

Under Czech tax law, the Issuer is personally liable for (i) any Withholding Tax and Tax Security (as the case
may be) payments which are required to be withheld or deducted at source at the appropriate rate under any applicable
law by or within the Tax Jurisdiction (as defined in Condition 7) from any payment of interest and principal in respect of
the Notes as well as (ii) the granting of any tax relief. The Issuer bears the related burden of proof, which necessitates,
before any tax relief can be granted, collection of the Beneficial Ownership Information (as defined in Condition 7).
Accordingly, for so long as this requirement is stipulated by Czech tax law, unless the Issuer receives information on the
beneficial owner of principal and interest payments in respect of a Note (whether this is because the relevant beneficial
owner fails to provide such information or because the relevant procedures have not been duly followed or for any other
reason, except where this is caused by actions or omissions of the Issuer or its agents), the Issuer will withhold (i) a
Withholding Tax amount of up to 35 per cent. of any interest payment under the Note and (ii) if such Note was issued at
a price lower than its principal amount (i.e. below par), 1 per cent. tax security from any payment of principal under the
Note unless the Issuer has the necessary information (by virtue of other means) to not apply the Withholding Tax (or to
apply it at a lower rate) or to not apply the tax security (as the case may be) and the Issuer will not gross up payments in
respect of any such withholding.

As aresult, the beneficial owner will be required to provide, in order to be entitled to any tax relief, the Beneficial
Ownership Information. If the Beneficial Ownership Information is not delivered to the Issuer (by or on behalf of the
beneficial owner) in respect of each interest payment or if it is incorrect, incomplete or inaccurate, payments of interest
to such beneficial owner will be subject to withholding tax of up to 35 per cent. If the Note was issued at a price lower
than its principal amount (i.e. below par), the tax security of 1 per cent. from any payment of principal on such Note will
also apply.

However, if the beneficial owner is otherwise entitled to any tax relief, it may then make use certain procedures
to recover any such tax withheld. In particular, Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg have implemented tax relief at
source and refund procedures for the Czech Republic to facilitate collection of the relevant Beneficial Ownership
Information in respect of Notes represented by a Global Note held on behalf of Euroclear and/or Clearstream,
Luxembourg ("Certification Procedures™). Under these Certification Procedures, if a beneficial owner of the Notes is
otherwise entitled to any tax relief, it may then make use of the quick refund procedures to recover any such tax withheld.
There is a risk, however, that such beneficial owner may not, in spite of duly providing the Beneficial Ownership
Information, obtain a refund of any amounts withheld.

Should the beneficial owner, who would otherwise be entitled to any tax relief, fail for any reason to make use
of the quick refund procedure, the beneficial owner may make use — with respect to Withholding Tax only — of the
standard refund procedure. There is a risk, however, that such beneficial owner may not, in spite of duly providing the
Beneficial Ownership Information, obtain a refund of any amounts withheld, as under the standard refund procedure, it
is conditional on the ability of the Issuer to firstly successfully obtain a corresponding refund of the amounts originally
withheld and paid to the Czech tax authorities. The use of the standard refund procedure is also subject to a fee in respect
of the Issuer's administrative costs in following this procedure.

In addition, a concept of the Entitlement Date (as defined below) is reflected in "Terms and Conditions of the
Notes" and this concept will also be taken into account for the purposes of the Certification Procedures and may adversely
affect the Beneficial Owner's eligibility for any tax relief to be granted under these procedures (see risk factor "Entitlement
Date applicable in respect of the Notes" below).
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The Certification Procedures have only been subject to limited testing in practice and, as such, there is a risk
that the procedures may be burdensome on the beneficial owners or result in additional costs being incurred by the
beneficial owners. Further, the Issuer accepts no responsibility and will not be liable for any damage or loss suffered by
any beneficial owner to whom payments under the Notes are paid net of any Withholding Tax or Tax Security (as the
case may be) withheld by the Issuer either because the Certification Procedures have proven ineffective or because the
Certification Procedures have not been duly followed or for any other reason even though they would otherwise be
entitled to a tax relief, except where this is caused by actions or omissions of the Issuer or its agents. Furthermore, the
Notes or the Amended and Restated Agency Agreement may be amended without the consent of the holders of the Notes
to reflect any modification of the Conditions which is necessary to reflect any changes, amendments or updates to the
Certification Procedures that are reasonably necessary, including but not limited to any amendment to the Entitlement
Date required by the Certification Procedures.

Where the beneficial owner does not hold Notes directly on an account in the books of an International Central
Securities Depository ("ICSD"), it may not be able to benefit from the Certification Procedures if the intermediary through
which it holds the Notes in the ICSD has not implemented the Certification Procedures. Further, if Notes in definitive
form are issued, holders should be aware that there may be different certification procedures put in place which may
adversely affect the value of the Notes.

In addition, in accordance with the terms and conditions between the ICSDs and the participants to the ICSDs,
the ICSDs are not obliged to provide tax assistance and may unilaterally decide to discontinue the application of tax
services, for which no liability for any consequences of such discontinuation is accepted. Consequently, there is a risk
that the Certification Procedures may be discontinued at any time.

See the "Taxation™ section for a fuller description of certain tax considerations relating to the Notes and the
formalities which beneficial owners must follow in order to claim exemption from Withholding Tax and Tax Security
(as applicable), as well as the procedures and formalities for claiming a refund for amounts that have been withheld,
where applicable.

Entitlement Date applicable in respect of the Notes

In order for Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg to be able to implement the tax compliance procedures
referred to above, the Terms and Conditions introduce this concept as the Certification Procedures (see "Risks associated
with evidencing the entitlement to tax relief of the beneficial owner of income from the Notes™ above) while Notes are
represented by one or more Global Notes cleared through the clearing systems to ensure that the Certification Procedures
work as intended. The Entitlement Date serves as a cut-off date for determining whether payments of principal, interest
or any other amount to Noteholders will require a deduction to be made or whether such payments can be paid gross. The
concept applies to Notes while represented by a Global Note only and where the rules and procedures of the clearing
systems govern payments of interests in the Global Notes(s) held in the clearing systems. The Notes may be exchanged
for definitive Notes in the limited circumstances set out in the relevant Global Note(s) and to the extent an equivalent
procedure is required at the time of exchange into definitive Notes in order to operate such tax compliance procedures,
this would be set out in the relevant definitive Note(s). A concept of an Entitlement Date is unusual for bearer notes and
has only been the subject of limited testing in practice.

Accordingly, and for long as the Notes are represented by one or more Global Note(s) and the rules and
regulations of Euroclear and / or Clearstream, Luxembourg require it in order to give effect to the Czech tax compliance
procedures, any payments of principal, interest or any other amounts in respect of Notes will only be made to a holder of
such Notes that was a holder of such Notes at the close of business on the date being fifteen business days (being for this
purpose a day on which Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg are open for business) before the relevant due date (the
"Entitlement Date"). Noteholders and / or prospective holders who may sell or acquire an interest in a Note between the
Entitlement Date and the relevant payment date should be aware that payment will only be made to the relevant holder
appearing in the records of either Euroclear and / or Clearstream, Luxembourg on the Entitlement Date and not to a holder
to which the Notes had been transferred after the Entitlement Date.
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Risks related to the market generally

Set out below is a description of the material market risks, including liquidity risk, exchange rate risk, interest
rate risk and credit risk:

An active secondary market in respect of the Notes may never be established or may be illiquid and this would adversely
affect the value at which an investor could sell his Notes.

Notes may have no established trading market when issued, and one may never develop. If a market for the Notes
does develop, it may not be very liquid. In addition, the ability of the Dealers to make a market in the Notes may be
impacted by changes in regulatory requirements applicable to the marketing, holding and trading of, and issuing
quotations with respect to, the Notes. Therefore, investors may not be able to sell their Notes easily or at prices that will
provide them with a yield comparable to similar investments that have a developed secondary market. This is particularly
the case for Notes that are especially sensitive to interest rate, currency or market risks, are designed for specific
investment objectives or strategies or have been structured to meet the investment requirements of limited categories of
investors. These types of Notes generally would have a more limited secondary market and more price volatility than
conventional debt securities.

If an investor holds Notes which are not denominated in the investor's home currency, they will be exposed to
movements in exchange rates adversely affecting the value of their holding. In addition, the imposition of exchange
controls in relation to any Notes could result in an investor not receiving payments on those Notes.

The Issuer will pay principal and interest on the Notes in the Specified Currency. This presents certain risks
relating to currency conversions if an investor's financial activities are denominated principally in a currency or currency
unit (the "Investor's Currency") other than the Specified Currency. These include the risk that exchange rates may
significantly change (including changes due to devaluation of the Specified Currency or revaluation of the Investor's
Currency) and the risk that authorities with jurisdiction over the Investor's Currency may impose or modify exchange
controls. An appreciation in the value of the Investor's Currency relative to the Specified Currency would decrease (1)
the Investor's Currency equivalent yield on the Notes, (2) the Investor's Currency equivalent value of the principal payable
on the Notes and (3) the Investor's Currency equivalent market value of the Notes.

Government and monetary authorities may impose (as some have done in the past) exchange controls that could
adversely affect an applicable exchange rate or the ability of the Issuer to make payments in respect of the Notes. As a
result, investors may receive less interest or principal than expected, or no interest or principal.

The value of Fixed Rate Notes may be adversely affected by movements in market interest rates.

Investment in Fixed Rate Notes involves the risk that if market interest rates subsequently increase above the
rate paid on the Fixed Rate Notes, this will adversely affect the value of the Fixed Rate Notes.

Credit ratings assigned to the Issuer or any Notes may not reflect all the risks associated with an investment in those
Notes.

The Issuer's credit ratings are A- (stable outlook) by Standard & Poor's and Baal (negative outlook) by Moody's.
Standard & Poor's (domiciled in Ireland) and Moody's (domiciled in France) are both are included in the list of credit
rating agencies registered in accordance with the CRA Regulation, which is available on the ESMA website
(https://www.esma.europa.eu/credit-rating-agencies/cra-authorisation). The list of registered and certified rating
agencies published by ESMA on its website is not conclusive evidence of the status of the relevant rating agency included
in such list, as there may be delays between certain supervisory measures being taken against a relevant rating agency
and the publication of the updated ESMA list. In addition, Standard & Poor's, Moody's and/or other independent credit
rating agencies may assign credit ratings to the Notes. Any rating is not a recommendation to purchase, sell or hold any
particular security, including the Notes. These ratings are limited in scope and do not comment as to market price or
suitability for a particular investor. In addition, ratings at any time may be lowered or withdrawn in their entirety. Actual
or anticipated changes or downgrades in the Issuer's credit ratings, including any announcement that the Issuer's ratings
are under further review for a downgrade, could affect the market value of the Notes and increase the Issuer's borrowing
Costs.
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European regulated investors are restricted under the CRA Regulation from using credit ratings for regulatory
purposes, unless such ratings are issued by a credit rating agency established in the EU and registered under the CRA
Regulation (and such registration has not been withdrawn or suspended), subject to transitional provisions that apply in
certain circumstances. Such general restriction will also apply in the case of credit ratings issued by non-EU credit rating
agencies, unless the relevant credit ratings are endorsed by an EU-registered credit rating agency or the relevant non-EU
rating agency is certified in accordance with the CRA Regulation (and such endorsement action or certification, as the
case may be, has not been withdrawn or suspended, subject to transitional provisions that apply in certain circumstances).
Certain information with respect to the credit rating agencies and ratings is set out in this Base Prospectus.

Investors regulated in the UK are subject to similar restrictions under the CRA Regulation as it forms part of the
current domestic law of the UK by virtue of the EUWA (the "UK CRA Regulation"). UK regulated investors are restricted
under the UK CRA Regulation from using credit ratings for regulatory purposes, unless such ratings are issued by a credit
rating agency established in the UK and registered under the UK CRA Regulation (and such registration has not been
withdrawn or suspended), subject to transitional provisions that apply in certain circumstances. Such general restriction
will also apply in the case of credit ratings issued by non-UK credit rating agencies, unless the relevant credit ratings are
endorsed by a UK-registered credit rating agency or the relevant non-UK rating agency is certified in accordance with
the UK CRA Regulation (and such endorsement action or certification, as the case may be, has not been withdrawn or
suspended, subject to transitional provisions that apply in certain circumstances). Certain information with respect to the
credit rating agencies and ratings is set out in this Base Prospectus.
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STABILIZATION

In connection with the issue of any Tranche of Notes, the Dealer or Dealers (if any) named as the Stabilization
Manager(s) (or persons acting on behalf of any Stabilization Manager(s)) in the applicable Final Terms or (in the
case of Exempt Notes) the applicable Pricing Supplement may over-allot Notes or effect transactions with a view
to supporting the market price of the Notes at a level higher than that which might otherwise prevail. However,
stabilization may not necessarily occur. Any stabilization action may begin on or after the date on which adequate
public disclosure of the terms of the offer of the relevant Tranche of Notes is made and, if begun, may cease at any
time, but it must end no later than the earlier of 30 days after the issue date of the relevant Tranche of Notes and
60 days after the date of the allotment of the relevant Tranche of Notes. Any stabilization action or over-allotment
must be conducted by the relevant Stabilization Manager(s) (or persons acting on behalf of any Stabilization
Manager(s)) in accordance with all applicable laws and rules.
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PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

With the exception of certain alternative performance measures (please see "—Alternative Performance
Measures"), the financial information as of and for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 included in this Base
Prospectus has been derived from the audited consolidated financial statements of the CEZ Group as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2024 (the "2024 Financial Statements™) and the audited consolidated financial statements of the
CEZ Group as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023 (the 2023 Financial Statements" and together with the 2024
Financial Statements, the "Financial Statements").

The 2024 Financial Statements and the audited separate financial statements of CEZ as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2024 (together with an English translation of the audit reports thereon) are reproduced in full in this Base
Prospectus (see page F-1 et seq.). The 2023 Financial Statements and the audited separate financial statements of CEZ
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023 are incorporated by reference into this Base Prospectus (see "Documents
Incorporated by Reference").

Certain amounts and percentages which appear in this Base Prospectus have been subject to rounding adjustments,
and, accordingly, figures shown as totals in certain tables may not be an arithmetic aggregation of the figures that precede
them.

Alternative Performance Measures

In this Base Prospectus, we present the following metrics calculated on the basis of the Financial Statements which
are not calculated in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as adopted in the EU and
which are therefore non-IFRS measures. CEZ considers each metric set out below to constitute an alternative performance
measures (an "APM™) described in, and to comply with, the European Securities and Markets Authority Guidelines on
Alternative Performance Measures (the "ESMA Guidelines™) published on October 5, 2015 by the European Securities
and Markets Authority and which came into force on July 3, 2016. CEZ considers that these metrics provide useful
information for investors and other interested parties in order to better understand the underlying business, the financial
position, cash flows and results of operations of CEZ. An APM should not be considered in isolation from, or as substitute
for any analysis of, financial measures defined according to IFRS. Investors are advised to review these APMs in
conjunction with the Financial Statements included in, or incorporated by reference into, this Base Prospectus. Please see
"Selected Financial Information — Other Financial Information” for reconciliation of the APMs to our Financial
Statements.

APM Definition of APM Purpose of APM
EBIT Income before other income (expenses) and income taxes. Measure of operating performance.
EBITDA Income before other income (expenses) and income taxes Measure of operating performance.

plus depreciation and amortization plus impairment of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets and
less gains and losses on sale of property, plant and
equipment.
EBITDA Margin Percentage corresponding to the ratio of EBITDA to total Measure of operating profitability.
revenues and other operating income.
Net Debt Total Debt less cash and cash equivalents and highly liquid Measure of indebtedness.
financial assets. Highly liquid financial assets consist for
capital management purposes of short-term and long-term
debt financial assets and short-term and long-term bank
deposits.
Net Debt/EBITDA  Ratio of Net Debt to EBITDA. Measure of indebtedness and
Ratio borrowing capacity.

The APMs are supplemental measures of our performance and liquidity that are not required by or presented in
accordance with IFRS. Furthermore, the APMs should not be considered as an alternative to income after taxes, income
before taxes or any other performance measures derived in accordance with IFRS or as an alternative to cash flow from
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operating activities, as a measure of our liquidity or as a measure of cash available to us to invest in the growth of our
business.

The APMs are included in this Base Prospectus to extend the financial disclosure to metrics which are used, along
with IFRS measures, by our management in monitoring and valuating the CEZ Group's economic and financial
performance, and provide investors with further basis, along with IFRS measures, for measuring the CEZ Group's
performance.

The APMs presented in this Base Prospectus may not be comparable to other similarly titled measures of other
companies. The APMs are not measurements of our performance or liquidity under IFRS and should not be considered
as alternatives to operating income or net profit or any other performance measures derived in accordance with IFRS or
any other generally accepted accounting principles, or as alternatives to cash flow from operating, investing or financing
activities.

The APMs have limitations as analytical tools, and should not be considered in isolation, or as a substitute for
analysis of our results as reported under IFRS as set out in our audited consolidated financial statements and you should
not place any undue reliance on our APMs. Some of these limitations related to the APMs are:

o they do not reflect our cash expenditures or future requirements for capital expenditures or contractual commitments;
e they do not reflect changes in, or cash requirements for, our working capital needs;

o they do not reflect the interest expense or cash requirements necessary to service interest or principal payments on
our debt;

o they do not reflect gains or losses in hedging or foreign exchange contracts;
o they do not reflect any cash income taxes that we may be required to pay;
o they are not adjusted for all non-cash income or expense items that are reflected in our statements of cash flows;

e they do not reflect the impact of earnings or charges resulting from certain matters we consider not to be indicative
of our ongoing operations;

e assets are depreciated or amortized over differing estimated useful lives and often have to be replaced in the future,
and these measures do not reflect any cash requirements for such replacements; and

e  other companies in our industry may calculate these measures differently than we do, limiting their usefulness as
comparative measures.

Because of these limitations, the APMs should not be considered as measures of discretionary cash available to
us to invest in the growth of our business or as measures of cash that will be available to us to meet our obligations. You
should compensate for these limitations by relying primarily on our IFRS results and using these APMs only as
supplemental means for evaluating our performance. Please see "Selected Financial Information™ and our audited
consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto, which are included in, or incorporated by reference into, this Base
Prospectus.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Base Prospectus includes forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements can be identified
by the use of forward-looking terminology, including the terms "believe", "estimate", "anticipate”, "expect", "forecast",
"foresee”, "aim", "intend", "may", "plan", "project"”, "seek", "should", "will", "would" or, in each case, similar expressions
or the negative thereof, or other variations or comparable terminology. These forward-looking statements include all
matters that are not historical facts. Such forward-looking statements are necessarily dependent on assumptions, data or
methods that may be incorrect or imprecise and that may be incapable of being realized. They appear in a number of
places throughout this Base Prospectus and include statements regarding our intentions, beliefs or current expectations
concerning, among other things, our results of operations, financial condition, liquidity, prospects, growth, strategies and
the industry in which we operate.

By their nature, forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors
because they relate to events and depend on circumstances that may or may not occur in the future. The Issuer cautions
you that forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and that the actual results of the Group's
operations, including its financial condition and liquidity, and the development of the Group's industry may differ
materially from those made in or suggested by the forward-looking statements contained in this Base Prospectus. In
addition, even if the Group's results of operations, financial condition and liquidity, and the development of the Group's
industry are consistent with the forward-looking statements contained in this Base Prospectus, those results or
developments may not be indicative of results or developments in subsequent periods. Factors that could cause these
differences include, but are not limited to:

e adecrease in demand for electricity and gas, including as a result of a potential return of global economic
crisis;

e our strategy, outlook and growth prospects;

e our ability to expand our business and our generation capacity;

o fluctuations in electricity generated by our power plants;

e changes in government regulation and expectations as to future governmental policies and actions;

e unanticipated increases in fuel and other costs;

o fluctuations in interest rates and other market conditions, including foreign currency exchange rates;

e our ability to generate cash flow and to finance our capital expenditure needs;

e any decision by the Czech Government to undertake a partial or full privatization or nationalization of CEZ;

e diverse political, economic, legal, tax and other conditions affecting the markets in which we operate,
including armed conflicts, such as the current conflict between Russia and Ukraine;

e competition in the markets in which we operate and our ability to compete in such markets;
e costs, liabilities and penalties we may incur in connection with litigation;
o other risks and factors discussed in this Base Prospectus including under the heading "Risk Factors"; and

o other factors that are unforeseen or beyond our control.

Although the Issuer believes the expectations reflected in any forward-looking statement are reasonable, it
cannot give any assurance that they will materialize or prove to be correct.

The Issuer urges you to read "Risk Factors", "Regulation” and "Description of CEZ" for a more complete
discussion of the factors that could affect the Issuer's future performance, its industry and related regulation thereof. In
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light of these risks, uncertainties and assumptions, the events described or suggested by the forward-looking statements
in this Base Prospectus may not occur.

These forward-looking statements speak only as of the date on which the statements were made. Except as
required by law or applicable stock exchange rules or regulations, the Issuer undertakes no obligation to update or revise
publicly any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. All
subsequent written and oral forward-looking statements attributable to the Issuer or to persons acting on the Issuer's
behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements referred to above and contained elsewhere in
this Base Prospectus.
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HISTORICAL AND CURRENT MARKET AND INDUSTRY DATA

Certain information contained in this Base Prospectus was derived from various public sources, including
information published by Bloomberg, the Czech National Bank, the Czech Statistical Office, the ERO, Federal Network
Agency for Electricity, Gas, Telecommunications, Posts and Railway (Bundesnetzagentur) in Germany and Regulatory
Commission of Energy (Commission de Régulation de [’Energie) in France. Where information has been sourced from
a third party the source has been identified, the information has been accurately reproduced and (as far as the Issuer is
aware and is able to ascertain from information published by that third party) no facts have been omitted which could
render the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading.

CEZ believes that the market and industry information contained in this Base Prospectus provides fair and
adequate estimates of the size of the Group's market and fairly reflects the Group's competitive position within that
market. However, the Group's internal company surveys and management estimates have not been verified by any
independent expert, and CEZ cannot give any assurance that a third party using different methods to assemble, analyse
or calculate market data would obtain or generate the same results.

Industry publications, surveys and forecasts generally state that the information contained therein has been
obtained from sources believed to be reliable, but the accuracy and completeness of such information is not guaranteed.
The Issuer believes that these industry publications, surveys and forecasts are reliable but the Issuer has not independently
verified them and cannot guarantee their accuracy or completeness. Further, the information presented in this Base
Prospectus has been derived from several sources, as there is no single industry report or other source that covers all of
the areas in which the Group conducts its operations.

In addition, CEZ has provided the data contained in this Base Prospectus as to installed capacity, generation and
other market share information with respect to the electricity and heating industries in the Czech Republic (unless
explicitly stated otherwise). The Group compiles and publishes certain of this data on a regular basis, and also supplies
certain of this data to the Czech Statistical Office and the ERO for use in compiling national data on the energy sector.

59



SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following tables set forth summary consolidated financial information of the CEZ Group as of and for the
periods indicated.

With the exception of certain APMs discussed in "Presentation of Financial Information” the financial
information as of and for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2024 included in this Base Prospectus has been derived
from our Financial Statements prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board, including interpretations of the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee ("IFRIC"), previously referred to as the "Standing Interpretations Committee™ ("SIC"), and,
also including, International Accounting Standards, where the context requires, as endorsed by the European
Commission for use in the EU ("IFRS"), which are included in, or incorporated by reference into, this Base Prospectus.

The summary financial data in the tables below should be read together with the Financial Statements, including
the notes thereto and the audit report on the Financial Statements, which are included in, or incorporated by reference
into, this Base Prospectus. Please also see "Presentation of Financial Information” and "Risk Factors" herein.

Income Statement Data

The following table sets forth summary consolidated income statement data of the CEZ Group for the years

ended December 31, 2023 and 2024.
For the year ended December 31,

2023 2024
(CZK millions)

Sales of electricity, heat, gas and coal..............c.cccoeun... 251,799 233,220
Sales of services and other revenues............ccccceeeeennne 84,585 107,103
Other operating iNCOME........ccceviveieeie e 4,201 4,386
Total Revenues and other operating income ............ 340,585 344,709
Operating expenses:
Gains and losses from commodity derivative trading ... 15,504 6,249
Purchase of electricity, gas and other energies.............. (83,181) (61,498)
Fuel and emission rights..........ccccceeveivenncneccece e, (40,243) (43,261)
SBIVICES ..ttt (39,722) (46,921)
Salaries and WagesS ........ccoevvereineneene e (37,783) (42,538)
Materials and SUPPHES.........ccooviiririiiieeee e (17,514) (19,710)
Capitalization of expenses to the cost of assets and
change in OWn INVENLOTIES........ccveveieriir e 4,590 4,685
Depreciation and amortization ............cccceeveeneiienennn (35,336) (41,709)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assetsS ........cccvvvevieie e (5,300) (2,558)
Impairment of trade and other receivables (443) (685)
Other operating EXPENSES .......vcieerieeieeieeiireseeseeseesreens (16,645) (3,320)
Income before other income (expenses) and
INCOME TAXES. ...eiveeierei ittt ettt 84,512 93,443
Total other iNCOMe (EXPENSES) ....ovvvvivirvieiirieeinieees (5,496) (10,003)
Income before iNCOME taxes ......ccccevvvvvivrvniveierieiinns 79,016 83,440
INCOME TAXES ...ttt (49,442) (52,926)
NEL INCOME ..o s 29,574 30,514
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Balance Sheet Data

The following table sets forth summary consolidated balance sheet data of the CEZ Group as of December 31,
2023 and 2024.

As of December 31,
2023 2024
(CZK millions)

Assets:

Total property, plant and equipmMeNt..........cccccevvvvvieeecceeseniens 452,132 580,704
Total other NON-CUrreNnt aSSetS .......cocvvvivveiieiieireeire e 88,526 82,433
Total NON-CUITENT @SSELS ......cccvveereiicriecree ettt 540,658 663,137
Total CUITENT ASSELS .vviiiveeiiiiiieeciee et cree et 285,107 238,837
TOLAlI ASSELS ..veivviicieee et 825,765 901,974
Equity and Liabilities:

Total equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 244,052 239,274
Q0] = L =T [N RS 245,601 250,914
Total non-current liabilities..........cccovevviivieiiecicccce e, 346,505 464,068
Total current Habilities...........coceevvi i, 233,659 186,992
Total equity and liabilities..........c.ccccvieiieiieiie e, 825,765 901,974

Statement of Cash flow Data

The following table sets forth summary consolidated statement of cash flow data of the CEZ Group for the years

ended December 31, 2023 and 2024.
For the year ended December 31,

2023* 2024
(CZK millions)
Net cash provided by operating activities...........ccoeviveriinicnenns 138,203 124,435
Net cash flow from investing activities...........cccocvvviiiniiiinenns (46,691) (76,653)
Net cash flow from financing activities ............ccccoevvviiiiiinenns (116,951) (18,184)
Net effect of currency translation and allowances in cash ............ (278) (71)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .............. (25,717) 29,527
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period.. 36,609 10,892
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period............c.......... 10,892 40,419

* The presentation method of this statement was changed in 2024. The amounts of previous period were adjusted to be comparable with
current period disclosure, so they do not fully correspond to the state presented in separate financial statement as of December 31, 2023.

Other Financial Information

The following table sets forth certain APMs (non-IFRS financial information) used by our management to
monitor and evaluate our economic and financial performance. These indicators, "EBIT", "EBITDA", "EBITDA
Margin", and "Net Debt" are not recognized as accounting standards within the IFRS adopted by the EU, and therefore
must not be considered as alternatives to any measures of performance under IFRS.

For the year ended December 31,

2023 2024
(CZK millions, except percentages)
EBIT e 84,512 93,443
EBITDA. .ottt sttt 124,839 137,462
EBITDA Margin.....covoeiieiiierieieiiesieesiesieiesieseeesseseeesnesens 36.7% 39.9%

The APMs presented above may not be comparable to other similarly titled measures of other companies and
have limitations as analytical tools and should not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for analysis of our operating
results as reported under IFRS. These APMs are not measurements of our performance or liquidity under IFRS and should
not be considered as alternatives to operating income or net profit or any other performance measures derived in
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accordance with IFRS or any other generally accepted accounting principles, or as alternatives to cash flow from
operating, investing or financing activities.

Our APMs have limitations as analytical tools, and you should not consider them in isolation, or as a substitute
for analysis of our results as reported under IFRS as set out in our audited consolidated financial statements and you
should not place any undue reliance on our APMs.

The following table is a reconciliation of the CEZ Group's Net Debt as of December 31, 2023 and 2024 to the
Financial Statements. Net Debt is an APM. Please see "Presentation of Financial Information — Alternative Performance

Measures."
For the year ended December 31,

2023 2024
(CZK millions)

Long-term debt, net of current portion ............c.cceeevvercinennnn, 131,042 216.908
Current portion of long-term debt...........cccoooiiininiiiniie 30,554 26,689
ShOrt-term 08NS ....c.oiiiiiiee e s 7,314 2,552
Long-term debt associated with assets classified as

held fOr SAIE ....ocvie e - 99
Cash and cash equiValents ...........cccccevereieneneienecee e (10,892) (40,324)
Cash and cash equivalents classified as held for sale - (95)
Highly liquid financial assets, of which: ..........c.ccccocriiiinnnn (6,723) (3,077)
Current debt financial asSetS.........cccvvvvievieniieeie e (6,657) (3,077)
LoNg-term dePOSItS......ccviveiiiieecre e (66) ()
NEE DEDL.....coeiiiiiieee e 151,295 202,752

The following table is a reconciliation of EBIT, EBITDA and Net Debt/EBITDA Ratio for the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2024 to our Financial Statements are APMs. Please see "Presentation of Financial Information—
Alternative Performance Measures".

For the year ended December 31,
2023 2024
(CZK millions, except percentages)

Income before other income (expenses) and income

LBXES -ttt 84,512 93,443
EBIT oo 84,512 93,443
Depreciation and amortization............c.cccceeverinennne, 35,336 41,709
Impairment of property, plant and equipment and

intangible assets including goodwill..............ccccociie 5,300 2,558
Gain/loss from sale of property, plant and equipment

and intangibles.........ccoov v (309) (248)
EBITDA ... 124,839 137,462
Total revenues and other operating income................... 340,585 344,709
EBITDA Margin.....ccooeoinieiinncennieensee e 36.7% 39.9%
Net Debt/EBITDA RaAtiO ....ccocvevvvvevevice e 1.21 1.47
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The following documents which have previously been published or are published simultaneously with this
Base Prospectus and have been filed with the CSSF and the Luxembourg Stock Exchange shall be incorporated by
reference in, and form part of, this Base Prospectus:

@ The following documents comprising the audited consolidated annual financial statements of the CEZ
Group as well as the audited separate financial statements of CEZ, in each case for the financial year ended
December 31, 2023 and including the auditor’s report thereon:

Annual Report of the CEZ Group for the Year Ended December 31, 2023 Page
(available at https://www.cez.cz/webpublic/file/edee/ospol/fileexport/investori/vz-
2023/cez-group-annual-financial-report-2023-pdf.pdf)

Independent Auditor's Report for the Consolidated Financial Statements 295-300
Consolidated Balance Sheet 220
Consolidated Statement of Income 221
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 222
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 223
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 224
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 225-294
Independent Auditor's Report for the separate Financial Statements 358-361
Separate Balance Sheet 302
Separate Statement of Income 303
Separate Statement of Comprehensive Income 304
Separate Statement of Changes in Equity 304
Separate Statement of Cash Flows 305
Notes to the separate Financial Statements 306-357
Report on Relations Between the Controlling and the Controlled Entity and Between the 164-216

Controlled Entity and Entities Controlled by the Same Controlling Entity for the Accounting
Period of January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023

In addition to the above, the following documents published by CEZ from time to time on or after the date
of this Base Prospectus (at https://www.cez.cz/en/investors/financial-reports), shall, when published, be
incorporated by reference in, and form part of, this Base Prospectus:

(b) the information set out in the following sections of any future audited consolidated annual financial
statements of the CEZ Group and audited separate financial statements of CEZ, including the auditor’s
report thereon:

Independent Auditor's Report for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Consolidated Balance Sheet

Consolidated Statement of Income

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Independent Auditor's Report for the separate Financial Statements
Separate Balance Sheet

Separate Statement of Income

Separate Statement of Comprehensive Income
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https://www.cez.cz/webpublic/file/edee/ospol/fileexport/investori/vz-2023/cez-group-annual-financial-report-2023-pdf.pdf
https://www.cez.cz/webpublic/file/edee/ospol/fileexport/investori/vz-2023/cez-group-annual-financial-report-2023-pdf.pdf
https://www.cez.cz/en/investors/financial-reports

Separate Statement of Changes in Equity
Separate Statement of Cash Flows
Notes to the separate Financial Statements

Report on Relations Between the Controlling and the Controlled Entity and Between the Controlled Entity
and Entities Controlled by the Same Controlling Entity for the relevant Accounting Period

(©) the information set out in the following sections of any future consolidated interim financial statements of
the CEZ Group:

Consolidated Interim Balance Sheet

Consolidated Interim Statement of Income

Consolidated Interim Statement of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Interim Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Interim Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

(d) the information set out in the following sections of any future separate interim financial statements of CEZ:

Separate Interim Balance Sheet

Separate Interim Statement of Income

Separate Interim Statement of Comprehensive Income
Separate Interim Statement of Changes in Equity
Separate Interim Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the separate Interim Financial Statements

Information incorporated by reference pursuant to (b) to (d) above shall, to the extent applicable, be deemed
to modify or supersede statements contained in this Base Prospectus.

The information incorporated by reference that is not included in the above cross-reference lists is
considered as additional information to be disclosed to investors rather than information required by the relevant
schedules of Commission Delegated Regulation (EC) 2019/980 supplementing the Prospectus Regulation.

The section "Terms and Conditions of the Notes" from the following base prospectuses relating to the
Programme shall be deemed to be incorporated by reference in, and to form part of, this Base Prospectus:

@) Base Prospectus dated September 24, 2007 (pages 40-64 inclusive)
(available at https://www.cez.cz/webpublic/file/edee/2020/04/base-prospectus-24-09-2007.pdf);

(b) Base Prospectus dated March 19, 2009 (pages 40-64 inclusive)
(available at https://www.cez.cz/webpublic/file/edee/2020/04/base-prospectus-19-03-2009.pdf);

(c) Base Prospectus dated March 31, 2010 (pages 41-66 inclusive)
(available at https://www.cez.cz/webpublic/file/edee/2020/04/base-prospectus-31-03-2010.pdf);

(d) Base Prospectus dated April 23, 2012 (pages 62-87 inclusive)
(available at https://www.cez.cz/webpublic/file/edee/2020/04/base-prospectus-23-04-2012.pdf);

(e) Base Prospectus dated April 19, 2013 (pages 71-95 inclusive)
(available at https://www.cez.cz/webpublic/file/edee/2020/04/base-prospectus-19-04-2013.pdf);

(f Base Prospectus dated April 23, 2019 (pages 91-120 inclusive)
(available at https://www.cez.cz/webpublic/file/edee/2020/04/base-prospectus-23-04-2019.pdf);
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https://www.cez.cz/webpublic/file/edee/2020/04/base-prospectus-24-09-2007.pdf
https://www.cez.cz/webpublic/file/edee/2020/04/base-prospectus-23-04-2019.pdf

(9) Base Prospectus dated March 24, 2022 (pages 98-136 inclusive)
(available at https://www.cez.cz/webpublic/file/edee/2022/03/cez-emtn-base-prospectus 24-march-

2022.pdf); and

(h) Base Prospectus dated May 28, 2024 (pages 103-144 inclusive) (available at
https://www.cez.cz/webpublic/file/edee/2024/05/cez-emtn-base-prospectus-28-may-2024.pdf)

(together, the "Previous Terms and Conditions").

Any non-incorporated parts of a document referred to herein are either deemed not relevant for an investor or
are otherwise covered elsewhere in this Base Prospectus.

Following the publication of this Base Prospectus, CEZ will, in the event of any significant new factor, material
mistake or material inaccuracy relating to the information included in this Base Prospectus which may affect the
assessment of any Notes, prepare a supplement to this Base Prospectus or publish a new Base Prospectus for use in
connection with any subsequent issue of Notes. Statements contained in any such supplement (or contained in any
document incorporated by reference therein) shall, to the extent applicable (whether expressly, by implication or
otherwise), be deemed to modify or supersede statements contained in this Base Prospectus or in a document which is
incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus. Any statement so modified or superseded shall not, except as so
modified or superseded, constitute a part of this Base Prospectus.

The documents incorporated by reference as at the date of this Base Prospectus are, and the documents published
by CEZ from time to time after the date of this Base Prospectus and which are to be incorporated by reference in this
Base Prospectus will be, available free of charge on the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (www.luxse.com).
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS AND DEFINITIONS

Terms and definitions used in this Base Prospectus have the meanings set forth below.

"Achmea Judgment"

"Articles of Association"
"Audit Committee"
"BAT"

"BIT"

"BIT
Agreement"

Termination

"Board of Directors"
"Bonds Act"

"Capital Market Act"

"CCGT"
"CER"

"CEZ Group," the "Group™,

we", "us" or "our"
"CEZ"
"CHP"
"COZH

"Corporate Governance

Codex (2018)"
"CRA Regulation™

"CSD"

"CSSF"

"Czech Air Protection Act"
"Czech Banks Act"

"Czech Code of Criminal
Procedure™"

"Czech Companies Act"

the decision of the European Court of Justice in case C-284/16 Slowakische Republik
v Achmea BV

the articles of association of CEZ
the audit committee of CEZ
the best available techniques
a bilateral investment treaty

the Agreement for the Termination of Bilateral Investment Treaties between the
Member States of the EU

the board of directors of CEZ
Czech Act No. 190/2004 Coll., on Bonds, as amended

Czech Act No. 256/2004 Coll., on Conducting Business in the Capital Market, as
amended

a combined cycle gas turbine
Certified Emission Reduction credits

CEZ and its consolidated subsidiaries

CEZ, a.ss.
Combinate Heat and Power
carbon dioxide

the Czech 2018 Corporate Governance Codex compiled by the Czech Institute of
Directors in cooperation with Deloitte.

Regulation (EC) No. 1060/2009, as amended

the Czech Central Securities Depository, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Prague
Stock Exchange that records book-entry securities issued in the Czech Republic

the Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier, the competent authority under
the Prospectus Act 2019

Czech Act No. 201/2012 Coll., on protection of the air, as amended
Czech Act No. 21/1992 Caoll., on Banks, as amended

Czech Act No. 141/1961 Coll., on Criminal Procedure (Code of Criminal Procedure),
as amended

Czech Act No. 90/2012 Coll., on Companies and Cooperatives, as amended
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"Czech crowns" and "CzZK"

"Czech Cybersecurity Act"

"Czech Ecological Losses
Prevention Act"
"Czech Emission

Allowances Act"

"Czech Energy Act"

"Czech Energy Inspection”

"Czech
Management Act"

Energy

"Czech Environment Act"

"Czech Free Access to
Information Act"

"Czech Integrated National
Energy and Climate Plan"

"Czech IPPC Act"

"Czech Legal Entity
Criminal Act"

"Czech Mining Act"
"Czech Ministry of

Environment"
"Czech Ministry of Industry"
"Czech Nuclear Account"

"Czech Nuclear Act 1997"

"Czech Nuclear Act 2016"

"Czech Promoted Energy
Sources Act"

"Czech Registry of

Contracts Act"

"Czech Renewable Energy
Act"

the lawful currency of the Czech Republic

Czech Act No. 181/2014 Coll., on Cybersecurity, as amended

Czech Act No. 167/2008 Coll., prevention of ecological losses, as amended

Czech Act No. 383/2012 Caoll., on conditions for trading with emission allowances, as
amended

Czech Act No. 458/2000 Coll., on conducting business and governmental oversight in the
energy sectors, as amended

the State Energy Inspection established by the Czech Energy Management Act

Act No. 406/2000 Coll., on energy management, as amended

Czech Act No. 17/1992 Coll., the environment act, as amended

Czech Act No. 106/1999 Coll. on freedom of information, as amended

the integrated national energy and climate plan prepared by the Czech Ministry of
Industry based on the EU Governance Regulation

Czech Act No. 76/2002 Coll., on integrated pollution and control, as amended

Czech Act No. 418/2011 Coll., on criminal liability of legal entities and proceedings
against them, as amended

Czech Act No. 44/1988 Coll., on Protection and Exploitation of Minerals, as amended

the Ministry of Environment of the Czech Republic

the Ministry of Industry and Trade of the Czech Republic
the nuclear account administered by the Czech Ministry of Finance

Czech Act No. 18/1997 Coll., on peaceful exploitation of nuclear energy and ionising
radiation, as amended

Czech Act No. 263/2016 Coll., the nuclear act

Czech Act No. 165/2012 Coll., on promoted energy sources, as amended

Czech Act No. 340/2015 Coll., on specific conditions for certain contracts to become
effective, on disclosure of such contracts and on the registry of contracts (Registry of

Contracts Act)

Czech Act No. 180/2005 Coll., on the promotion of production of electricity from
renewable energy sources, as amended (no longer in force)
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"Czech
Authority"

Repository

"Czech Waste Act”
"Czech Water Act"”
"Division Heads"
"EBIT"

"EBITDA"

"EBITDA Margin”
"EDF"

"EDU HI"

"EEA"

"EEX"

"EIA"

"ELINI"

"EMANI"

"EMFs"

"EMU"

"Energy Charter Treaty"

"Energy
Directive"

Efficiency

"ENTSO for Electricity"
"ENTSO for Gas"
"EPC"

"EPEX SPOT"

"ERO"

"ERU"

"ESA"

"ESCO"

the regulatory authority Czech Radioactive Waste Repository Authority

Czech Act No. 185/2001 Coll., on waste, as amended

Czech Act No. 254/2001 Coll., as amended

the chief officers of CEZ

income before income taxes and other income (expenses)

income before income taxes and other income (expenses) plus depreciation and
amortization, plus impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
including goodwill less gain (or loss) on sale of property, plant and equipment

EBITDA divided by total revenues, expressed as a percentage

Electricite de France S.A.

Elektrarna Dukovany 11, a. s.

European Economic Area

the European Energy Exchange

an environmental impact assessment

the European Liability Insurance for the Nuclear Industry

the European Mutual Association for Nuclear Insurance

electromagnetic fields

the European Monetary Union

the Energy Charter Treaty of December 17, 1994, as amended

Directive 2012/27/EU on energy efficiency, amending Directives 2009/125/EC and
2010/30/EU and repealing Directives 2004/8/EC and 2006/32/EC

the European Network of Transmission System Operators

the European Network of Transmission System Operators for Gas
Engineering, Procurement and Construction

the European Power Exchange (Spot Markets) in Paris

the Czech Energy Regulatory Office

Emission Reduction Units

the European Supply Agency

energy services and solutions
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"ESG
"ESO"
"ETE II"

"EU ACER Regulation”

"EU CEF Regulation"

"EU Climate and Energy

Package"

"EU Directive on
Administrative Cooperation"

"EU DSO Entity"
"EU Electricity Security of
Supply Directive"

"EU Energy Performance
of Buildings Directive"

"EU ETS"

"EU ETS Directive"

"EU First
Directive"

Electricity

"EU First Gas Directive"

"EU First
Regulation"

Gas Supply

"EU Governance
Regulation™

"EU Labelling Directive"

"EU Regulation on Cross-
Border Exchanges"

"EU Third
Directive"

Electricity

"EU Third Gas Directive"

environmental, social and governance-related
the electricity system operator
Elektrarna Temelin II, a. S.

Regulation (EC) No. 713/2009 Establishing an Agency for the Cooperation of
Energy Regulators

Regulation (EU) No 1316/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 11
December 2013 establishing the Connecting Europe Facility

the climate and energy package adopted by the EU in 2009
Directive 2011/16/EU on administrative cooperation in the field of taxation (as
amended by Council Directive 2014/107/EU)

the Entity for Distribution System Operators established under the recast Regulation
on the Internal Market for Electricity

Directive 2005/89/EC Concerning Measures to Safeguard Security of Electricity
Supply and Infrastructure Investment

Directive 2010/31/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 19 May 2010
on the energy performance of buildings

the EU Emission Trading Scheme for CO, emission allowances

Directive 2003/87/EC establishing a scheme for greenhouse gas emission allowance
trading within the Community

Directive 96/92/EC Concerning Common Rules for the Internal Market in Electricity

Directive 98/30/EC Concerning Common Rules for the Internal Market in Natural Gas

Regulation (EU) 994/2010 Concerning Measures to Safeguard Security of Gas Supply

Regulation (EU) 2018/1999 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 11
December 2018 on the Governance of the Energy Union and Climate Action

Directive 2010/30/EU of 19 May 2010 on the indication by labelling and standard
product information of the consumption of energy and other resources by energy-
related products

Regulation (EC) No. 714/2009 on Conditions for Access to the Network for Cross-
Border Exchanges in Electricity

Directive 2009/72/EC Concerning Common Rules for the Internal Market in
Electricity

Directive 2009/73/EC Concerning Common Rules for the Internal Market in Natural
Gas
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"EU Trans-European Energy
Infrastructure Regulation”

"EUA"
"Euratom Treaty"
"EURIBOR"

"Euro" "EUR" and "€¢"
"Financial Stability Board"
"French Energy Transition
for Green Growth Act"
"FSMA"

"GasNet"

"GasNet Group"

"General Meeting"

"GHG"

"GW"

"GWh"

"HUPX"
"IAEA"
"IARC"
"ICE"

"ICSID"

"IDD"

"IFRS"

Regulation (EU) No 347/2013 on Guidelines for Trans-European Energy
Infrastructure

EU Emission Allowances
the Treaty Establishing the European Atomic Energy Community
the Euro Interbank Offered Rate

the currency introduced at the start of the third stage of European economic and
monetary union pursuant to the Treaty on the Functioning of the EU, as amended

an international body that monitors and makes recommendations about the global
financial system established in April 2009

the French Law no. 2015-992 of 17 August 2015 on the Energy Transition for Green
Growth

the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000

GasNet, s.r.o.

GasNet and GasNet Sluzby, s.r.o.

the general meeting of CEZ

Greenhouse gases; the gases listed in Annex Il of the EU ETS Directive and other
gaseous constituents of the atmosphere, both natural and anthropogenic that absorb
and re-emit infrared radiation. This includes carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide,
hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons and sulphur hexafluoride.

gigawatt, which is equal to 1,000 MW

gigawatt-hour, representing one hour of electricity consumption at a constant rate of
1GW

the Hungarian Power Exchange

the International Atomic Energy Agency

the International Agency for Research on Cancer

the London Intercontinental Exchange

the International Centre for Settlement of Investment Disputes established by the
1965 Convention on the settlement of investment disputes between States and

nationals of other States

Directive (EU) 2016/97 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 20 January
2016 on insurance distribution

the International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board, including interpretations of the International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC), previously referred to as the "Standing
Interpretations Committee” (SIC), and, also including, International Accounting
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"Industrial Emissions

Directive"

"installed capacity"

"ISFSF"

"ISIN"

"ISO"

"[ssuer"

"ITO"

"KEVR"

W

"KYOTO Protocol"
"LTA"

"LTO"

"Madrid Agreement"

"MAR"

"MCIFA"

"Member State"
"MIBRAG"

"MIFID II"

"MiFIR"

"MSR"
MW

"MWh"

"MW,

Standards, where the context requires, as endorsed by the European Commission for
use in the EU

Directive 2010/75/EC on industrial emissions (on integrated pollution prevention and
control)

the highest constant level of generation of electricity which a power plant is designed
to be capable of maintaining

an interim spent nuclear fuel storage facility

International Security Identification Number

Independent System Operator

CEZ, a.ss.

Independent Transmission Operator

the Bulgarian Energy and Water Regulatory Commission
kilowatt, representing the rate at which energy is produced
the Kyoto protocol for reducing greenhouse gas emissions
lead test assemblies

long-term-operation

the Madrid Agreement Concerning the International Registration of Marks and its
Protocol

Regulation (EC) No. 596/2014 on Market Abuse

The Czech Act No. 240/2013 Coll., on Management Companies and Investment
Funds, as amended, which implements the Directive 2011/61/EU

a member state of the EU
Mitteldeutsche Braunkohlengesellschaft GmbH

Directive (EU) No 65/2014 on markets in financial instruments and amending
Directive 2002/92/EC and Directive 2011/61/EU

Regulation (EU) No 600/2014 on markets in financial instruments and amending
Regulation (EU) No 648/2012

the Market Stability Reserve established under EU ETS
megawatt, which is equal to 1,000 kW

megawatt-hour, representing one hour of electricity consumption at a constant rate of
1 MW

megawatt electric, which is equal to one million watts of electric capacity
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"NAPNE"

"National Plan of

Investment"

"Natural Gas Transmission
Regulation™

"Net Debt"

"NO,"
"NPP"

"NYMEX"

"OKTE"
"OPCOM"
"OSART"
"oTC"

"OTE"
"PCBs"

"Polish Act on Investments in
Wind Turbines"

"POLPX"
"PRIBOR"
"Prospectus Act 2019"

"Prospectus Regulation"

"PXE"

"R&D"
"REAS"
"Regulation S"

"REMIT"

the National Action Plan for Development of Nuclear Energy in the Czech Republic as
approved by the Government of the Czech Republic on June 3, 2015

the National Plan of Investments in retrofitting and upgrading the infrastructure and clean
technologies in the energy sector approved by the European Commission on July 6, 2012

Regulation 715/2009 on conditions for Access to Natural Gas Transmission Networks

long-term debt, net of current portion plus short-term loans plus current portion of
long-term debt minus cash and cash equivalents plus highly liquid financial assets

mono-nitrogen oxides
nuclear power plant

the New York Mercantile Exchange, a commaodity futures exchange located in New
York City

OKTE, a.s., a short-term electricity market operator in the Slovak Republic
the Romanian Electricity Market Operator Opcom SA

the Operational Safety Review Team of the IAEA

over-the-counter

the Czech Electricity and Gas Market in Prague
Polychlorobiphenyls

the Polish Act of 20 May 2016 on investments in wind power plants

the Polish Power Exchange
the Prague Interbank Offer Rate
the Luxembourg Act dated 16 July 2019 on prospectuses for securities

Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 on the prospectus to be published when securities are
offered to the public or admitted to trading on a regulated market, and repealing
Directive 2003/71

Photovoltaics

the Power Exchange Central Europe

research and development

the original, state-owned, regional distribution companies in the Czech Republic
Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act

Regulation (EC) No. 1227/2011 on Wholesale Energy Market Integrity and
Transparency
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"Renewable Energy
Directive"

"ROC"

"Second Electricity
Directive"

"Second Gas Directive"

"Second Security of Gas
Supply Regulation”

"SEI"

"SOFR"

"SONS"

50,

"Standard & Poor’s"
"Supervisory Board"

"SZSOo"

"TGE"

"Ton"

"TONA"

"Turkish Lira" or "TRY"
"TVEL"

nTW"

"TWh"

"U.S. dollars,” "USD" and
"U.S.$"

"U.S. Securities Act"

"USEP"

"Vienna Convention"
IIVOCII

"WANO"

Directive 2009/28/EC on the promotion of the use of energy from renewable sources

the Regional Coordination Centre established under the recast Regulation on the
Internal Market for Electricity

Directive 2003/54/EC Concerning Common Rules for the Internal Market in
Electricity

Directive 2003/55/EC Concerning Common Rules for the Internal Market in Natural
Gas

Regulation (EU) 2017/1938 Concerning Measures to Safeguard the Security of Gas
Supply and Repealing Regulation (EU) No 994/2010

the Czech State Energy Inspectorate

the Secured Overnight Financing Rate
the Czech State Office for Nuclear Safety
sulphur oxides

S&P Global Ratings Europe Limited

the supervisory board of CEZ

the Czech state organization Railway Administration (Sprava zeleznic, statni
organizace)

the Towarowa Gielda Energii in Poland
metric ton

the Tokyo Overnight Average

the lawful currency of the Republic of Tirkiye
the Russian company JSC TVEL

terawatt, which is equal to 1,000 GW

terawatt-hour, representing one hour of electricity consumption at a constant rate of
1TW

the lawful currency of the United States

the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended

the updated Energy Policy of the Czech Republic as approved by the Government of
the Czech Republic on May 18, 2015

the Vienna Convention on Civil Liability for Nuclear Damage
volatile organic compounds

the World Association of Nuclear Operators
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"WHO" the World Health Organization

"Yen" Japanese Yen, the lawful currency of Japan
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FORM OF THE NOTES

Any reference in this section to "applicable Final Terms" shall be deemed to include a reference to "applicable
Pricing Supplement™ where relevant.

Each Tranche of Notes will be in bearer form and will initially be issued in the form of a temporary global note (a
"Temporary Global Note") or, if so specified in the applicable Final Terms, a permanent global note (a "Permanent Global
Note") which, in either case, will:

Q) if the Global Notes are intended to be issued in new global note ("NGN") form, as stated in the
applicable Final Terms, be delivered on or prior to the original issue date of the Tranche to a common
safekeeper (the "Common Safekeeper™) for Euroclear Bank SA/NV ("Euroclear") and Clearstream
Banking S.A. ("Clearstream, Luxembourg"); and

(ii) if the Global Notes are not intended to be issued in NGN Form, be delivered on or prior to the original
issue date of the Tranche to a common depositary (the "Common Depositary™) for, Euroclear and
Clearstream, Luxembourg.

Where the Global Notes issued in respect of any Tranche are in NGN form, the applicable Final Terms will also indicate
whether such Global Notes are intended to be held in a manner which would allow Eurosystem eligibility. Any indication
that the Global Notes are to be so held does not necessarily mean that the Notes of the relevant Tranche will be recognized
as eligible collateral for Eurosystem monetary policy and intra-day credit operations by the Eurosystem either upon issue
or at any times during their life as such recognition depends upon satisfaction of the Eurosystem eligibility criteria. The
Common Safekeeper for NGNs will either be Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg or another entity approved by
Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg, as indicated in the applicable Final Terms.

Whilst any Note is represented by a Temporary Global Note, payments of principal, interest (if any) and any other amount
payable in respect of the Notes due prior to the Exchange Date (as defined below) will be made (against presentation of
the Temporary Global Note if the Temporary Global Note is not intended to be issued in NGN form) only to the extent
that certification (in a form to be provided) to the effect that the beneficial owners of interests in such Note are not U.S.
persons or persons who have purchased for resale to any U.S. person, as required by U.S. Treasury regulations, has been
received by Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as applicable,
has given a like certification (based on the certifications it has received) to the Agent.

On and after the date (the "Exchange Date") which is 40 days after a Temporary Global Note is issued, interests in such
Temporary Global Note will be exchangeable (free of charge) upon a request as described therein either for (a) interests
in a Permanent Global Note of the same Series or (b) definitive Notes of the same Series with, where applicable, receipts,
interest coupons and talons attached (as indicated in the applicable Final Terms and subject, in the case of definitive
Notes, to such notice period as is specified in the applicable Final Terms), in each case against certification of beneficial
ownership as described above unless such certification has already been given. The holder of a Temporary Global Note
will not be entitled to collect any payment of interest, principal or other amount due on or after the Exchange Date unless,
upon due certification, exchange of the Temporary Global Note for an interest in a Permanent Global Note or for
definitive Notes is improperly withheld or refused.

Payments of principal, interest (if any) or any other amounts on a Permanent Global Note will be made through Euroclear
and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg (against presentation or surrender (as the case may be) of the Permanent Global Note
if the Permanent Global Note is not intended to be issued in NGN form) without any requirement for certification.

The applicable Final Terms will specify that a Permanent Global Note will be exchangeable (free of charge), in whole but
not in part, for definitive Notes with, where applicable, receipts, interest coupons and talons attached upon either (a) not
less than 60 days' written notice from Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg (acting on the instructions of any holder
of an interest in such Permanent Global Note) to the Agent as described therein or (b) only upon the occurrence of an
Exchange Event. For these purposes, Exchange Event means that (i) an Event of Default (as defined in Condition 9) has
occurred and is continuing, or (ii) the Issuer has been notified that both Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg have
been closed for business for a continuous period of 14 days (other than by reason of holiday, statutory or otherwise) or
have announced an intention permanently to cease business or have in fact done so and no successor clearing system is
available or (iii) the Issuer has or will become subject to adverse tax consequences which would not be suffered were the
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Notes represented by the Permanent Global Note in definitive form. The Issuer will promptly give notice to Noteholders
in accordance with Condition 13 if an Exchange Event occurs. In the event of the occurrence of an Exchange Event,
Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg (acting on the instructions of any holder of an interest in such Permanent
Global Note) may give notice to the Agent requesting exchange and, in the event of the occurrence of an Exchange Event
as described in (iii) above, the Issuer may also give notice to the Agent requesting exchange. Any such exchange shall
occur not later than 45 days after the date of receipt of the first relevant notice by the Agent.

The following legend will appear on all Notes (other than Temporary Global Notes), receipts and interest coupons relating
to such Notes where TEFRA D is specified in the applicable Final Terms or Pricing Supplement, as the case may be:

"ANY UNITED STATES PERSON WHO HOLDS THIS OBLIGATION WILL BE SUBJECT TO LIMITATIONS
UNDER THE UNITED STATES INCOME TAX LAWS, INCLUDING THE LIMITATIONS PROVIDED IN
SECTIONS 165(j) AND 1287(a) OF THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE."

The sections referred to provide that United States holders, with certain exceptions, will not be entitled to deduct any loss
on Notes, receipts or interest coupons and will not be entitled to capital gains treatment in respect of any gain on any sale,
disposition, redemption or payment of principal in respect of such Notes, receipts or interest coupons.

Notes which are represented by a Global Note will only be transferable in accordance with the rules and procedures for
the time being of Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may be.

Pursuant to the Amended and Restated Agency Agreement (as defined under "Terms and Conditions of the Notes"), the
Agent shall arrange that, where a further Tranche of Notes is issued which is intended to form a single Series with an
existing Tranche of Notes at a point after the Issue Date of the further Tranche, the Notes of such further Tranche shall
be assigned a common code and ISIN which are different from the common code and ISIN assigned to Notes of any other
Tranche of the same Series until such time as the Tranches are consolidated and form a single Series, which shall not be
prior to the expiry of the distribution compliance period (as defined in Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act)
applicable to the Notes of such Tranche.

Any reference herein to Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg shall, whenever the context so permits, be deemed
to include a reference to any additional or alternative clearing system specified in the applicable Final Terms.

A Note may be accelerated by the holder thereof in certain circumstances described in Condition 9. In such circumstances,
where any Note is still represented by a Global Note and the Global Note (or any part thereof) has become due and
repayable in accordance with the Terms and Conditions of such Notes and payment in full of the amount due has not
been made in accordance with the provisions of the Global Note then from 8.00 p.m. (London time) on such day holders
of interests in such Global Note credited to their accounts with Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case
may be, will become entitled to proceed directly against the Issuer on the basis of statements of account provided by
Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg on and subject to the terms of a deed of covenant (the "Deed of Covenant")
dated 3 May 2023 and executed by the Issuer.

The Issuer may agree with any Dealer that Notes may be issued in a form not contemplated by the Terms and Conditions
of the Notes, in which event, other than where such Notes are Exempt Notes, a new Base Prospectus or a supplement to
the Base Prospectus, if appropriate, will be made available which will describe the effect of the agreement reached in
relation to such Notes.
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APPLICABLE FINAL TERMS

NOTES WITH A DENOMINATION OF €100,000 (OR ITS EQUIVALENT IN ANY OTHER CURRENCY)
OR MORE, OTHER THAN EXEMPT NOTES

Set out below is the form of Final Terms which will be completed for each Tranche of Notes which are not Exempt Notes
and which have a denomination of €100,000 (or its equivalent in any other currency) or more issued under the
Programme.

[MIFID 1l PRODUCT GOVERNANCE / PROFESSIONAL INVESTORS AND ECPs ONLY TARGET
MARKET - Solely for the purposes of [the/each] manufacturer['s/s’] product approval process, the target market
assessment in respect of the Notes has led to the conclusion that: (i) the target market for the Notes is eligible
counterparties and professional clients only, each as defined in Directive 2014/65/EU (as amended, "MiFID 1I"); and
(ii) all channels for distribution of the Notes to eligible counterparties and professional clients are appropriate. Any person
subsequently offering, selling or recommending the Notes (a "distributor") should take into consideration the
manufacturer['s/s] target market assessment; however, a distributor subject to MiFID Il is responsible for undertaking its
own target market assessment in respect of the Notes (by either adopting or refining the manufacturer['s/s’] target market
assessment) and determining appropriate distribution channels.]*

[UK MIFIR PRODUCT GOVERNANCE / PROFESSIONAL INVESTORS AND ECPs ONLY TARGET
MARKET - Solely for the purposes of [the/each] manufacturer['s/s’] product approval process, the target market
assessment in respect of the Notes has led to the conclusion that: (i) the target market for the Notes is only eligible
counterparties, as defined in the FCA Handbook Conduct of Business Sourcebook ("COBS"), and professional clients,
as defined in Regulation (EU) No 600/2014 as it forms part of the current domestic law of the UK by virtue of the
European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 ("EUWA") ("UK MiFIR"); and (ii) all channels for distribution of the Notes to
eligible counterparties and professional clients are appropriate. Any [distributor][person subsequently offering, selling or
recommending the Notes (a "distributor")] should take into consideration the manufacturer['s/s’] target market
assessment; however, a distributor subject to the FCA Handbook Product Intervention and Product Governance
Sourcebook (the "UK MiFIR Product Governance Rules™) is responsible for undertaking its own target market assessment
in respect of the Notes (by either adopting or refining the manufacturer['s/s] target market assessment) and determining
appropriate distribution channels.]?

[PROHIBITION OF SALES TO EEA RETAIL INVESTORS - The Notes are not intended to be offered, sold or
otherwise made available to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail investor in the
European Economic Area ("EEA"). For these purposes, a retail investor means a person who is one (or more) of: (i) a
retail client as defined in point (11) of Article 4(1) of [MiFID II][Directive 2014/65/EU (as amended, "MiFID 11")]; or
(if) a customer within the meaning of Directive (EU) 2016/97 (the "Insurance Distribution Directive™), where that
customer would not qualify as a professional client as defined in point (10) of Article 4(1) of MiFID II; or (iii) not a
qualified investor as defined in Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 (as amended, the "Prospectus Regulation™). Consequently,
no key information document required by Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 (as amended, the "PRIIPs Regulation™) for
offering or selling the Notes or otherwise making them available to retail investors in the EEA has been prepared and
therefore offering or selling the Notes or otherwise making them available to any retail investor in the EEA may be
unlawful under the PRIIPs Regulation.]®

[PROHIBITION OF SALES TO UK RETAIL INVESTORS — The Notes are not intended to be offered, sold or
otherwise made available to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail investor in the
United Kingdom ("UK"). For these purposes, a retail investor means a person who is one (or more) of: (i) a retail client,
as defined in point (8) of Article 2 of Regulation (EU) No 2017/565 as it forms part of the current domestic law of the
UK by virtue of the [EUWA][European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 ("EUWA™)]; (ii) a customer within the meaning
of the provisions of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (the "FSMA") and any rules or regulations made under
the FSMA to implement [the Insurance Distribution Directive][Directive (EU) 2016/97], where that customer would not
qualify as a professional client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2(1) of Regulation (EU) No 600/2014 as it forms part

1 Legend to be included on front of the Final Terms if following the ICMA 1 "all bonds to all professionals" target market approach.

2 Legend to be included on front of the Final Terms if following the ICMA 1 "all bonds to all professionals" target market approach.

% Legend to be included on front of the Final Terms if the Notes potentially constitute "packaged" products and no key information document will be
prepared or the Issuer wishes to prohibit offers to EEA retail investors for any other reason, in which case the selling restriction should be specified
to be "Applicable”.
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of the current domestic law of the UK by virtue of the EUWA; or (iii) not a qualified investor as defined in Article 2 of
Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 as it forms part of the current domestic law of the UK by virtue of the EUWA.. Consequently,
no key information document required by Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 as it forms part of the current domestic law of
the UK by virtue of the EUWA (the "UK PRIIPs Regulation™) for offering or selling the Notes or otherwise making them
available to retail investors in the UK has been prepared and therefore offering or selling the Notes or otherwise making
them available to any retail investor in the UK may be unlawful under the UK PRIIPs Regulation.]*

[Date]

CEZ, a. s. (the “Issuer”) (Legal Entity Identifier (LEI): 529900S5R9YHIHYKKG94)

Issue of [Aggregate Nominal Amount of Tranche] [Title of Notes]
under the €8,000,000,000
Euro Medium Term Note Programme

PART A - CONTRACTUAL TERMS

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions set forth in the Base
Prospectus dated 16 April 2025 [as supplemented by the supplement dated [date]] (the "Base Prospectus") which
constitute[s] a base prospectus for the purposes of Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 (the "Prospectus Regulation™). This
document constitutes the Final Terms of the Notes described herein for the purposes of Prospectus Regulation and must
be read in conjunction with the Base Prospectus. Full information on the Issuer and the offer of the Notes is only available
on the basis of the combination of these Final Terms and the Base Prospectus. The Base Prospectus has been published
on the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (www.luxse.com).

[The following alternative language applies if the first tranche of an issue which is being increased was issued
under a Base Prospectus with an earlier date.]

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions (the "Conditions™)
set forth in the Base Prospectus dated September 24, 2007 / March 19, 2009 / March 31, 2010 / April 23, 2012 / April
19, 2013/ April 23, 2019 / March 24, 2022 / May 28, 2024, which Conditions are incorporated by reference in the Base
Prospectus dated 16 April 2025. This document constitutes the Final Terms of the Notes described herein for the purposes
of the Prospectus Regulation and must be read in conjunction with the Base Prospectus dated 16 April 2025 [as
supplemented by the supplement dated [date]] (the "Base Prospectus™) which constitute[s] a base prospectus for the
purposes of the Prospectus Regulation, including the Conditions incorporated by reference in the Base Prospectus. Full
information on the Issuer and the offer of the Notes is only available on the basis of the combination of these Final Terms
and the Base Prospectus. The Base Prospectus has been published on the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange
(www.luxse.com).

[Include whichever of the following apply or specify as "Not Applicable”. Note that the numbering should remain
as set out below, even if "Not Applicable" is indicated for individual paragraphs or subparagraphs (in which case the
subparagraphs of the paragraphs which are not applicable can be deleted). Italics denote directions for completing the
Final Terms.]

[When adding any other final terms or information consideration should be given as to whether such terms or
information constitute "significant new factors" and consequently trigger the need for a supplement to the Base
Prospectus under Article 23 of the Prospectus Regulation.

1. @ Series Number: []

(b) Tranche Number: []

4 Legend to be included on front of the Final Terms if the Notes potentially constitute "packaged” products and no key information document will be
prepared or the Issuer wishes to prohibit offers to UK retail investors for any other reason, in which case the selling restriction should be specified to
be "Applicable".
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(c) Date on which the Notes will be
consolidated and form a single
Series:

Specified Currency or Currencies:
Aggregate Nominal Amount:
(@) Series:

(b) Tranche:

Issue Price:
€)] Specified Denominations:
(b) Calculation Amount (in relation to

calculation of interest for Notes in
global form see Conditions):

€)] Issue Date:

(9)] Interest Commencement Date:

Maturity Date:

Sustainability-Linked Notes:

The Notes will be consolidated and form a single Series with
[identify earlier Tranches] on [the Issue Date/exchange of the
Temporary Global Note for interests in the Permanent Global
Note, as referred to in paragraph 28 below, which is expected
to occur on or about [date]][Not Applicable]

[1]

[]
[]

[ ] per cent. of the Aggregate Nominal Amount [plus accrued
interest from [insert date] (if applicable)]

[1]

(N.B. Notes must have a minimum denomination of €100,000
(or equivalent))

(Note — where multiple denominations above €100,000 or
equivalent are being used the following sample wording
should be followed:

"[€100,000] and integral multiples of [€1,000] in excess
thereof up to and including [€199,000]. No Notes in
definitive form will be issued with a denomination above
[€199,000].")

[]

(If only one Specified Denomination, insert the Specified
Denomination. If more than one Specified Denomination, insert
the highest common factor. Note: There must be a common factor
in the case of two or more Specified Denominations.)

[1]
[specify/Issue Date/Not Applicable]

(N.B. An Interest Commencement Date will not be relevant
for certain Notes, for example Zero Coupon Notes.)

[Specify date or for Floating rate notes - Interest Payment Date
falling in or nearest to [specify month and year]

(NB: The Maturity Date may need to be not less than one year
after the Issue Date)

[Applicable][Not Applicable] (If not applicable, delete the
remaining sub-paragraphs of this paragraph)
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10.

11.

12.

13.

€)] Step-Up:

(b) Redemption Premium:

©) SPT:

(d) SPT Reference Year:

Interest Basis:

Redemption/Payment Basis:

Change of Interest Basis:

Put/Call Options:

[Date [Board] approval for issuance of
Notes obtained

[Applicable][Not Applicable] (See paragraph 17 below)

[Applicable][Not Applicable] (See paragraphs 20, 21, 22, 23,
24, 25, 26, 27 and 28 below)

[0.26 tCO2e/MWh][0.16 tCO2e/MWh] [0.056 tCO2e/MWh]
[1 (In the event the Recalculation Option applies prior to the
Issue Date, the SPT may be updated accordingly)

[2025][2030] [2033] [ ]

[[ 1 per cent. Fixed Rate]

[[[ ] month EURIBOR/PRIBOR] [SOFR] [TONA] +/- [ ] per
cent. Floating Rate]

[Zero Coupon]

(further particulars specified below)

Subject to any purchase and cancellation or early redemption,
the Notes will be redeemed on the Maturity Date at [100]/] ]
per cent. of their nominal amount.

[Specify any Interest Basis change and the date when such
Interest Basis change will occur or cross refer to paragraphs
15, and/or 16 and/orl8 below and identify there] [Not
Applicable]

[Investor Put]

[Change of Control Put]

[Issuer Call]

[Make-Whole Redemption]
[Residual Maturity Call Option]
[Issuer Residual Call]

[(further particulars specified below)]
[Not Applicable]

[ J[and [ ], respectively]]

(N.B. Only relevant where Board (or similar) authorization
is required for the particular tranche of Notes)

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST (IF ANY) PAYABLE

14.

Fixed Rate Note Provisions

@ Rate(s) of Interest:

(b) Interest Payment Date(s):

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of this
paragraph)

[ ] per cent. per annum payable in arrear on each Interest
Payment Date

[ 1ineach year up to and including the Maturity Date

(N.B. Amend appropriately in the case of irregular coupons)
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15.

(©)

(d)

(€)
(f)

Fixed Coupon Amount(s) for
Notes in definitive form (and in
relation to Notes in global form
see Conditions):

Broken Amount(s) for Notes in
definitive form (and in relation to
Notes in global form see
Conditions):

Day Count Fraction:

[Determination Date(s):

Floating Rate Note Provisions

(@)

(b)

(©)
(d)

()

()

Specified Period(s)/Specified
Interest Payment Dates:

Business Day Convention:

Additional Business Centre(s):

Manner in which the Rate of
Interest and Interest Amount is to
be determined:

Party responsible for calculating
the Rate of Interest and Interest
Amount (if not the Agent):

Screen Rate Determination:

e Reference Rate:

e Interest Determination
Date(s):

e Relevant Screen Page:

[ 1 per Calculation Amount

[ 1 per Calculation Amount, payable on the Interest Payment
Date falling [in/on] [ ]] [Not Applicable]

[30/360] [Actual/Actual (ICMA)]

[[ 1in each year] [Not Applicable]

Only relevant where Day Count Fraction is Actual/Actual
(ICMA). In such a case insert regular interest payment dates,
ignoring issue date or maturity date in the case of a long or short
first or last coupon

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of
this paragraph)

[ ][, subject to adjustment in accordance with the Business
Day Convention set out in (b) below/, not subject to any
adjustment, as the Business Day Convention in (b) below is
specified to be Not Applicable]

[Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day
Convention/Modified Following Business Day Convention/
Preceding Business Day Convention][Not Applicable]

[]

[Screen Rate Determination/ISDA Determination]

[]

[ ] month [EURIBOR][PRIBOR][SOFR][TONA]

[]

(Second Prague business day prior to the start of each Interest
Period if PRIBOR, the second day on which the T2 System is open
prior to the start of each Interest Period if EURIBOR), second
U.S. Government Securities Business Days prior to the start of
each Interest Period if SOFR and second Tokyo Banking Days
prior to the start of each Interest Period if TONA)

[]
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16.

17.

e Reference Banks:
[ ) p:

e Interest Period End Date:

(9) ISDA Determination:

e Floating Rate Option:
e Designated Maturity:

e Reset Date:

(h) Linear Interpolation:

0] Margin(s):

M Minimum Rate of Interest:
(k) Maximum Rate of Interest:
()] Day Count Fraction:
Step-Up:

Step-Up Margin:

Zero Coupon Note Provisions

@ Accrual Yield:

(b) Reference Price:

(In the case of EURIBOR, if not Reuters EURIBORO1 ensure it
is a page which shows a composite rate or amend the fallback
provisions appropriately)

[ 1[To be selected by the Issuer]

[[ T [U.S. Government Securities Business Days][Tokyo
Banking Business Days][As per the Terms and
Conditions]][Not applicable] (Include where the Reference
Rate is SOFR or TONA]

[[ 1[The Interest Payment Date for such Interest Period]][Not
applicable]] (Include where the Reference Rate is TONA)

[]
[]
[1]

(In the case of a EURIBOR or PRIBOR based option, the first
day of the Interest Period)

[Not Applicable/Applicable - the Rate of interest for the
[long/short] [first/last] Interest Period shall be calculated using
Linear Interpolation (specify for each short or long interest
period)]

[+/-]1 ] per cent. per annum

[ 1 per cent. per annum

[ 1 per cent. per annum

[Actual/Actual (ISDA)][Actual/Actual]
[Actual/365 (Fixed)]

[Actual/360]

[30/360][360/360][Bond Basis]
[30E/360][Eurobond Basis]

[30E/360 (ISDA)]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of this
paragraph)

[ 1% per annum
[Not Applicable]
[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of this
paragraph)

[ ] per cent. per annum

[]
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(©)

Day Count Fraction in relation to
Early Redemption Amounts and
late payment:

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION

18.

19.

20.

Notice periods for Condition 6.2

Issuer Call:
(@) Optional Redemption Date(s):
(b) Optional Redemption Amount(s)
and method, if any, of calculation
of such amount:
(©) If redeemable in part:
(M Minimum Redemption
Amount:
(ii) Maximum Redemption
Amount:
(d) Notice periods:

Make-Whole Redemption:

(@)
(b)
(©)

(d)
(€)
(f)

Make-Whole Redemption Date:
Benchmark Security(ies):

Reference Time:

Make-Whole Margin:

Par Redemption Date:

If redeemable in part:

[30/360][Actual/360]
[Actual/365]

Minimum Period: [ ] days

Maximum Period: [ ] days

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of this

paragraph)

[1]

[[ ] per Calculation Amount/specify other/see Appendix] [plus,
if a Trigger Event has occurred, the relevant Redemption
Premium (see Condition 6.12) will be payable]

[1]

[1]

Minimum Period: [ ] days
Maximum Period: [ ] days
(N.B. When setting notice periods, the Issuer is advised to
consider the practicalities of distribution of information
through intermediaries, for example, clearing systems (which
require a minimum of 5 business days' notice for a call) and

custodians, as well as any other notice requirements which may
apply, for example, as between the Issuer and the Agent)

[Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable, delete the
remaining subparagraphs of this paragraph)

[]

[]

[]

[ 1 per cent. [plus, if applicable in accordance with Condition
6.4(iii), the Redemption Premium (see Condition 6.12)]

[[ 1[Not Applicable]]
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(i Minimum Redemption
Amount:

(ii) Maximum Redemption
Amount:

(9) Calculation Agent

(h) Notice periods:

21. Residual Maturity Call Option:

€)] Notice Period:

(b) Residual Maturity Call Option
Redemption Date:

22. Investor Put:

€)] Optional Redemption Date(s):

(b) Optional Redemption Amount:

(© Notice periods:

23. Change of Control Put:

[]

[1]

[1]

Minimum Period: [ ] days
Maximum Period: [ ] days

(N.B. When setting notice periods, the Issuer is advised to
consider the practicalities of distribution of information
through intermediaries, for example, clearing systems (which
require a minimum of 5 business days' notice for a call) and
custodians, as well as any other notice requirements which may
apply, for example, as between the Issuer and the Agent)

[Applicable/Not Applicable]
(If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of this
paragraph)

[For the avoidance of doubt, if a Trigger Event has occurred, the
relevant Redemption Premium (see Condition 6.12) will also be
payable on the Residual Maturity Call Option Redemption Date]

[]

No earlier than [ ]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]
(If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of this
paragraph)

[]

[ 1 per Calculation Amount [plus, if a Trigger Event has
occurred, the relevant Redemption Premium (see Condition
6.12) will be payable]

Minimum Period: [ ] days
Maximum Period: [ ] days
(N.B. When setting notice periods, the Issuer is advised to
consider the practicalities of distribution of information
through intermediaries, for example, clearing systems (which
require 15 business days' notice for a put) and custodians, as

well as any other notice requirements which may apply, for
example, as between the Issuer and the Agent)

[Applicable/Not Applicable]
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24. Redemption Premium:;

25. Final Redemption Amount:

26. Early Redemption Amount payable
on redemption for taxation reasons or on
event of default:

27. Issuer Residual Call:

(a) Issuer Residual Call Early
Redemption Amount:

(b) Notice period (if other than as
set out in the Conditions):

[For the avoidance of doubt, if a Trigger Event has occurred, the
relevant Redemption Premium (see Condition 6.12) will also be
payable on the Change of Control Put Option Date]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph)

[ 1 per Calculation Amount][Not Applicable]

[ 1 per Calculation Amount (in the case where the
Sustainability-Linked Notes Option is applicable) [plus, if a
Trigger Event has occurred, the relevant Redemption Premium
(s) (see Condition 6.12)]

[ 1 per Calculation Amount (in the case where the
Sustainability-Linked Notes Option is applicable) [plus, if a
Trigger Event has occurred, the relevant Redemption Premium
(see Condition 6.12)]

(N.B. If the Final Redemption Amount is 100 per cent. of the
nominal value (i.e. par), the Early Redemption Amount is likely
to be par (but consider). If, however, the Final Redemption
Amount is other than 100 per cent. of the nominal value,
consideration should be given as to what the Early Redemption
Amount should be.)

[Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable, delete the
remaining subparagraphs of this paragraph)

[ 1 per Calculation Amount [plus, if a Trigger Event has
occurred, the relevant Redemption Premium (see Condition
6.12) will be payable]

[Minimum Period: [ ] days]/[Not Applicable]

[Maximum Period: [ ] days]/[Not Applicable]

(N.B. When setting notice periods, the Issuer is advised to
consider the practicalities of distribution of information
through intermediaries, for example, clearing systems (which
require a minimum of 5 business days' notice for a call) and
custodians, as well as any other notice requirements which may
apply, for example, as between the Issuer and the Agent)

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE NOTES

28. Form of Notes:

(@) Form:

[Temporary Global Note exchangeable for a Permanent Global
Note which is exchangeable for Definitive Notes [on 60 days'
notice given at any time/only upon an Exchange Event]]
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[Temporary Global Note exchangeable for Definitive Notes on
and after the Exchange Date]

[Permanent Global Note exchangeable for Definitive Notes [on
60 days' notice given at any time/only upon an Exchange
Event]]

(N.B. The exchange upon notice option should not be expressed
to be applicable if the Specified Denomination of the Notes in
paragraph 7 includes language substantially to the following
effect: "[€100,000] and integral multiples of [€1,000] in excess
thereof up to and including [€199,000]." Furthermore, such
Specified Denomination construction is not permitted in relation
to any issue of Notes which is to be represented on issue by a
Temporary Global Note exchangeable for Definitive Notes.)

N.B. The exchange upon notice/at any time options should not
be expressed to be applicable if the Specified Denomination of
the Notes in paragraph 6 includes language substantially to
the following effect: "[€100,000] and integral multiples of
[€1,000] in excess thereof up to and including [€199,000]."
Furthermore, such Specified Denomination construction is not
permitted in relation to any issue of Notes which is to be
represented on issue by a Temporary Global Note
exchangeable for Definitive Notes.)

[Notes shall not be physically delivered in Belgium, except to
a clearing system, a depository or other institution for the
purpose of their immobilization in accordance with article 4 of
the Belgian Law of December 14, 2005.]

(b) New Global Note: [Yes][No]

29. Additional Financial Centre(s): [Not Applicable/give details]

(Note that this paragraph relates to the place of payment and
not the end dates of Interest Periods for the purposes of
calculating the amount of interest, to which sub-paragraphs

16(c))
30. Talons. f?f future Coupons to be attached  [ves, as the Notes have more than 27 coupon payments, Talons
to Definitive Notes: may be required if on exchange into definitive form, more than

27 coupon payments are still to be made/No]

THIRD PARTY INFORMATION
[[Relevant third party information] has been extracted from [specify source]. The Issuer confirms that such information
has been accurately reproduced and that, so far as it is aware and is able to ascertain from information published by

[specify source], no facts have been omitted which would render the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading.]

Signed on behalf of CEZ, a. s.:
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By e

Duly authorized
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PART B — OTHER INFORMATION

LISTING AND ADMISSION TO TRADING

(i) Listing and Admission to trading:

(ii) Estimate of total expenses related
to admission to trading:

RATINGS

Ratings:

Application has been made by the Issuer (or on its behalf) for
the Notes to be admitted to trading on the Regulated Market of
the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, and admission to the
Official List of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange with effect
from [ ].

[]

[Not applicable][The Notes to be issued [[have been]/[are
expected to be]] rated:]

[S&P Global Ratings Europe Limited ("Standard & Poor's"):
[ 1]

[Moody's France SAS ("Moody's"): [ 1]

[insert details]] by [insert the legal name of the relevant credit
rating agency entity(ies) and associated defined terms]

Each of [Standard & Poor's] [,/and] [Moody's] [and] [defined
term] is established in the [European Union and is registered
under Regulation (EC) No. 1060/2009 (as amended) (the
"CRA Regulation™)] [UK and is registered under Regulation
(EC) No. 1060/2009 (as amended) as it forms part of the
current domestic law of the UK by virtue of EUWA (the "UK
CRA Regulation".]

[Need to include a brief explanation of the meaning of the
ratings if this has previously been published by the rating
provider.]

INTERESTS OF NATURAL AND LEGAL PERSONS INVOLVED IN THE ISSUE

[Save for any fees payable to the [Managers/Dealers], so far as the Issuer is aware, no person involved in the
issue of the Notes has an interest material to the offer. The [Managers/Dealers] and their affiliates have
engaged, and may in future engage, in investment banking and/or commercial banking transactions with, and
may perform other services for, the Issuer and its affiliates in the ordinary course of business. — Amend as

appropriate if there are other interests]

[(When adding any other description, consideration should be given as to whether such matters described
constitute "significant new factors” and consequently trigger the need for a supplement to the Base
Prospectus under Article 23 of the Prospectus Regulation.)]

[USE OF PROCEEDS

Use of Proceeds:

[ 1/[Not Applicable]
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(See "Use of Proceeds" wording in the Base Prospectus —
if reasons for the offer are different from general
corporate purposes, include those reasons here.)]

REASONS FOR THE OFFER, ESTIMATED NET PROCEEDS AND TOTAL EXPENSES

[(i)Reasons for the offer:

[(ii)]Estimated net proceeds:

[(iii)]Estimated total expenses:

YIELD (Fixed Rate Notes only)

Indication of yield:

OPERATIONAL INFORMATION

()
(i)
(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)
(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

ISIN Code:
Common Code:

CFI:

FISN:

Name and address of any clearing
system(s) other than Euroclear
Bank SA/NV and Clearstream
Banking, S.A. and the relevant
identification number(s):

Delivery:

Names and addresses of additional
Paying Agent(s) (if any):

Deemed delivery of Clearing
System notices for the purpose of
Condition 13:

Intended to be held in a manner
which would allow Eurosystem
eligibility:

[ 1[Green Notes][Not Applicable]
[ 1[Not Applicable]

[ 1[Not Applicable]]

[ 1[Not Applicable]

[]
[]

[[See/[[include code], as updated, as set out on] the website of
the Association of National Numbering Agencies (ANNA) or
alternatively sourced from the responsible National
Numbering  Agency that assigned the ISIN/Not
Applicable/Not Available]

[[See/[[include code], as updated, as set out on] the website of
the Association of National Numbering Agencies (ANNA) or
alternatively sourced from the responsible National
Numbering Agency that assigned the  ISIN/Not
Applicable/Not Available]

[Not Applicable/give name(s) and number(s)]

Delivery [against/free of] payment

[]

Any notice delivered to Noteholders through the clearing
systems will be deemed to have been given on the
[second][business] day after the day on which it was given to
Euroclear, and Clearstream, Luxembourg.

[Yes. Note that the designation "yes" simply means that the
Notes are intended upon issue to be deposited with one of the
ICSDs as common safekeeper and does not necessarily mean
that the Notes will be recognized as eligible collateral for
Eurosystem monetary policy and intra-day credit operations by
the Eurosystem either upon issue or at any or all times during
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DISTRIBUTION

(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(V)
(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Method of distribution:

If syndicated, names of Managers:

Date of Subscription Agreement:

Stabilization Manager(s) (if any):

If non-syndicated, name of

relevant Dealer:

U.S. Selling Restrictions:

Prohibition of Sales to EEA

Investors:

Prohibition of Sales
Investors:

to UK

their life. Such recognition will depend upon the ECB being
satisfied that Eurosystem eligibility criteria have been met.]/

[No. Whilst the designation is specified as "no" at the date of
these Final Terms, should the Eurosystem eligibility criteria be
amended in the future such that the Notes are capable of
meeting them the Notes may then be deposited with one of the
ICSDs as common safekeeper. Note that this does not
necessarily mean that the Notes will then be recognised as
eligible collateral for Eurosystem monetary policy and
intraday credit operations by the Eurosystem at any time
during their life. Such recognition will depend upon the ECB
being satisfied that Eurosystem eligibility criteria have been
met.]

[Syndicated/Non-syndicated]

[Not Applicable/give names and addresses]

[ ]

[Not Applicable/give name]

[Not Applicable/give name]

[Reg. S Compliance Category 2] [TEFRA D] [TEFRA C]
[TEFRA not applicable]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If the Notes clearly do not constitute "packaged™ products,
"Not Applicable" should be specified. If the Notes may
constitute "packaged" products and no key information
document will be prepared, "Applicable" should be specified.)
[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If the Notes clearly do not constitute "packaged™ products,
"Not Applicable™ should be specified. If the Notes may

constitute "packaged" products and no key information
document will be prepared, "Applicable" should be specified.)
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EXEMPT NOTES OF ANY DENOMINATION

APPLICABLE PRICING SUPPLEMENT

Set out below is the form of Pricing Supplement which will be completed for each Tranche of Exempt Notes, whatever
the denomination of those Notes, issued under the Programme.

[MIFID 11 PRODUCT GOVERNANCE / TARGET MARKET - [appropriate target market legend to be included]]

[UK MIFIR PRODUCT GOVERNANCE / TARGET MARKET -- [appropriate target market legend to be
included]]

[PROHIBITION OF SALES TO EEA RETAIL INVESTORS - The Notes are not intended to be offered, sold or
otherwise made available to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail investor in the
European Economic Area ("EEA™). For these purposes, a retail investor means a person who is one (or more) of: (i) a
retail client as defined in point (11) of Article 4(1) of [MiFID II][Directive 2014/65/EU (as amended "MiFID II")]; or
(if) a customer within the meaning of Directive (EU) 2016/97 (the "Insurance Distribution Directive)), where that
customer would not qualify as a professional client as defined in point (10) of Article 4(1) of MiFID II; or (iii) not a
qualified investor as defined in Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 (as amended, the "Prospectus Regulation™). Consequently
no key information document required by Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 (as amended, the "PRIIPs Regulation™) for
offering or selling the Notes or otherwise making them available to retail investors in the EEA has been prepared and
therefore offering or selling the Notes or otherwise making them available to any retail investor in the EEA may be
unlawful under the PRIIPs Regulation.]®

[PROHIBITION OF SALES TO UK RETAIL INVESTORS — The Notes are not intended to be offered, sold or
otherwise made available to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail investor in the
United Kingdom ("UK"). For these purposes, a retail investor means a person who is one (or more) of: (i) a retail client,
as defined in point (8) of Article 2 of Regulation (EU) No 2017/565 as it forms part of the current domestic law of the
UK by virtue of the [EUWA][European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 ("EUWA")]; (ii) a customer within the meaning
of the provisions of the [FSMA][Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (the "FSMA™)] and any rules or regulations
made under the FSMA to implement [the Insurance Distribution Directive][Directive (EU) 2016/97], where that customer
would not qualify as a professional client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2(1) of Regulation (EU) No 600/2014 as it
forms part of the current domestic law of the UK by virtue of the EUWA, or (iii) not a qualified investor as defined in
Avrticle 2 of Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 as it forms part of the current domestic law of the UK by virtue of the EUWA.
Consequently no key information document required by Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 as it forms part of the current
domestic law of the UK by virtue of the EUWA (the "UK PRIIPs Regulation™) for offering or selling the Notes or
otherwise making them available to retail investors in the UK has been prepared and therefore offering or selling the
Notes or otherwise making them available to any retail investor in the UK may be unlawful under the UK PRIIPs
Regulation.]®

NO PROSPECTUS IS REQUIRED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROSPECTUS REGULATION /
REGULATION (EU) 2017/1129 FOR THE ISSUE OF NOTES DESCRIBED BELOW.

5 Legend to be included on front of the Pricing Supplement if the Notes potentially constitute "packaged" products and no key information document
will be prepared or the Issuer wishes to prohibit offers to EEA retail investors for any other reason, in which case the selling restriction should be
specified to be "Applicable".

5 Legend to be included on front of the Pricing Supplement if the Notes potentially constitute "packaged” products and no key information document
will be prepared or the Issuer wishes to prohibit offers to UK retail investors for any other reason, in which case the selling restriction should be
specified to be "Applicable".
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[Date]

CEZ, a. s. (the "Issuer") (Legal Entity Identifier (LEI): 529900S5R9YHJHY KKG94)

Issue of [Aggregate Nominal Amount of Tranche] [Title of Notes]
under the €8,000,000,000
Euro Medium Term Note Programme

PART A - CONTRACTUAL TERMS

This document constitutes the Pricing Supplement for the Notes described herein. This document must be read
in conjunction with the Base Prospectus dated 16 April 2025 [as supplemented by the supplement[s] dated [date[s]]] (the
"Base Prospectus”). Full information on the Issuer and the offer of the Notes is only available on the basis of the
combination of this Pricing Supplement and the Base Prospectus. Copies of the Base Prospectus may be obtained during
normal business hours at the registered office of CEZ, a. s. and at the offices of the Paying Agents for the time being in
London and Luxembourg.

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions (the "Conditions")
set forth in the Base Prospectus [dated [original date] which are incorporated by reference in the Base Prospectus]’. Any
reference in the Conditions to "applicable Final Terms" shall be deemed to include a reference to "applicable Pricing
Supplement", where relevant.

[Include whichever of the following apply or specify as "Not Applicable™. Note that the numbering should remain
as set out below, even if "Not Applicable" is indicated for individual paragraphs or subparagraphs (in which case the
subparagraphs of the paragraphs which are not applicable can be deleted). Italics denote directions for completing the
Pricing Supplement.]

[If the Notes have a maturity of less than one year from the date of their issue, the minimum denomination may
need to be £100,000 or its equivalent in any other currency.]

1. (@) Series Number: [ ]
(b) Tranche Number: [ ]
(©) Date on which the Notes will be  The Notes will be consolidated and form a single Series with
con§o||dated and form a single [identify earlier Tranches] on [the Issue Date/exchange of the
Series: Temporary Global Note for interests in the Permanent Global

Note, as referred to in paragraph 30 below, which is expected
to occur on or about [date]][Not Applicable]

2. Specified Currency or Currencies: [ ]
3. Aggregate Nominal Amount:
@ Series: [ |
(b) Tranche: [ |
4. Issue Price: [ 1percent. of the Aggregate Nominal Amount [plus accrued

interest from [insert date] (if applicable)]

@ Specified Denominations: [ ]

" Only include this language where it is a fungible issue and the original Tranche was issued under a Base Prospectus with a different date.
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10.

11.

12.

(b) Calculation Amount (in relation to
calculation of interest for Notes in
global form see Conditions):

€)] Issue Date:

(b) Interest Commencement Date:

Maturity Date:

Sustainability-Linked Notes:

€)] Step-Up:

(b) Redemption Premium:
(©) SPT:

(d) SPT Reference Year:

Interest Basis:

Redemption/Payment Basis:

Change of Interest Basis or
Redemption/Payment Basis:

Put/Call Options:

[ ]

(If only one Specified Denomination, insert the Specified
Denomination. If more than one Specified Denomination,
insert the highest common factor. Note: There must be a
common factor in the case of two or more Specified
Denominations.)

[ ]

[specify/Issue Date/Not Applicable]
(N.B. An Interest Commencement Date will not be relevant
for certain Notes, for example Zero Coupon Notes.)

[Specify date or for Floating rate - Interest Payment Date
falling in or nearest to [specify month and year]]

[Applicable][Not Applicable] (If not applicable, delete the
remaining sub-paragraphs of this paragraph)

[Applicable][Not Applicable] (See paragraph 17 below)

[Applicable][Not Applicable] (See paragraphs 22, 23, 24, 25,
26, 27, 28, 29 and 30 below)

[0.26 tCO2e/MWh][0.16 tCO2e/MWh] [0.056 tCO2e/MWh]
[ 1 (In the event the Recalculation Option applies prior to the
Issue Date, the SPT may be updated accordingly)

[2025][2030] [2033] [ ]

[[ 1percent. Fixed Rate]

[[specify Reference Rate] +/- [ ] per cent. Floating Rate]
[Zero Coupon]

[Index Linked Interest]

[Dual Currency Interest]

[specify other]

(further particulars specified below)

[Redemption at par]

[Index Linked Redemption]
[Dual Currency Redemption]
[Partly Paid]

[Instalment]

[specify other]

[Specify details of any provision for change of Notes into
another Interest Basis or Redemption/Payment Basis] [Not
Applicable]

[Investor Put]

[Change of Control Put]

[Issuer Call]

[Make-Whole Redemption]
[Residual Maturity Call Option]
[Issuer Residual Call]

[(further particulars specified below)]
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13.

(@)
(b)

Status of the Notes:

[Date [Board] approval for
issuance of Notes obtained:

[Not Applicable]
[Senior/[Dated/Perpetual] Subordinated]

[ 1l

(N.B. Only relevant where Board (or similar) authorization is
required for the particular tranche of Notes)

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST (IF ANY) PAYABLE

14,

15.

Fixed Rate Note Provisions

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(€)
(f)

()

Rate(s) of Interest:

Interest Payment Date(s):

Fixed Coupon Amount(s) for Notes
in definitive form (and in relation to
Notes in global form see
Conditions):

Broken Amount(s) for Notes in
definitive form (and in relation to
Notes in global form see
Conditions):

Day Count Fraction:

[Determination Date(s):

Other terms relating to the method
of calculating interest for Fixed
Rate Notes which are Exempt
Notes:

Floating Rate Note Provisions

(@)

Specified Period(s)/Specified
Interest Payment Dates:

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of this
paragraph)

[ ] per cent. per annum payable in arrears on each Interest
Payment Date

[ ] in each year up to and including the Maturity Date
(Amend appropriately in the case of irregular coupons)

[ ] per Calculation Amount

[[ 1 per Calculation Amount, payable on the Interest
Payment Date falling [in/fon] [ ]]1[Not Applicable]

[30/360/Actual/Actual (ICMA)/specify other]
1l ] in each year][Not Applicable]

(Only relevant where Day Count Fraction is Actual/Actual
(ICMA). In such a case, insert regular interest payment
dates, ignoring issue date or maturity date in the case of a
long or short first or last coupon]

[None/Give details]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]
(If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of this
paragraph)

[ ][, subject to adjustment in accordance with the
Business Day Convention set out in (b) below/, not subject to
adjustment, as the Business Day Convention in (b) below is
specified to be Not Applicable]
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(b)

(©)
(d)

(€)

(f)

()

(h)

(i)
)

Business Day Convention:

Additional Business Centre(s):
Manner in which the Rate of

Interest and Interest Amount is to
be determined:

Party responsible for calculating
the Rate of Interest and Interest
Amount (if not the Agent):

Screen Rate Determination:

e Reference Rate:

e Interest Determination
Date(s):

e Relevant Screen Page:

e Reference Banks:

ISDA Determination:

e Floating Rate Option:
e Designated Maturity:

e Reset Date:

Linear Interpolation:

Margin(s):

Minimum Rate of Interest:

[Floating Rate Convention/Following

Business Day Convention/Modified Following Business Day
Convention/ Preceding Business Day Convention/[specify
other]][Not Applicable]

[ ]

[Screen Rate Determination/ISDA Determination/specify
other]

Reference Rate: [ 1] month
[/EURIBOR/PRIBOR/SOFR/TONA/specify other Reference
Rate].

[ ]

(Second Prague business day prior to the start of each
Interest Period if PRIBOR, the second day on which the T2
System is open prior to the start of each Interest Period if
EURIBOR), second U.S. Government Securities Business
Days prior to the start of each Interest Period if SOFR and
second Tokyo Banking Days prior to the start of each Interest
Period if TONA)

[ ]

(In the case of EURIBOR, if not Reuters EURIBORO1 ensure
it is a page which shows a composite rate or amend the
fallback provisions appropriately)

[ 1[To be selected by the Issuer]

[ ]
[ ]
[ ]

(In the case of a EURIBOR based option, the first day of the
Interest Period)

[Not Applicable/Applicable - the Rate of Interest for the
[long/short] [first/last] Interest Period shall be calculated
using Linear Interpolation (specify for each short or long
interest period)]

[+/-1[ 1] per cent. per annum

[ ] per cent. per annum
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16.

17.

18.

(k) Maximum Rate of Interest:

M Day Count Fraction:

(m) Fallback provisions, rounding
provisions and any other terms
relating to the method of
calculating interest on Floating
Rate Notes which are Exempt
Notes, if different from those set
out in the Conditions:

Step-Up:

Step-Up Margin:

Zero Coupon Note Provisions

€)] Accrual Yield:
(b) Reference Price:

(© Any other formula/basis of
determining amount payable for
Zero Coupon Notes which are
Exempt Notes:

(d) Day Count Fraction in relation to
Early Redemption Amounts:

Index Linked Interest Note

@ Index/Formula:
(b) Calculation Agent

(c) Party responsible for calculating
the Rate of Interest (if not the

[ ] per cent. per annum

[Actual/Actual (ISDA)][Actual/Actual]
[Actual/365 (Fixed)]

[Actual/360]
[30/360][360/360][Bond Basis]
[30E/360][Eurobond Basis]

[30E/360 (ISDA)]
[Other]

[ ]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of this
paragraph)

[[ 1% per annum][Not Applicable]
[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of this
paragraph)

[ ] per cent. per annum
[ 1
[ 1

[30/360]

[Actual/360]

[Actual/365]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of this
paragraph)

[give or annex details]

[give name]

[ ]
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19.

(d)

(€)

(f)

(9)
(h)
(i)
0

Calculation Agent) and Interest
Amount (if not the Agent):

Provisions for determining Coupon
where calculation by reference to
Index and/or Formula is impossible
or impracticable:

Specified Period(s)/Specified
Interest Payment Dates:

Business Day Convention:

Additional Business Centre(s):
Minimum Rate of Interest:
Maximum Rate of Interest:

Day Count Fraction:

Dual Currency Interest Note Provisions

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

Rate of Exchange/method of
calculating Rate of Exchange:

Party, if any, responsible for
calculating the principal and/or
interest due (if not the Agent):

Provisions  applicable  where
calculation by reference to Rate of
Exchange impossible or

impracticable:

Person at whose option Specified
Currency(ies) is/are payable:

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION

20.

21.

Notice periods for Condition 6.2:

Issuer Call:

(@)
(b)

Optional Redemption Date(s):

Optional Redemption Amount(s)
and method, if any, of calculation
of such amount:

[need to include a description of market disruption or
settlement disruption events and adjustment provisions]

[Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day
Convention/Modified Following Business Day Convention/
Preceding Business Day Convention/specify other]

[ ]

[ ] per cent. per annum

[ ] per cent. per annum

[ ]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]
(If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of this
paragraph)

[give or annex details]

[need to include a description of market disruption or
settlement disruption events and adjustment provisions]

Minimum period: [ ] days

Maximum period: [ ] days

[Applicable/Not Applicable]
(If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of this
paragraph)

[ ]

1l ] per Calculation Amount/specify other/see
Appendix] [plus, if a Trigger Event has occurred, the relevant
Redemption Premium (see Condition 6.12) will be payable]
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22.

(©)

(d)

If redeemable in part:

M Minimum Redemption
Amount:

(i) Maximum Redemption
Amount:

Notice periods:

Make-Whole Redemption:

(@)
(b)
(©)

(d)
()
()

(9)
(h)

Make-Whole Redemption Date:

Benchmark Security(ies):

Reference Time:

Make-Whole Margin:

Par Redemption Date:

If redeemable in part:

0] Minimum Redemption
Amount:

(i) Maximum Redemption
Amount:

Calculation Agent

Notice periods:

Minimum period: [ ] days

Maximum period: [ ] days

(N.B. When setting notice periods, the Issuer is advised to
consider the practicalities of distribution of information
through intermediaries, for example, clearing systems (which
require a minimum of 5 business days' notice for a call) and
custodians, as well as any other notice requirements which
may apply, for example, as between the Issuer and the Agent)

[Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable, delete the
remaining subparagraphs of this paragraph)

[]
[]
[]

[ ] per cent. [plus, if applicable in accordance with Condition
6.4(iii), the Redemption Premium (see Condition 6.12)]

[[ 1[Not Applicable]]

[]

[]

[]

Minimum Period: [ ] days
Maximum Period: [ ] days

(N.B. When setting notice periods, the Issuer is advised to
consider the practicalities of distribution of information
through intermediaries, for example, clearing systems (which
require a minimum of 5 business days' notice for a call) and
custodians, as well as any other notice requirements which may
apply, for example, as between the Issuer and the Agent)
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23.

24.

25.

26.

217.

28.

Residual Maturity Call Option:

@ Notice Period:

(b) Residual Maturity Call Option
Redemption Date:

Investor Put:

€)] Optional Redemption Date(s):

(b) Optional Redemption Amount and
method, if any, of calculation of
such amount(s):

(© Notice periods:

Change of Control Put:

Redemption Premium:

Final Redemption Amount:

Early Redemption Amount payable on
redemption for taxation reasons or on event

[Applicable/Not Applicable]
(If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of this
paragraph)

[For the avoidance of doubt, if a Trigger Event has occurred,
the relevant Redemption Premium (see Condition 6.12) will
also be payable on the Residual Maturity Call Option
Redemption Date]

[]

No earlier than [ ]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]
(If not applicable, delete the re